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This is a joint meeting with the House Human Resources Committee.

Rep. Pollert: calied the Human Resources section and had clerk call the roll. We are
going to hand the gavel over to either Rep. Weisz or Rep. Pietsch. We are here on a fact
finding information, but we can ask any questions we want to as well.

Chairman Weisz: Opened the hearing on HB 1044.

Sara Chamberlin: Fiscal analyst for Legislative Council provided information on the bill.
(See attached Testimony #1.)

Mark Weber: Representing ND Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Association. (See
Testimony #2.)

Rep. Nelson: Give an example of how those numbers could change that much in a year.
What actually happened?

Mark Weber: We didn't feel that the right services were weighted the right way. The
Health Dept. did all this. They changed the criteria along the top was given a point value
and then it was weighted. Those point values or the weight changed. Tim Meyer could
probably speak to that a little bit better than me. His office was involved with this.

Rep. Nelson: The criteria changed in that year and probably the number of calls. You
wouldn’t think in Lakota you would see that much of a change in service.

Mark Weber: In two years the EMTs changed that much or the number of distance from
next closest ambulance or hospital changed that much. | don’t think the call volume
changed that much. It was mainly the weight. We know which ambulance services really
need the help and we try to tweak that a little bit to get it right. You just tweak one thing
one way and the whole spread sheet changes.
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Rep. Schmidt: One of the four components of the bill you said is the development of an
advisory committee. You suggest the committee will be selected by the State Dept. of
Health. Why would you not want to select that committee?

Mark Weber: We would love to select that committee, but working with the Health Dept.
and a few legislators and having had an advisory committee already in place since 2004,
we felt we would just leave it the way it is and just put it in statute so they had to keep the
committee.

Rep. Schmidt: My thoughts sir is that this is your bus not the state’s bus. | would support
you selecting those individuals because | believe it is you that puts the input into the state
and you should determine who those individuals are, not the state.

Mark Weber: We appreciate that.

Rep. Weiland: Two questions. Where you are showing the ambulance service, in this
particular case they are showing they have a shortfall of approximately $31,000. Under the
formulas that you propose and for this particular one; would this particular ambulance
service receive an excess of $31,000 under the formula or would it be limited to just their
shortfall?

Mark Weber: We would have to calculate the local match and this particular case we will
just say that $24,000 mil levy that they were getting, there are 2400 people in that
community, so it would be $10 a piece. They would be eligible for $30,957.

Rep. Weiland: The other question | have is | look at the circles you have on that particular
map and you have an awful lot of overlapping. 1 know at one of your meetings that |
attended that they talked a littie bit about this. I'm seeing a turf problem here with some of
the services and | understand that. They are proud of what they do and so forth and they
don’'t want to necessarily give up and so forth. How are you going to handle that kind of
thing so that we don't really have, you know there is really a lot of overlapping.

Mark Weber: A couple of things there. The way this bill is laid out, every ambuilance
service that currently has a license will continue to have a license. They would get an
operations area. The circles on this map are just going to be developed funding areas.
Any ambulance service in that area would get part of the funding from that area. As far as
the overlapping, my program doesn’'t do odd shaped service areas; it only does the circles
$O you are going to get some overlap with this. If you were to put odd shaped funding
areas together it would look a little different than this and there would be no overlap. Just
like the ambulance areas are now,there is no overlap. Each ambulance gets their own
little area right now based on the closest available ambulance law so there is no overlap.
We don’t see changing much who responds where. This is just for funding.

Rep. Porter: Inside of the Dept. of Health's state budget that is in the House right now, the
Governor's proposal for the grants was decreased by a million dollars. How would that play
out with that decrease in the grants and this bill funding mechanism went nowhere, what
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ambulance services would be out of the staffing grant business, or by how much would the
total amount of staffing grant award be changed under the current system?

Mark Weber: We took a pretty good hit when OMB decided that million dollars was a
onetime funding and didn’t include it in the Health Dept. budget. Right now there are 39
ambulance services that are taking advantage of receiving the staffing grants. Anywhere
from a couple of thousand doliars all the way up to $45,000. If we don't get funded, then
there is only 1.25 million, that some won't get it again. Once again, we started a program
and now we are going to stop half of it. The Health Dept. would have to make some criteria
and determine who is going to get how much money. That would be a pretty good mess.

Rep. Porter: The other question that | had goes back to a couple of sessions ago. There
was a bill put in that talked about the ultimate responsibility for making sure that EMS
existed in an area. | believe the way the bill was written it made the counties in the Century
Code ultimately responsible like police and fire. The cities and counties came in and
opposed that legisiation because they did not want that ultimate responsibility for providing
EMS because they felt it was going to be too expensive. Does this model then take that
ultimate responsibility and put it back to the state because no one else wants EMS?

Mark Weber: We tried to get that passed in 2007 and like you said it didn’t go anywhere.
We discussed introducing it again in 2009 and we felt the support wasn't there again. We
felt we needed to get the funding first and if the counties were interested they would take
that responsibility after that. Right now the responsibility for EMS in ND is truly on the
ambulance services. If one ambulance service closes it is not the responsibility of the city
or the county or the state to make sure that those people are served by EMS. It is the next
closest ambulance service to that area. Will this bill help? We think it will because if there
is an ambulance in the funding area that decides they no longer want to provide EMS, there
will be funding there for that city, or county or whatever to either start up their own
ambulance service. Or they can contract with another ambulance service to provide
coverage in that area or be an ambulance in that area 24 hours a day. Our goal is to make
sure that in thirty years there is reasonably a mass coverage in ND. The areas on the map
are basically the reason we have EMS in ND.

Rep. Pollert: The last biennium we funded a study, that was granted to Safe Tech. Were
you in consultation with Safe Tech about the study that is going on now? That study is on-
going now and won't be finished until May or June.

Mark Weber: That funding was actually for those four projects | talked about. The
leadership development the EMS assessments, quality assurance program and the
recoupment of retention. The assessment part of that, when we introduced that to you
guys in 2009, we felt that ambulance services needed to be assessed in the purpose of
determining where they could improve. What ended up happening is there was an overall
assessment done of the ND EMS system and there will be some focused studies. Two or
three focus studies on individual ambulance areas or counties and then the ambulance
services themselves will do a self assessment to determine where they are sitting. | think
we have touched base with the Health Dept. and Safe Tech on a couple areas.
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Rep. Pollert: We still have a study out there that isn’t done yet. We're kind of throwing the
cart before the horse?

Mark Weber: No, | don’t think so. The EMS Association has done a lot of work
determining what needs to be done. UND rural health has done a study of ND EMS and
made some recommendations a few years ago. We put together in January 2006 a focus
group of industry leaders. Rural, and urban educators and the Health Dept. were involved.
We identified eighteen issues we needed to soive of which three were main issues. Since
January of 2006 we have been working to solve those problems. | don’t think the probiems
of EMS in ND have changed that much. What | would hate to see is for this proposal of this
bill to be delayed any longer to find out what the Safe Tech solutions assessment is going
to be. One delay leads to another. Being an EMS for twenty years dealing with the political
side of it for the last ten and really being involved in the last six; another bandaid or another
delay is not going to be the answer. We need to solve it as soon as possible.

Rep. Pollert: You are not saying it, but you are kind of saying it they are just throwing
general fund dollars away that we granted out for another study.

Mark Weber: | don't think so. | think the $500,000 has developed some very good
leadership classes. A number of people | have talked to that went to the leadership classes
said that they were good. | think a quality review program is a key to answering your
question of are we improving ND EMS with this funding. | also think the recruitment and
retention program is a necessary thing because we will never have enough money to fund
every ambulance service with paid staff. A large component of that assessment or that
study is the individual ambulances looking at themselves to determine where they can
improve. | think the study you are talking about is the overall study to determine the needs
of the ND EMS in the future. | think Safe Tech and John and his guys are doing a good
job. We got a report not too long ago and they are well on their way, but | don't think we
threw the $500,000 away. It was well spent.

Rep. Pollert: I'm talking about throwing away the grant we are giving to Safe Tech that is
going to have the study that is going to be done about May or June? That is kind of what
you are saying.

Mark Weber: The $500,000 was for the four projects. The assessments or the study is
just a component of that. | don't see that as throwing that money away at all. | think they
are doing a good job.

Rep. Pollert: | understand that, but you basically want us to fund, but you don’t want us to
wait for the other study that is still out there being done by Safe Tech right now.

Mark Weber: What | would advocate is that we pass HB 1044. Like every other project or
every other thing we start, there will be changes down the road. If there are changes that
Safe Tech identifies, that will positively impact ND EMS, we would definitely jump on board
and want to make those changes. | think if you look at this bill, it is a pretty generic bill. All
of the detail is in the rules making process. The rules making process will be on going by
the time the study is completed and we will be able to use their findings to help finalize
those rules. | think we can move forward with 1044 and we could take the study results and
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implement some of those into the rules making process. There is going to have to be a
rules making process for this bill.

Rep. Nelson: My questions may be more for Lori than for Mark. We really need to get our
arms around what state monies are going into EMS services in the state now. There was
$300,000 in the community heatth trust fund that is no longer available this biennium. It
appears the general fund is making up that difference as well as a Department of
Transportation grant that was federal funds that was eliminated and the governor put that in
his budget. | think for us to make a decision on this we need to know all the funding
sources for the EMS in the budget. My question is if this bill is passed include the addition
what's already in the budget or does it replace projected appropriations in the executive
budget or what the status of that is. I'd like to see a spreadsheet of the insurance tax
distribution fund and where that sits and where the status of that fund is.

Chairman Weisz: We can get that information. it is an assumption that some of those
funds are being replaced by this. I'm sure training grants and some of that is expected to
continue. Mark you can address that from your perspective.

Mark Weber: The $12,000,000 would replace the current $2.25 million and at the
beginning of the Public Safety Transportation Interim Committee meetings, Legislative
Council put together a very nice over view of all EMS funding and | can get that to you if
you want it. It lays everything out where all the funding is going.

Rep. Hofstad: Can you give me a sense of the limit the counties are able to charge in their
mil rate and the percentage of counties that are charging at that full allowable amount?

Mark Weber: Right now, ambulance services can charge or can collect up to 10 mils from
cities, counties, and townships; however they choose to do it. The last spreadsheet |
locked at | think there are about eight counties that don’t provide any money for EMH as far
as mil levies or taxes. My last calculation from 2009 it averaged about 3.2 mils if they were
charging.

Rep. Pollert: The $10 per capita, it is not a charge to every citizen to go on their tax bill, it
is for a mil levy deduct; is that what you are saying? So the eight counties that are not
levying now, they will be forced to levy? | believe all counties should be levying dollars.
You also have a revenue source of raising money better than say a fire district does. A fire
district can’t charge for service calls. They do a little bit, but they don’t have a recouping.
How is that $10 going to be done and do you have the cooperation from the associate
counties?

Mark Weber: We came up with that idea so it would be equitable across the board. The
reason the study was initiated because there was too many ways ambulance services can
generate funds. From mil levies to taxes to county, city mil levies, and ambulance service
districts. We didn't want to get into that mess so we felt if we could just say an ambulance
funding area needed to generate so much money, a maximum amount of money. We
came up with $10. You calculate peopie how many people in funding area and multiply that
by 10 and that how much money the local share is. They can generate that local share
however they determine. We don’t want to take that control away from them if they want to
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develop an ambulance service district or do taxes, mil levies, or city's tax. If the hospital or
city wants to donate money, they can generate that money however they want, but they
have to have local support in buy-in. We feel a $10 amount is appropriate. What is
happening is we are asking for $12,000,000; if you look at $10 per capita and look at how
many people we have in our state every biennium, the local match would be $12,000,000
too. Locally the local match is about $12,000,000 in two years and that is what we are
asking for in two years. The billable revenue overall is about $50,000,000 in the state.
When you look at what the state’s portion of the overall funding of EMS is, if you take the
$24 000,000 that we can generate in billable revenue, $12,000,000 in local funds,
$12,000,000 in state assistance then the state share is only about 25%.

Rep. Bellew: Can't you just charge more for a call to make up the difference?

Mark Weber: I'm glad you asked that question because healthcare is a different animal
than any other business. In healthcare specifically ambulance services about 90% of our
revenue is set by insurance companies. BC/BS sends out a fee schedule every year and it
says if you do this type of call you are getting this much money. We can charge $20,000
for a call, but this is all you are getting. Medicare is the exact same way. For most
ambulance services Medicare is well over 50% of our business. North Dakota Medicaid
just rebased our fee schedule up to right around the Medicare fee schedule. In Medicare
we receive about 50% of what we bill. If an ambulance bill is $1,000 you can see from the
spreadsheet that rural ambulance services receive about $534. Can we raise our prices?
Sure we can and who that hurts is private pay and insurance companies we don’t have
agreements with. BC/BS, Medicare, and Medicaid calls are different from ambulance
service to ambulance service, but | would guess they are in the high 80% of our calis. In
80% or so of our calls, we have no control on how much money we are gefting.

Rep. Bellew: My concern is, if the locals won't fund this, why should the state taxpayers
pick it up? Why should my district pay for someone else’s district because they don’t want
to fund this? | have a philosophical problem with this.

Mark Weber: We agree with you.
Rep. Bellew: And that's why the $10 is in there.

Mark Weber: Yes. If an area is not willing to support their EMS, they are going to get it
from somewhere else. Simple.

Rep. Weiland: The $10 per capita, are you including in that all of the people of ND, the
650,000 people? Do the city ambuiances like the one that serves me, FM ambulance, will
they be participating this $12,000,000 revenue?

Mark Weber: This funding will only go to ambulance services that can show that they have
a need. If you look at the spreadsheet with the three examples on there; if their cost of
operations is more than their revenue they can generate including (inaudible) revenue,
local share, then they will get any money. If their revenue exceeds their costs, then they
won't get any money. Fargo/Moorhead takes 12 to 14 thousand calls a year and has
enough calls to sustain themselves so I'm sure they would never be able to show that their
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expenses exceed their revenue. Most rural ambulances, if they have to start paying
people, they could never generate enough money for operations. The ambulance services
that make money won't get any of this money.

Rep. Weiland: When you talk about $12,000,000 appropriation that you're asking for, are
you looking at this as a continuing appropriation?

Mark Weber: Yes we are. We arrived at the $12,000,000 by looking at the 88 or 90
funding areas we think will be needed. We then made a spreadsheet including all the
information of the 80-80 funding areas and the amount the 88 are eligible for is
$12,000,000. That excludes 8-12 ambulance services in ND and reservations and
industrial ambulance services are not included.

Rep. Pollert: You want to charge $10 per capita and the $12,000,000 for the 650,000
population is going to pay another $10. On the chart of the 130 ND rural ambuilance, you
have a manager's salary which is $42,000 a year. Somewhere along the line, someone is
going to play God with who is going to be open and who is going to be closed. So you are
going to take away some local control because you will have overlap on certain areas and
towns. | also see with this bill you are going to staff people and how wilt you determine who
you pay and who you don’t? You will rely on volunteers for the night schedule or those
working by hour or monthly wage.

Mark Weber: The way it has worked for the past years, the paid staff works when the
volunteers can't. Volunteers fill in the schedule and are happy to do it when they are
available. The problem is they are not available all the time and so most services will offset
their staff with paid staffing when the volunteers can't do it. Basically holidays, and
weekends and some services will hire people for night call. The paid people work when the
volunteers can’t and those are the crappier hours.

Rep. Pollert: Who's going to make the call which ambulance services are going to be
open, which ones will be main ambulance services and which ones that might be quick
response units that are full fledged ambulances?

Mark Weber: That is why we are doing the operations areas in the funding areas because
currently every ambulance service that has a license can continue to hold the license and
have their own operations areas. We were going to one area. That's where the licensing
and funding would be and it is changed. Now every ambulance service that has a license
can continue to have a license untif they no longer want one. There will be no selection by
the State Health Dept. or the advisory committee to determine which ambulance services
are going to survive and which ones aren’t. The funding is going to go to a funding area
and in those areas we need to sustain at least one ambulance service. Watching EMS
over the last 20 years, | can see the volunteerism going down. The staffing grants have
helped stop the (inaudible) as far as ambulance services closing. | can see the
volunteerism going down and the ambulance services will continue to close their doors.
We have developed with this bill a plan for when they do close their doors there is another
ambulance services within reasonable distance that can scoop up that area. There is now
funding available for that ambulance service to take that area. | don't think the Health Dept.
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or the advisory committee is going to tell any ambulance service to close their doors. That
decision is going to be made by themselves.

Chairman Weisz: Committee, just to clarify as far as the $10; that is not in addition to
whatever mil levies. It has to be a contribution of at least $10 per person to get the match.

Mark Weber: Correct.

Rep. Kreidt: Communities now that have ambulances will have some paid staff person on
duty? What I'm hearing is the lack of volunteers. It's tough to get people to volunteer their
time. if you don't have the volunteers then those ambulances will close and then someone
else will pick up that area. Is that correct?

Mark Weber: In some cases that may happen. In other cases, if it is the only ambulance
service in the funding area, we need to have ambulance service there, so the funding either
needs to increase to be able to pay people or they could contract with another ambulance
service. We cannot allow any of the funding areas to be without an ambulance service.
We looked at this plan not for just now, but 10-30 years from now. This is all going to
evoive over time.

Chairman Weisz: If you have two or three ambulance services within a service area and
there is a mil levy, how is that going to be divided up? If the primary ambulance is looking
for the funding, | assume they will only get a percentage of the mil levy and will have to look
elsewhere for the match?

Mark Weber: It is not a split of the money it is how many people (interrupted by Chairman
Weisz.)

Chairman Weisz: It is the split of what was required for a match. So you have to divide up
if there is 2,000 people within that service area, | assume there are two other ambulance
services or one in addition to the one that is applying for the funding. Then someone has to
make a determination of how many people are going to be allocated to that one to apply
the $10 match to correct?

Mark Weber: That is correct. If there are 2,000 people in the service area and my
ambulance services provides service into that area and there are 500 people that | serve in
that funding area, then | would be responsible for generating $5,000 for that area.

Chairman Weisz: Even though the funding area may not provide that type of split to you,
correct? '

Mark Weber: | think that needs to be worked out.

Rep. Nelson: Rolette County has a high population, low tax base and the $10 is going to
be an issue for them. You excluded the reservations and | want you to explain to me how
the reservations are going to be served in areas like Rolette County where they generate
73 cents a mill per person. How do they raise the $10 given the dynamics?
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Mark Weber: | would guess the population of the Turtle Mountain Reservation would be
excluded from that $10. | don't know the exact dollars, but do know Rolette County
generates a good chunk of change for EMS in that county. Rolla and Rolette both got
some of that money. | can get you those numbers, but | don’t think it is going to be a
problem there if you exclude the Turtle Mountain Reservation people.

Rep. Nelson: Thank you for that answer. How do we carve out the reservation and still
provide the service? You still are going to respond to calls on the reservation, are you not?

Mark Weber: The Turtle Mountain Reservation has their own ambulance service and is
licensed and responds outside of their area and they are not really happy about that. They
only want to respond on the reservation. Things change and that might change and not
respond outside their area. Those types of details just need to be worked out. The
solutions are comprehensive and different no matter where we go. That is why we need a
generalized type of bill and then we need to make the rules and then each one of those
areas has to follow the rules.

Rep. Louser: | assume the $10 per citizen is going to be based on the census. So this
would stay consistent for 10 years. In the areas where we have a smaller funding area,
over time there will be potential large fluxuations in population increase or decrease. Do
you see a funding problem 7 or 8 years after the census?

Mark Weber: That is a great question. | think that when the Health Dept. looks at each one
of these grants or these funding requests like Killdeer or Watford City and says that their
population is this, they would have to work with those ambulance services in those counties
to make those determinations. Yes, for the most part it will be based on population, but |
would think the Health Dept. would be willing to work with people to adjust those.

Rep. Pollert: Other states have to be having a problem with volunteers. Do you know if
there are other states trying to address this problem? Is this a template from another state
or are we marching down and leading the pack?

Mark Weber: | think we are in front leading. You can talk to John Becknell from Safe Tech
and | think he would tell you the same thing that this is a new type of deal. We have a plan
to solve the problem rather than just trying to come up with a plan. Most states don't know
what to do. Luckily our EMS community is small enough and we all kind of get along. We
have gotten the rural and urban ALS and BLS to work together and we have a legislature
that obviously support us.

Rep. Weiland: On page 2 of your testimony you talked about the number of services and
you said in 2007 there were 143 and 108 were eligible for the grants. You don’t talk about
how many are still there or eligible for grants in 2009, but 41 applied and 39 are receiving
grants. Could we get a list of those 39 ambulance services and the amount of grant they
applied for?

Mark Weber: The Health Dept. would have to provide that. | have a list of what they
applied for. Is that what you want?
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Rep. Weiland: Yes and what they received both. | would appreciate getting that
information.

Rep. Schmidt: You mentioned that reservations services would not be impacted by this?
As | look at Standing Rock, | believe their services are provided by BIA. | can't separate in
my mind how that service would be separate from this even though you mentioned it. You
have to describe that for me please.

Mark Weber: The reason we excluded the four reservations from our program is because
they receive federal funds and are federaily funded and this is a state program and we
have to have a local match to get the state funds and you have to bill. 'm not sure they do
much billing and I'm not sure we would ever bill to get a local match from them.

Chairman Weisz: On page 3 of the bill on line 22 where it says, “each ambulance
operations area must be limited to one transporting ambulance service”, can you expand
on that? On one hand we are conferring licensing on all existing, but now we are saying
there can't be more than one transporting ambulance service in a given service area.

Mark Weber: The intent of that language was so that the state funding would only have to
fund reasonable EMS and not all 140 some of them. If you define what reasonable EMS
and you develop those funding areas, there is about 88-90 of them. We have to sustain at
least one ambulance service in every one of those areas to be able to provide reasonable
EMS. If there is multiple, they can share that money. The intent of the language is to
assure there is at least one ambulance in every one of these funding areas.

Chairman Weisz: The language seems to me that it ensures there is only one because it
says it must be limited to one.

Mark Weber: Then that terminology needs to be changed. It is in the operations areas
and so every ambulance service that has a license now will get its own operation area.
Within each operations area there will only be one ambulance service. That is what that is
referring to. New Salem has an operations area and there can be only one ambulance
services in that operations area.

Tim Meyer: Director of Administration at F-M Ambulance Service which provides support
to Fargo, West Fargo and to rural Cass County. Testified in support of the bill. (See
Testimony #3.)

Chairman Weisz: You made the comment that you don’'t want state subsidizing
competition, but the language in the bill protects you from any competition of any kind even
if it is non-subsidized. That’s not a bad deal either, right?

Tim Meyer: Quite frankly, yes it does give us an exclusive right to work in an area. But, if
we have a competitor move into Fargo, the first thing we will have to do is contract around
areas that we can sustain our operation around. We can't do the calls out in the county
because we lose money on those. That is where it trickles down to the volunteers and
affects them. If we get a competitor in Fargo it changes the game for us.
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Rep. Pollert: I'm struggling with the $10 per capita and the way | read this then, in your
local area we would not be charging the $10 per capita because your services are there.
Meaning that it won't be a $10 per capita charge? Someone is going to be paying that bill. |
know they are two separate issues as far as the per capita payment and the $12,000,000,
but, of the $10 charge, we aren’t going to charge in your area, right?

Chairman Weisz: The $10 and the charge | think that is somewhat confusing here. The
fact that local match to receive any funds is based on a $10 per capita within their service
area. Somehow there has to be a local match whether it is mil levy or any other means in
order to get the state funds for that part. If his ambulance service needs the money and he
wants to apply for these dollars, he would have to come up with a local match based on
that popuiation in his service area. Tim, | have a question though. You indicated you do
serve outside of the Fargo area. If there is a volunteer ambulance serving that area now, it
would be your position that they shouldn't be able to receive any state funding; if indeed
they are serving within your service area, is that correct?

Tim Meyer: Are you asking me if they operated in West Fargo for example?

Chairman Weisz: You talked about you are beyond and it's hard to read the map that was
given us. But, if there is a volunteer ambulance service considered within your service area
that is operating now, | assume you would object to them receiving state funds through this
program to help them sustain themselves.

Tim Meyer: We don't operate in each other’'s areas. Right now in Cass County there are 4
rural ambulance services and | think everyone of them gets funding from the staffing grant.
We would not oppose funding for our rural partners. We know if they go under we will have
to go out and do those ambulance calls. It will be longer response times and we lose
money on those things.

Gary Wingru: From Buffalo, ND representing himself gave information on the bill.

Tim Meyer with colleagues called me a couple of days ago. | have been the state EMS for
Minnesota for part of the 1990’s and we have a system that is simiiar to the provision that is
in this bill regarding excusive operating areas and because of the expertise with that he
asked me to come. | know the folks in the department really well. They are great people
and I'm sure they will have a lot of good input on the bill you are working on. There are lots
of different ways the EMS organizations that are organized and there are some states
where the legislature has defined a responsible party for the provision of EMS. In North
Carolina, counties are responsible to make sure EMS is delivered either by operating their
own ambulance service or by contracting for the service. Wisconsin is a little convoluted
model. Sometimes it's the county and sometimes it's the village, but it is not a city or a
town. California also has a different regulatory structure. They are decentralized and they
use the health service areas that we all use to have back in the early 80's that most states
have done away with. There have been efforts in other states to try and define that
process of how do we assure that every inch of the state is covered? We have had those
discussions in Minnesota (MN) and the league of cities and association of counties don't
support that without the state backing it up with funding. We haven't see the states move in
the direction of making cities and counties responsible. Globally there is a lot of
consolidation in Australia where there are six states and six ambulance services. The
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Canadian provinces have started collapsing services into a single unit. Nova Scotia picked
a day for a new provider in place of 56 existing providers. In Alberta they are doing a kind
of phased approach. Currently Saskatschewan is moving their ambulance service from a
kind of independent authority into the health ministry. it looks like they are going to keep
somewhat of a decentralized model. British Columbia has one ambulance service. Most of
these models are full time. There are some volunteers in big pockets of Australia. One of
the things that we know is true about' EMS is the demand for the service is inelastic. If | or
you decide to open up a hardware store in town we might be able to convince more people
in town to buy products. If we put three more cardiac cath labs in Bismarck; more people
aren’t going to have heart attacks. What happens in medicine when you over saturate an
area each provider ends up doing less and they have a hard time maintaining the critical
skills. Much research around trauma and other programs on how that works in terms of
need to do procedures to stay proficient. We had issues in MN in the late 70's and early
80’s some of which ended up on some embarrassing TV reports when we had a non-
competitive model in our state. Anyone could set up an ambulance service if they could
convince anyone who answered the 911 phone call to call them. {f they had scanners and
heard someone going, they could also go. Our state decided to change the model to
exclusive, primary service areas what | believe the bill describes as exclusive operating
areas. We have the strongest exclusive operating areas of any state today and we do have
a sole provider model. What we did was the providers were grandfathered that already
existed that result in some overlap. Most have been resolved over time. Because of the
grandfathering position we do have some multiple services in the twin cities area, but they
serve hundreds of nursing homes and that is the market they pretty much serve. What we
have now that we didn't have before is our enhanced 911 system. Under that system in the
CAD the address already has a police unit, fire unit and an ambulance attached to it. There
are a couple of issues from the provider perspective that are important in this. For a large
portion of the calls the ambulance service do, reimbursement is fixed. If you have an open
competitive market in a situation where there is inelastic demand, it is hard as a provider to
make the kinds of capital infrastructure things you need to do to provide the best level of
care. We know that ambulance services can save the system a ton of money, if we can get
the right patient to the right place the first time. But, the machines that are required to
make that decision costs between $20,000-$25,000. You are hard pressed as a provider if
you don't know you are going to be here next year to make those investments especially if
you were small. We also see in our MN system that our EMS agencies are what | would
call full service. If the town is big enough to have a SWAT team in the police department,
the medics are right there with them. Intercept is a big part of our state. We have 308
ambulance services. About 250 of which are volunteer and most of them are basic. In our
rules we set up what is called a summary approval process. So, where there were
overlaps in coverage and muitiple providers, the providers in the 911 system could come
together and through a simple regulatory process, two people signing a piece of paper and
sending it into our EMS office, they could have those boundaries changed. We have had
some loss of service in MN. Some ambulance services have gone out of business, we
have had four in the last five years or so. They have all been located in rural communities
and all but one of them has been replaced. The next service closes ends up picking up
their calls which does result in issues of extended response times. Some states have done
exclusive provider model for emergency the business and had non-exclusivity for non-
emergency business. That tends to work well where you have very large populations and
hundreds of nursing long term care facilities. Our experience in my state is that it does not



House Human Services Committee
HB 1044

January 19, 2011

Page 13

i

work well where we have 50,000 to 100,000 people. There isn’'t enough to split that part of
the market out.

Justin Adolph: President of the Professional Firefighters of ND. We are here today to
support the bill. Funding EMS in the state that is very important. Our communities are
spread far apart and in the state and is very hard for rural EMS services to cover all of
these areas. We do have a little reserve on the non-competition clause as far as the cities,
but we do wish for the funding to be there for the rural communities.

Rep. Pollert: | have gotten a few e-mails from rural fire departments very concerned about
this bill and not in favor of it. The professional firefighters are paid, is that correct?

Justin Adolph: That is correct. | represent the five main departments in the state and
most paid firefighters of the state. | can speak for the paid firefighters in the state. | believe
the worry is, let's say that Grand Forks wanted to start their own ambulance service where
we are a little questioning if that is even legal with this bill if passed with the verbiage on
non-competition.

Rep. Pollert: This is a far reaching question and only reason I'm asking it is because |
have a son who is a firefighter and paramedic in South Dakota and in their county and the
city have an arrangement so that he is a paramedic and a firefighter. Should the state be
locking at a collaboration or has the state ever looked at that of those combinations? Has it
been discussed in ND or has your organization talked about it?

Justin Adolph: Not aware of that ever being discussed. In most cities, the fire and police
are first responders and BLS and the ambuiance services are ALS that has worked very
well for our cities. We wonder if at some point if a city would like to start their own EMS.
Would that be possible with this bill sir?

Patrick Tracy: An EMT Basic with Maddock Ambulance Service testified in support of the
bill. (See Testimony #4.)

Rep. Bellew: You said on page 2 that your reserve funds will be depieted in approximately
2 years without funding assistance? Where do the reserve funds come from?

Patrick Tracy: Those funds were built up over the years until we started to get the staff
grants and staff funding, we were depleting from year to year.

Rep. Bellew: Did they come from local tax dollars, county tax dollars?

Patrick Tracy: Some of them come from local tax dollars and some from donations and
revenues from runs. | can get you that information. Offhand | don’t have it.

Rep. Bellew: Has your ambulance gone to the city and county and asked for extra funding
and what was there response if you have? If you haven't, why haven’t you?
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Patrick Tracy: Yes we have. We've instituted the mil levy and we do fund raisers. As far
as city taxes and city dollars, | would have to check on that. We use the maximum
allowable mil levy there is. That is split between three ambulance services in the county.

Rep. Metcalf: You said you get paid about a $1.50, is that an hour you are out or per run?
You say most donate that money back to the ambulance service.

Patrick Tracy: That is a $1.50 an hour and some of us do. | have never cashed a check
for my call time. | have donated 100% back to ambulance or given it to pay a bill for
someone who can't afford it.

Rep. Metcalf: You say that is how you have built up some of your reserves in your
system? .

Patrick Tracy: | don't think that would build the reserves, no. To me it is a dollar saved.
EMS is so important. We are 30 miles from a higher level of care. | want to know if my
son, grandchildren or spouse needs an ambulance that it is there. | want to retire in
Maddock, ND and when I'm 60 years old and | need to go, | want to know there is an
ambulance service here to take me.

Rep. Weiland: If you could just give me a snap shot of your community. How many
people in your service area that the ambulance serves? And give me an idea of what your
income and expenses are in your budget.

Patrick Tracy: As far as the ambulance service itself, | don't have that information for
income and expenses. Maddock has about 500 people. We are in the center of
Carrington, Harvey, Devils Lake and Rugby. Approximately 50 miles from any of them.
Center of Benson County and our service area is rather large. Minnewauken use to have
an ambulance service and closed and we cover part of that area and over to Esmond, north
to Harlow and south to Hamburg area. Square miles | couldn't tell you exactly. I'd have to
get you the information to the population of that area.

Rep. Kreidt: Do you have a lot of trouble getting volunteers?

Patrick Tracy: We were lucky last year. There was a class of three of us that took the
EMT course and we all passed. | think we had a gal there that was holding things together
with needles and thread. She kept asking me if I'd take the EMT course and | said no three
times and said yes the fourth time. We probably have six active EMT's maybe seven. We
have active drivers, a half a dozen. We have monthly meetings and ten to twelve people
show up. The spirit of volunteerism right now with our ambulance service is great. We
have a good crew, but we still don’t have enough.

Rep. Nelson: I've known Pat for a long time and the people of Maddock. It is just another
example of the good people in district 7. Minnewauken did close their service several
years ago and it was the volunteer organization from Maddock that ended up picking up
that service. They are in a tough situation compared to other areas of ND because Benson
County is one of those counties that have a number of issues going on. They are a
reservation county so there is a limited tax base and it is depleting because of land that is
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purchased by the Tribe as well as swallowed up by Devils Lake. It is a close knit system
and takes a lot of participation in and outside of the community and that's how it works in
towns. We appreciate your service and all of the volunteers that do that.

Rep. Kilichowski: Do you serve any part of the reservation in Benson County?

Patrick Tracy: No, | don't believe we do. It is not in our service area. It is too far to the
east.

Rep. Metcalf: This is a statement and not a question. If you are really looking for
volunteers. Contact Arlo Schmidt.

Rep. Damschen: I'm not from Maddock, but | was there during your celebration this fall.
You don't have to spend much time in the community to see that they are a community that
is willing to step forward. | would feel pretty confident that they probably have done
everything in their power to keep this service going in the community. Just an observation
from spending an afternoon there.

Patrick Tracy: That was the rural Renaissance Festival and my wife was chairman of it
and thank you. Living in a rural setting in ND does come with its price, but the benefits
way out weight it. | heard of some of the larger communities funding the ambulance
services, but where would those communities be without the Mohalls, Maddocks, Leeds
and the Stanleys.

Cheryl Flick: EMT with the Bowden Ambulance Service testified in support of the bill.
(See Testimony #5.)

Tom Zahn: EMT Basic at the New England Ambulance Service testified in support. Cheryl
Flick read his testimony. (See Testimony #6.)

Diane Witteman: President of the Mohall Ambulance Service testified in support. (See
Testimony #7.)

No Opposition

Chairman Weisz: Closed the hearing.
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Chairman Weisz: Everyone has the amendments? [I'll give everyone a few minutes to
look at them. The funding from the insurance tax is gone. It will be general fund dollars.
The $10 per county allocation stays in place. The makeup of the advisory committee has
changed and that is on page 2. On the advisory committee will be a legislator and the
other only real change is where it says, “EMS will appoint three and guarantees at least
one of them will be a non-EMS association member. [t stilt keeps in everybody else; air
ambulance and educator. We still are establishing funding service areas. The
appropriations will be 4.4 million dollars. There is 3 million in this bill and 1 %4 in the
Governor's budget. In the Health Dept. budget for EMS. There is a suggested amendment
that will clarify that.

Rep. Porter: The section 4 makes the advisory committee effective after January 1, 2012.

Chairman Weisz: That is when the bill kicks in. If you look at the appropriations you will
see there is $562,500 that is to finish things out in until January 1, 2012 under the current
waiver of funding staffing grants. Everything starts in place January 1, 2012. Mr. Tuba an
explanation? I'li let you come up.

Ken Tupa: With ND EMS Association. To address the start date, as | understand the
amendments on second page of the amendments the very last one, Section 4 Effective
Date, January 1, 2012. That would address the new Section 2 in the bill which is the
repealer. Current Section 2 would become Section 1 which would be in effect immediately.
Section 2 then becomes the repealer which needs to be repealed because that is the
current staffing grant. It all works there.

Chairman Weisz: We are eliminating the repealing of the way we were doing things
funding it to January 1 and start the new program on January 1, 2012.

Rep. Porter: In our discussion we talked about what happened this go around in the
budget that we worked pretty diligently last session to get the funding dollars up. And when
the Governor's budget came out, OMB said, we looked at that as a one-time funding level
and they slashed it and put it back to the previous biennium dollar amount . So right now
what is out there with no changes then there would be a significant number of those
ambulance services that would lose their staffing grant dollars that we appropriated last
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legislative session. So | hand wrote what a Section 5 of this could be and we would word it

t, “the $3 million is over and above the appropriation in 1004 which is the Health
Department’s budget and must be used as the base line for the purpose of budgeting for
the 2013-15 executive budget’. So OMB doesn’t take that back to the million dollars again.
No matter what we do and no matter what Approps ends up doing with the funding levels
that those levels stay as the baseline for the next executive budget.

Chairman Weisz: You want to add it to the (stops).

Rep. Porter: We'd just do it all at once and add it to this amendment.
Rep. Kilichowski: Why did OMB think it was a one-time funding?
Rep. Porter: | do not know.

Chairman Weisz: | don't remember any discussion that was committee that was ever
intended to be a one-time. They couldn't have gotten it from committee discussion.

Rep. Holman: Is there any precedent for us telling what baseline funding is?

Rep. Porter: All the time. Usually it is language that the Appropriations Committee puts in,
but this started here last session and is continuing forward. It has been studied two
interims and then all of sudden we were told that they took all of the work we had done and
made it as a one-time appropriation out of OMB. Whatever comes out of appropriations
and goes to the Senate and is signed into law is the baseline for next session so we don't
have to come back and start from two sessions ago and try and change that policy forward
and that we go back to what we did last time and move forward. That is really what it says.
The work in the last two interims on this issue has been a very interesting process to say
the least. Section of the bill was specifically tagged to me personally. I've talked to many
of the members of the committee about what that piece would do. And I'm still going back
to the interim under the belief that type of language needs to be between a particular
ambulance service and who they contract with to provide those services. | still have an
issue with no one in the state stepping up to the plate saying that it is their responsibility to
make sure that EMS is provided. That still doesn't exist today. The counties, cities don't
want it and EMS wanted some areas of protection. | don't believe that is right either. |
think that there needs to be somebody that in the end makes sure that EMS is provided to
all geographical areas of the state. Right now that falls back to your volunteer ambulance
service and if they go away then it falls to your neighboring volunteer ambulance service.
And if they go away it goes to the next one. You get a remote area of the state and you get
a couple of ambulance services that fail, that keeps mushrooming out and putting more
burden on those volunteers that are stiil existing. This language came from Minnesota and
the ambulance services from the eastern part of the state. Of course, FM was up wanted
to have it. Grand Forks, Fargo and Wahpeton currently have services in Minnesota that
have assigned service areas and they. like it and thought it should be in ND. But, out here
in the western part of the state we have never had those things. Dickinson had a
competing ambulance service fifteen years ago and it almost collapsed both servicers
where they had no coverage. Finally they fixed it on the local level the way it should have
been done. | can assure you that my business is protected with a contract with the cities
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and counties that | serve and that is how it should be done. They control the rates we can
charge and what we do through contract. The local county and city commissions control
me, but that is not the case across the state.

Rep. Holman: This is not an uncommon practice in a sparsely populated area where we
have monopolize utilities and a lot of things. We have oversight on rate setting. What
types of things would be in place here to make sure that someone or others where it might
affect rate setting when someone has a monopoly?

Rep. Porter: Again it falls back to the local units of government. We don't have a
monopoly. What we have in our contract is very specific language that if another service
wants to come in that they come in at the same level that we are in. They can’'t come in an
operate from 8 am to 5 pm and cherry pick nursing home contracts and things like that. And
the one o'clock in the morning uncollectible they can avoid. All we did as a service with
local units of government is to assure that everybody completes on the same level playing
field. Inside of the existing rules they don't get staffing grants uniess they are at least trying
to get their costs of doing business and that is what this bill does. The state just doesn't
throw them money and subsidize their operation at the low cost. They have to raise their
rates in those volunteer services and at least charge the cost of doing business in their
service area.

Rep. Kilichowski: All the stuff underlined in this bill, was that in the last bill that allowed for
the funding mechanism or is this completely new?

Rep. Porter: The committee language on page 1 of the amendment. The top part of that is
the way it is being done now, but not in the law. The association felt they would like some
solid ground that this committee does have to exist and this is the format it exists in. The
department does have this membership committee operating right now other than a
legislator and they felt it should go forward. The bottom part is new and the committee
doesn't have any input on how the staffing grants are put out. It just says that the health
officer can get advice from the group on how the staffing grants are put out.

Rep. Kilichowski: The funding and the matching was all the same as last time, right?

Rep. Porter: Because of the effective date on page 2, it would stay the way it was last
time. The mechanisms that are out there now would stay that way until 2012 and then
starting in 2012 the recommendations of the advisory committee would be considered on
how to do the staffing grants.

Rep. Porter: | would move the amendment 02001 with the additional language that would
make up that Section 5.

Rep. Hofstad: Second.
Voice Vote: Motion Carried
Rep. Kilichowski: | move a Do Pasé as amended and re-referred to Appropriations.

Rep. Hofstad: Second.
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Rep. Porter: So everyone is clear on the second page of the amendment. It does take that
insurance tax distribution language out and put it back as a general fund appropriation.
There was concerns from rural fire departments that felt that money was just theirs and so
that was removed and put into just the general fund.

Roll Call Vote: 12 y 0 n 1 absent — Rep. Paur
Do Pass As Amended and Re-referred to Appropriations Carried

Bill Carrier: Rep. Weisz
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1044
Page 1, line 1, remove "and a new subsection to section"
Page 1, line 2, remove "23-27-02"

Page 1, line 4, remove "to amend and reenact sections 18-04-04.1 and 23-27-01 and
subsection 1 of"

Page 1, remove line 5

Page 1, line 6, remove "fund and ambulance operations areas;"

Page 1, line 7, remove "and"

Page 1, line 7, after "appropriation” insert "; and to provide an effective date”
Page 1, remove lines 9 through 15

Page 1, remove lines 20 through 22

Page 1, line 23, replace "2." with "1."

Page 2, line 1, replace "3." with "2."

Page 2, line 4, replace "4." with "3."

Page 2, replace lines 8 through 13 with:

"There is established an emergency medical services advisory committee. The
commitiee consists of the state health officer or designee, one consumer

1

representative appointed by the legislative management, one member of the legislative

assembly appointed by the legislative management, one representative of an air
ambulance services operation, one licensed emergency medical services educator

Page 3, remove lines 10 through 31

appointed by the North Dakota ambulance service advocates, one representative of an
ambulance service appointed by the North Dakota ambulance service advocates and
one representative each of an urban, rural,and frontier ground ambulance service
operation appointed by the North Dakota emergency medical services association for a
total of three representatives one of whom may not be a member of the North Dakota
emergency medical services association.

The committee members must serve voluntarily and are entitled to
reimbursement of expenses in accordance with section 44-08-04.

The state health officer shall consider the recommendations of the committee
on the eligibiity for state assistance for training and education as provided for in
section 23-27-04.5. the plan for integrated emergency medical services, development
of emergency medical services funding areas, and development of funding areas
application process and budget criteria, and other issues relating to emergency
medical services as determined by the state health officer.”

H

3,
4
Vi

Page 4, remove lines 1 through 29

Page No. 1 11.0242.02001



Page &, remove lines 1 through 31

Page 6, remove lines 1 through 3

Page 6, line 5, remove "insurance"

Page 6, line 6, repiace "tax distribution" with "general"

Page 6, line 6, replace "$12,000,000" with.“$3,000,000"

Page 6, line 9, remove "in accordance with section 2 of this Act"

Page 6, line 10, after the period insert "The department may spend up to $562,500 of the
appropriation provided in this section for grants under chapter 23-40 and any remaining
funds for grants in accordance with section 1 of this Act."

Page 6, after line 10, insert:

"SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. Section 2 of this Act becomes effective on
January 1, 2012."

Renumber accordingly

FPage No. 2 11.0242.02001
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1044
Page 1, line 1, remove "and a hew subsection to section”
Page 1, line 2, remove "23-27-02"

Page 1, line 4, remove "to amend and reenact sections 18-04-04.1 and 23-27-01 and
subsection 1 of"

Page 1, remove line 5

Page 1, line 6, remove "fund and ambulance operations areas;"

Page 1, line 7, replace "and" with "to provide a statement of legislative intent;"
Page 1, line 7, after "appropriation" insert *; and to provide an effective date"
Page 1, remove lines 9 through 15

Page 1, remove lines 20 through 22

Page 1, line 23, replace "2." with "1."

Page 2, line 1, replace "3." with "2."

Page 2, line 4, replace "4." with "3."

Page 2, overstrike lines 8 through 13 and insert immediately thereafter:

"There is established an emergency medicai services advisory committee. The
committee consists of the state health officer or designee, one consumer
representative appointed by the leqislative management, one member of the leqgislative
assembly appointed by the legislative management, one representative of an air
ambulance services operation, one licensed emergency medical services educator
appointed by the North Dakota ambulance service advocates, one representative of an
ambulance service appeinted by the North Dakota ambulance service advocates, and
one representative each of an urban, rural_and frontier ground ambulance service
operation appointed by the North Dakota emergency medical services association for a
total of three representatives one of whom may not be a member of the North Dakota
emergency medical services association.

The committee members must serve voluntarily and are entitled to
reimbursement of expenses in accordance with section 44-08-04.

The state health officer shall consider the recommendations of the committee
on the eligibility for state assistance for training and education as provided for in
section 23-27-04.5, the plan for integrated emergency medical services, development
of emergency medical services funding areas, and development of funding areas

application process and budget criteria, and other issues relating to emergency
medical services as determined by the state health officer.”

Page 3, remove lines 10 through 31

Page 4, remove lines 1 through 29

Page No. 1 11.0242.02002
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‘Page 5, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 8, remove lines 1 through 3

Page 6, after line 4, insert:

"SECTION 3. STATEMENT OF LEGISLATIVE INTENT. The $3,000,000
appropriation in section 3 of this Act is in addition to the appropriation in 2011 House
Bill No. 1004. The combined appropriations must be used as the base level for the
purpose of budgeting for the 2013-15 executive budget.”

Page 6, line 5, remove "insurance"

Page 6, line 6, replace "tax distribution" with "general”

Page 6, line 6, replace "$12,000,000" with "$3,000,000"

Page 6, line 9, remove "in accordance with section 2 of this Act”

Page 6, line 10, after the period insert "The department may spend up to $562,500 of the
appropriation provided in this section for grants under chapter 23-40 and any remaining
funds for grants in accordance with section 1 of this Act.

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. Section 2 of this Act becomes effective on
January 1, 2012

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 2 11.0242.02002
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
HB 1044: Human Services Committee ({Rep.Weisz, Chairman) recommends
AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS
and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (12 YEAS, 0 NAYS,
1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1044 was placed on the Sixth order on the
calendar.

Page 1, line 1, remove "and a new subsection to section”
Page 1, line 2, remove "23-27-02"

Page 1, line 4, remove "to amend and reenact sections 18-04-04.1 and 23-27-01 and
subsection 1 of"

Page 1, remove line 5

Page 1, line 6, remove "fund and ambulance operations areas;"

Page 1, line 7, replace "and" with "to provide a statement of legislative intent;”
Page 1, line 7, after "appropriation” insert *: and to provide an effective date"
Page 1, remove lines @ through 15

Page 1, remove lines 20 through 22

Page 1, line 23, replace "2." with "1."

Page 2, line 1, replace "3," with "2."

Page 2, line 4, replace "4." with "3."

Page 2, overstrike lines 8 through 13 and insert immediately thereafter:

"There is_established an_ emergency medical services advisory committee. The
committee consists of the state health officer or designee, one consumer
representative appointed by the legislative management, one member of the
legislative assembly appointed by the legislative management, one representative of
an air ambulance services gperation, one licensed emergency medical services
educator appointed by the North Dakota ambulance service advocates. one
representative of an ambulance service appointed by the North Dakota ambulance
service advocates, and one representative each of an urban, rural,_and frontier
ground ambulance service operation appointed by the North Dakota emergency

medical services association for a totai of three representatives one of whom may not
be a member of the North Dakota emergency medical services association,

The committee members must serve voluntarily and are entitled to
reimbursement of expenses in_accordance with section 44-08-04.

The state health officer shali consider the recommendations of the committee
on the eligibility for state assistance for training and education as provided for in
section 23-27-04 5_the plan for integrated emergency medical services, development
of emergency medical services funding areas, and development of funding areas
application process and budget criteria, and other issues relating to emergency
medical services as_determined by the state health officer.”

Page 3, remove lines 10 through 31
Page 4, remove lines 1 through 29

Page 5, remove lines 1 through 31

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_25_001



Com Standing Committee Report . Module (D: h_stcomrep=25-001
February 8, 2011 9:06am Carrier: Weisz
Insert LC: 11.0242.02002 Title: 03000

Page 6, remove lines 1 through 3
Page 6, after line 4, insert:

"SECTION 3. STATEMENT OF LEGISLATIVE INTENT. The $3,000,000

appropriation in section 3 of this Act is in addition to the appropriation in 2011 House
Bill No. 1004. The combined appropriations must be used as the base level for the
purpose of budgeting for the 2013-15 executive budget."

Page 8, line 5, remove "insurance”

Page 8, line 6, replace "tax distribution" with "general”

Page 6, line 6, replace "$12,000,000" with "$3,000,000"

Page 6, line 9, remove "in accordance with section 2 of this Act"

Page 6, line 10, after the period insert "The department may spend up to $562,500 of the
appropriation provided in this section for grants under chapter 23-40 and any
remaining funds for grants in accordance with section 1 of this Act.

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. Section 2 of this Act becomes effective on
January 1, 2012."

Renumber accordingly

(1) BESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 2 h_stcomrep_25_001
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2011 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

Senate Human Services Committee
Red River Room, State Capitol

HB 1044
3-15-2011
Job Number 15487

[] Conference Committee
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Relating to ambulance operations areas, emergency medical services funding areas, and
state financial assistance for emergency medical services.

Minutes: Attachments,

Senator Judy Lee opened the hearing on Reengrossed HB 1044.

Sara Chamberlin (Fiscal Analyst for Legislative Council) provided neutral information on
HB 1044. Attachment #1

Senator Gerald Uglem asked if the 1.25 for staffing grants was taken out in the original bill
so it was a 12 million total in the original bill.

Ms. Chamberlin explained that in the original HB 1044 there was 12 million and this 12
million was provided from the Insurance Tax Distribution Fund. She believed the
Department of Health bill, the executive budget, included the 1.25 million.

Mark Weber (ND EMS) testified in support of HB 1044. Attachment #2

Senator Gerald Uglem said they would still want to have grants or funding going out the
first year.

Mr. Weber said the current staffing grant program would continue for the next 12 months.

Senator Judy Lee asked for clarification — because they are delaying it 6 months is there a
possibility that fewer than 4 million might be the final number.

Mr. Weber believed there would be more requests than they have money for. He felt more
ambulance services will be applying for the staffing grant in the next 12 months.

Discussion — developing criteria as a reason for the advisory committee. Fourteen services
do greater than 600 calls per year. '
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Senator Gerald Uglem stated that the original bill was going to get rid of the staffing grants
and everything would be done through the new program. He wanted to know if they were

comfortable working with the staffing grants at least temporarily since it was put back in by
the House.

Mr.Weber didn't think they had a choice. They are functioning and are temporary.
He felt there was a need to extend it for the 12 months. That would put them on the right
schedule for the Health Dept. to work through the policy.

Senator Dick Dever asked if some of the ambulance services are organized differently as
“for profit" as opposed to “nonprofit”. He also asked if they saw the funding areas
geographically including multiple ambulance services.

Mr. Weber said the most rural ambulance services are struggling to cover 24/7. He gave
the example of Mohall and Lansford as a prime example of what is happening.
He explained that the funding areas allow ambulance services to drop their 24/7

requirements and go with a part time ambulance service. He elaborated on how the
system works.

Discussion continued on the necessity of the small rural areas to join together to provide
EMS in their areas. There is the ability to cooperate without being absorbed. !t can be set
up so they can begin as equal partners in the planning.

There has been consideration for additional funding to help with the substations that will be
formed.

Identity issues were brought up.
Senator Tim Mathern asked what format they wanted the Advisory Committee put back to.

Mr. Weber said the advisory committee has been in place since about 2004. They are fine
with leaving it the way it is in the original bill. They wouldn’t mind having 2 people from the
EMS Association on it. They just wanted to have the committee in statute.

Senator Gerald Uglem asked what percentage of EMT's in the state are members of the
Association.

Mr. Weber — between 1300 and 1400 members. There are 1800 active EMT's.

Senator Dick Dever understood the concern of the connotation of the word “grants” in the
appropriation. But it seemed to him that one of the connotations of not having it is that the
Department of Health has a greater responsibility for oversight of the distribution of the
funds.

Mr. Weber said they would like to get rid of the stigma of the word “grant”. They want it to
be permanent funding.

Tim Meyer (Director of Administration, FM Ambulance in Fargo) testified in support of
HB 1044 Attachment #3
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Senator Judy Lee stated that she knew they served the MN side also and asked how MN
does this. ’

Mr. Meyer replied that MN has a PSA law (Primary Service Area). He went on to explain
how it works and how it developed.
It was pointed out that the Fargo service also provides service to the rural areas around

Fargo. The original bill would be looking at something that would be fairly similar in some
ways to the MN plan.

Senator Gerald Uglem asked if MN considered “reasonable EMS” definition similar to ND
as far as response time.

Mr. Meyer didn't think it was defined like that. In many ways he thought ND was way
ahead of the curve in defining performance standards when based on other states in the
country. He based that on an interim study he worked on a few sessions back.

The language used in MN to establish performance standards has to do with the size of the
community.

Discussion followed on competing ambulance services.

Rep. Todd Porter (District 34) spoke in support of HB 1044. He was a member of the
interim committee that worked on this. They took a long hard look at EMS in North Dakota.
The big area of concern that they had, as a committee, was rural EMS. The volunteer level
of service is a very functional, viable option in ND. The problem is that the aging group of
volunteers that are committed to do this is dwindling. The other problem is that people are
traveling further for their jobs and are leaving communities virtually without coverage.

He gave an exampie of Wilton, ND and the effect it has on the next closest service.

He talked about the cooperation between ambulance services and the care the patient
gets. '

Senator Judy Lee asked what the attitude was of the policy committee in the House

compared to the Appropriations Committee concerning the amendments resulting from the
House action.

Rep. Porter said they did the funding amendments in the policy committee. There were a
couple of issues. They wanted to make sure it wasn't going backwards so wanted the
funding to be where it was last biennium. There was hesitancy to increase it prior to the
results of the study.

Senator Dick Dever asked if they had talked about any numbers other than 12 miliion or
2 million.

Rep. Porter said they did. That ta:['ked about 4 and 6. There was a demonstrated need to
be more than the 2 milion. . . i .

' i

Senator Tim Mathern asked what the House rationaie was to remove the Advisory
Committee requirement.
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Rep. Porter responded that the Advisory Commiittee is still a functioning committee inside
of the department. It was language in that bili that dealt with more of a mandatory type.
Right now it is a voluntary committee. The responsibilities were different for what the
committee would be doing out of the interim. He didn’t know what the rationale was to

change it. He thought part of it falls back to the study on how EMS should look in the
future. .

Senator Dick Dever asked, as a for profit ambulance service, if they had considerations of

legal liability when they are required to make calls outside of their service area that they are
not set up to do.

Rep. Porter said they have concerns of legal responsibilities every day they operate. They
aren’t any different when they are going other places.

He addressed the topic discussed earlier concerning a comparison to MN. He explained
how it works in MN and that it is a functioning national model. There really isn't the ability
to have competition inside of this industry especially in a low volume place like ND. He
explained the contracts in Bismarck/Mandan and how they provide their services.

One area the House didn’t look at that could be looked at is the way licenses are issued in
ND. Another area is proving the need for the license.

There was no opposition or neutral testimony.

The hearing on HB 1044 was closed.

Attachment #4 —Additional testimony from Jeremy Mattison, Kari Enget, and Cindy Voeller.

Committee Discussion: Moving forward with this and if the Advisory Committee should be
put in code. The advocates want it in code.,

The working connection between the trauma medical director and the EMS was briefly
discussed as well as removing the word “grants”.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Minutes: Attachments.

Senator Judy Lee opened committee work on HB 1044.

Representation on the Advisory Committee from the Association and the new organization
was discussed. There was concern on who should be on the Committee and whether the
legislature should determine who should be on it.

Substations and levels of licensure were explained and discussed.

The original bill was reviewed. There was interest in taking lines 7-13 on page 2 and
developing it to make it an advisory council or committee that would have statewide
credibility. Another preference for the bill was to look at the doliar amount and relate it to
specific development of the service.

The original intent of the bill was to ehmlnate the staffing grants but as it is amended it
leaves them and adds 2 million.

Senator Judy Lee asked if the committee was supportive of what the issue started out to
be before the paid survey and study which is to try to impiement statewide support for the
ambulance services.

There was agreement but also that if they establish a statewide program then they need to
consider the accountability that needs to be there, also.

Tom Nehring (Department of Health, Director EMS) appeared to give information and to
answer questions at the request of Senator Judy Lee.

First he talked to the committee about the advisory committee which is in health
department policy, not in statute. He explained the history, membership makeup, and
responsibilities. He pointed out that it is not necessarily well attended partly because the
committee is too large. He would like to see it a more workable committee. What it is
supposed to reflect are the stakeholders who touch EMS in the state of ND.

Senator Gerald Uglem asked how the EMS advocates fit into this.
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Mr. Nehring was familiar with the group and believed they were there as kind of the
legislative arm of the EMS Association. There is a structured fee schedule for different size
ambulances to belong to the advocates.

Discussion followed on the membership of the EMS Association, the Advocates, and
representation on the Advisory Committee.

Senator Tim Mathern asked if Mr. Nehring could develop a list of about 15, who they

would represent, how they would be appointed, and the rotation process for an advisory
committee.

Mr. Nehring said they could formalize the committee according to the committee
suggestions.

There was a suggestion to keep the committee to 12 or less.

There was concern about undue influence on where the funds would go. It is currently in
the hands of the Department of Health. Accountability of funds was discussed. There is a
system of checks and balances.

Funding was discussed. It is difficult to determine how much money is going to be needed.
There are a lot of pressures on EMS in ND at this point in time. Probably the greatest issue
is the staffing roster. Other issues were also addressed. It was the belief of Mr. Nehring
that EMS needs money for some relief but couldn’t say what the right number would be.

Training of EMT’s is very important. 72 hours of training is required per year. They need
that training to keep their skills up because they don't get it through experience.

Senator Tim Mathern asked if Mr. Nehring could provide a worksheet showing how the
4 million would be spent.

Mr. Nehring replied that it is the EMS bill and they haven't determined how they wouild
spend the money. Obviously, some would be for staffing grants. He said he would do the
best he could within the constraints that are placed on him within the Executive Branch.

Senator Gerald Uglem said it was his understanding that the 12 million originally
requested was to be used for staffing grants, replacement ambulance, training, and for
anything necessary to keep ambulance service going.

Senator Dick Dever recalled that in a previous session when talking about this issue the
issue wasn't having money to operate but rather having people to operate. Communities
do come out to support through fundraising efforts.

He wondered how the EMS and Trauma Services Director would be involved in
implementing this plan and how the Dept. of Emergency Services interacts with EMS if it's

more than just communication.
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Mr. Nehring answered that there is really very little interaction of the EMS people with the
Division of Emergency Services. The most significant interaction is through their state
radio.

One of the pressures being placed on some of the ambulance services is that they are
outgrowing the local fundraisers.

He pointed out a mistake in the past was that the ambulance services aligned themselves
with health care to get health care reimbursement. Unfortunately, the continuing ratcheting
down in health care costs has affected ambulances as well. Operating costs have started
to soar through the ceiling. They have never been treated as a public safety entity and they
still have to rely on health care dollars. That is not a good mechanism of reimbursement.

Senator Judy Lee mentioned that in Mr. Weber’s testimony the implementation date would
be July 1, 2012 for section 2. That would mean the same formuia would be in place for a
year and then the new program would go into place.

Discussion followed on what the ambulance services could spend.

The topic of the trauma director was brought up. Mr. Nehring read it as meaning that
person would be ¥ time for EMS and % time for Trauma.

Funding areas and operations areas were discussed. Mr. Nehring thought they were put in
the bill for two distinct and separate reasons.

Mr. Nehring agreed to get information back to the committee on the areas that were
discussed concerning the Advisory Committee, funding and other areas discussed.

Senator Gerald Uglem agreed to be a point person for the committee and help work on an
amendment for consideration by the committee.

Committee work was adjourned for the day.

N
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Minutes: Attachments.

Senator Judy Lee opened committee work on HB 1044.

Ken Tupa (ND Emergency Medical Services Association) was asked to address the
commitiee. He gave a synopsis of his amendments. Attachment #5

Senator Gerald Uglem pointed out that a change also needed to be made on line 18
page 2. They don't want to spend half the money the first year.

Discussison — appropriations are really in two bills. This bill would ask for 4 million and
1.25 million is the Department of Health budget HB 1004. The staffing grant process would
be changed to a funding area process the second year of the biennium. The idea is to fund

areas not services. After discussion it was decided to put in an amount instead of saying
Ya.

Tim Weidrich, (Section Chief, Emergency Preparedness Response) appeared in front of
the committee to explain the information requested by the committee and submitted by
Tom Nehring. Attachment #6

There has been some concern from stakeholders about how members are appointed to the
Advisory Council. He felt this addresses those concerns.

Senator Gerald Uglem requested crossing off the ND ambulance service advocates
because of the concern. He assumed there was a good chance one of those advocates
would be on the council anyway. He asked if he had any objection to the amendment.

Mr. Weidrich agreed that was a r_e'faso‘nable assumption and he seemed satisfied with the
amendments. ‘ -

Senator Judy Lee thought the EMS people mostly wanted the Advisory Council in statute

because they felt it gave it certain credibility. She agreed with pulling off the advocates (

group. It's more of a lobbying group.

LN
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Mr. Weidrich explained the process of appointing members from an organization.

Senator Tim Mathern stated that there seemed to be confusion with the number of
members stated in the amendment compared to what the department is requesting.

Discussion followed that the intention is not to limit to three. The intention is to say they
can appoint three but if more representation is needed it is up to the department to find
whoever they want to fill those positions. A suggestion was to set a maximum.

Senator Tim Mathern felt it should be spelled out in statute so the stakeholders could start
planning. If the list of members is not in statute he asked how they put it into effect.

Mr. Weidrich answered that it is a policy process.

The State Trauma Committee is established through rule and Century Code so a reference
to that would be appropriate.

The Dept. of Health was specifically excluded in the committee makeup suggestions
because it is advisory. They can’t advise themselves.

Senator Tim Mathern suggested that the department establish, by policy, how members
are selected, number of members 14 or less, policy include method of terms being
designated, method of changes to the membership being in staggered terms. If it is in
policy, they would have to follow their policy and everyone knows what it is.

Senator Judy Lee said that would formalize it. She noticed that there was not a consumer
rep on the list.

After some discussion they didn’t think there seemed to be a strong need for one.

Service areas were addressed. Mr. Tupa explained that funding areas could incorporate
one or more service areas. A service area is somewhat synonymous with an operations
area. He felt there were needs for designating the service areas.

Senator Judy Lee pointed out that the original bill had a definition for operations area. The
current one does not. She wondered if it should go back in.

Mr. Tupa said they were fine with the language before the committee — that it is permissive
and that the department may designate these areas.

Senator Gerald Uglem felt part of the confusion was that in the long run, in his vision, the
service areas would equal the funding areas.

Mr. Tupa explained funding services within funding areas.

Senator Judy Lee asked if there was any objection to Section 1- the waiver — if they were
ok with the "may designate their service areas”. There wasn't any objection.

They then moved on to the Advisory Council and discussed who should be included in the
membership and how it should be worded. (
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Other changes were reviewed and the intern was asked to draft an amendment reflecting
their discussions.

Committee work was closed for the day.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Minutes: Attachments.

Senator Judy Lee opened committee work on HB 1044,

The amendment drafted by the intern at the request of the committee was reviewed and it
was decided that some clarification was needed relating to the Advisory Council.
Attachment # 6 is the corrected amendment.

Senator Tim Mathern moved to adopt the amendments with the changes.

Seconded by Senator Dick Dever.

Roll call vote 5-0-0. Amendment adopted.

Senator Gerald Uglem moved a Do Pass as Amended and rerefer to Appropriations.
Seconded by Senator Dick Dever.

Rol call vote 5-0-0. Motion carried.

Carrier is Senator Gerald Uglem.



Page 1, line 2, after the second comma insert "an emergency medical services advisory

11.0242.04001 Adopted by the Human Services Committee
Title.05000

March 22, 2011

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1044

councit,”

Page 1, line 3, after the semicolon insert "to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section

23-27-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to emergency medical services
operations service areas;”

Page 1, after line 6, insert:

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 23-27-01 of the North
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as foliows:

1. The state department of health shall license emergency medicai services
operations-AfterJune-30-2084-the_and may designate their service
areas. The department shall iimit the issuance of a license for any new
emergency medical services operation based on the needs of the service
area-if-the-applicantforthe-rewlicense-waslisensed-beforeJuly-+-2001
and-was-subsequently relicensed-undersection23-27-04-5. A license for
an emergency medical services operation is nontransferable.”

Page 1, after line 18, insert:

"Emergency medical services advisory council.

The state department of health shall establish an emergency medical services
advisory council. The council must include at least three representatives appointed by
the North Dakota emergency medical services association, one individual to represent
basic life support and one individual to represent advanced life support, both appointed
by the state health officer, and other members designated by the state health officer,
not to exceed a total of fourteen members. The department shall consider the

recommendations of the council on the plan for integrated emergency medical services
in the state, development of emergency medical services funding areas, development

of the emergency medical services funding areas application process and budget

criteria, and other issues relating to emergency medical services as determined by the
state health officer. Council members are entitled to reimbursement for expenses in the

manner provided in section 44-08-04. The department shall establish by policy the
length of terms and the method for rotation of membership.”

Page 2, line 18, replace "one-half" with "one miliion two hundred fifty thousand dollars"
Page 2, line 21, replace "$2,000,000" with "$4,000,000"

Page 2, line 22, replace "4" with "5"

Page 2, line 26, replace "$2,000,000" with "$4,000,000"

Page 2, line 29, remove "The department may spend”
Page 2, remove I|nes 30 and 31

Page 3, line 1, replace "January 1" with *June 30"

Page No. 1 11.0242.04001
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Date: B-2I-30//

Roll Call Vote # {

2011 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTIONNO. _/2%%
senatt  HUMAN SERVICES

Committee

[] Check here for Conference Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number /L ORAYD 0420 ]

Action Taken: [} Do Pass ] Do NotPass [ Amended 4 Adopt Amendment

] Rerefer to Appropriations 1 Reconsider

Motion Made By Sen, 73)4:(,&,1,,\) Seconded By Sen. ,(Qq/m

Senators Yes | No | Senators Yes | No
Sen. Judy Lee, ‘Chairman v ‘\ Sen. Tim Mathern [y ‘\
Sen. Dick Dever P \\ l\ \\
Sen. Gerald Uglem,V.Chair. \\ v \\ l\ \l \\
Sen. Spencet Berry \\ v’ ll | | |
|

Total (Yes) A No [8)

Absent O

Floor Assignment

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:
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Roll Call Vote # __Z1

2011 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTIONNO. _ /Z¥¥
senate  HUMAN SERVICES

Committee

[[] Check here for Conference Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number /. 02U .- 04oO! T otle 55000

Action Taken: [ Do Pass [} Do NotPass N Amended ] Adopt Amendment

) Rerefer to Appropriations [ Reconsider

Motion Made By _Sen. é/g y/ Seconded By _Sen. "Qe/uﬂ/u
7

Senators | Yes | No \l Senators \\ Yes \\ No

Sen. Judy Lee, Chairman L | |lSen. Tim Mathern l\ L \\
Sen. Dick Dever \\ |/|l \\ \\ \\
Sen. Gerald Uglem, V. Chair \\ L \\ \\ \| \l
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Total (Yes) 4 No O

Absent
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If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent.




Com Standing Committee Report Module ID: s_stcomrep_52_016
March 23, 2011 1:36pm Carrier: Uglem
Insert LC: 11.0242.04001 Title: 05000

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
HB 1044, as reengrossed: Human Services Committee (Sen. J.Lee, Chairman)
recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends
DO PASS and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (5 YEAS,
0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Reengrossed HB 1044 was placed on the
Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 2, after the second comma insert "an emergency medlcal services advisory
counc;l "

Page 1, line 3, after the semicolon insert "to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section
23-27-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to emergency medical services
operations service areas;"

Page 1, after line 6, insert:

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 23-27-01 of the North
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

1. The state department of health shall license emergency medical services
operations—Afterdune-36:2004-the_and may designate their service
areas. The department shall limit the issuance of a license for any new
emergency medical services operation based on the needs of the service
area-i-the-applicant-for the-newlicense-was-Hicensed-beforeJuly 2001

. Allicense for
an emergency medical services operation is nontransferable."

Page 1, after line 18, insert:

Emergency medical services advisory council.

The state department of health shall establish an emergency medical
services advisary council, The council must include at least three representatives
appointed by the North Dakota emergency medical services association. one
individual to represent basic life support and one individual to represent advanced
life support, both appointed by the state health officer, and gther members
designated by the state health officer, not to exceed a total of fourteen members, The
department shall consider the recommendations ¢f the council on the plan for
integrated emergency medical $ervices in the state, development of emergency
medical services funding areas; development of the emergency medical services
funding areas application process and budget criteria, and other issues relating to
emergency medical services as determined by the state health officer, Council
members are entitled to reimbursement for expenses in the manner provided in
section 44-08-04. The department shall establish by policy the length of terms and
the method for rotation_of membership.”

Page 2, line 18, replace "one-half’ with "one million two hundred fifty thousand dollars"

Page 2, line 21, replace "$2,000,000" with "$4,000,000"
Page 2, line 22, replace "4" with "5"

Page 2, line 26, replace "$2,000,000" with "$4,000,000"
Page 2, line 29, remove "The department may spend"
Page 2, remove lines 30 and 31

Page 3, line 1, replace "January 1" with "June 30"

(1) DESK {3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_52_016
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL relating to ambulance operations areas, emergency medical services funding areas,
and state financial assistance for emergency medical services; relating to emergency medical
services allocations; to provide a statement of legislative intent; to provide an appropriation;
and to provide an effective date

Minutes: Teslimony Attached

Chairman Holmbefg called the committee to order in reference to HB 1044. Sara
Chamberlin, from Legislative Council and Tad H. Torgerson with OMB were also present.
Chairman Holmberg commented that they don’t have a deadline on this bill.

Mark Weber, ND Emergency Medical Services Association (EMS), testified in favor of HB
1044 and provided written testimony (See Attachment #1.) On page 2, paragraph 2 of his
testimony, the dollar amount is incorrect. It should read “($4 million in HB 1044 and $1.25
million in HB 1004).” for a total of $5.25 million dollars. Areas with multiple ambulance services
in a funding area would have to work together. When we look at the definition of reasonable
EMS, we look at approximately 85 to 90 areas. That can end up being different than what the
definition ends up being. From our calculations there are about 66 funding areas in North
Dakota that would have one ambulance service in it, and there are approximately 20+
ambulance services that would have more than one ambulance service. There are a few that
would have three ambulance services. His testimony states that this bill will provide long term
stability, ensuring reascnable EMS in ND well into the future. They are proposing a formula
based on cost vs expense. Right now the staffing grants allow a certain amount of money. Any
ambulance can apply for up to $45,000. There are some that need more money than that. If
you look at what it costs them to operate using a reasonable budget and how much money
they can generate, local match and billable revenue, there's a gap there for many ambulance
services. That gap is where we feel the amount that they receive should be. If you look at
Flasher, ND or New England, ND it would cost them $150,000 to have a manager to handle all
the administrative duties, then you have proper equipment and salaries for people, or
whatever. The base budget is $150,000:annually. You can see that there is a huge gap if they
can generate $40,000 and it costs them $150,000, they need $110,000 to operate that area.
We took each one of the gaps for each of the 88 areas, that is how we calculated the 12 miliion
dollars. If every funding area, all 88 of them, took advantage of that we would need the $12M.
We understand we probably won't use that whole amount because it takes a while for people
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to jump on board, understand how they work, understand how much money they can get, and
how the money benefits them. We understand that we currently cannot use the full $12M.

Senator Kilzer: Out of the 143 ambulance service areas in the state, how many do not receive
support from political subdivisions such. as city sales tax and mill levies on county property
taxes? .

Mark: There are only about 8 countie's that do not have money for EMS according to the
Health Dept.

Senator Kilzer: And how about city sales tax?

Mark: There are all types: there are taxes, there are mill levies, there are ambulance service
districts, there are all kinds of funding sources for them. Basically what this $10 per capita says
is you can generate that money however your area feels is the best way to generate a certain
amount of money for EMS in your area. The $10 per capita is the limit. There are areas that
do city tax and there are areas that do county tax; there are a variety of ways to generate local
money.

Senator Kilzer: | would like to see a compilation you might have.
Mark: You bet.

Chairman Holmberg: The Health Dept. subcommittee of Senator Kilzer, Senator Fischer, and
Senator Robinson will be looking at this bill in detail so you can get that information to Senator
Kilzer for the subcommittee work. We have other folks here that want to testify on the bill.

Senator Uglem District 19, Northwood: | would like to point out that over the last 30 years
ambulance service has grown from being just transportation to being highly effective pre-
hospital life-saving treatment. It has become an essential service for all citizens of North
Dakota. Our volunteer EMT's have carried the load for many years. We have about 1,800
EMT's in the state and most of them donate their time and talents to keep themselves
educated and to provide this essential EMS service to their communities and to any stranger
who may travel through their communities. They are doing a wonderful job of providing this
service, but many are getting stressed out with continuing education, call time, and staffing
shortages. They are sacrificing precious family time. Many find they have to drive to a larger
community for employment as their small town shrinks thus they can no longer take daytime
call. In oil country there is an increasing demand but no more volunteers.

The question was asked if some units have shut down in the last couple of years or are some
on the verge of shutting down.

Senator Uglem: We did not have testrmony in that regard, but we did pass legislation that the
nearest EMS unit must respond, so when one unit closes that makes the neighboring area

twice as big. Right now we are in fairly good shape with coverage but we can't afford to lose
very many.

Our volunteer ambulance needs help. The volunteer force is aging.
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Senator Uglem: In the past we had a lot of doctors coming back from Viet Nam that knew how
to treat trauma. Doctors trained today aren't trained that much in trauma and they don’t have
the experience. We need that trauma coordinator both for educating the doctors and
coordinating with the EMS services.

Senator Judy Lee, District 13, West Fargo spoke in favor of HB 1044. She passed out an
article from the Fargo Forum about President Reagan being shot. See Attachment #2. Most
physicians do not have trauma experience. It is important to have a trauma director, yet you
also need to have rural access to healthcare. The ambulance services are “it" and we are
looking at 30-40 minutes which is too long in the rural areas. HB 1044 doesn't give any money
to the urban areas. When we travel into the rural areas, we are taking a risk of having slow
ambulance service if we get injured. Also one thing about an ambulance volunteer that is
different than any other volunteer activity is that they don’t get to choose which hours they will
volunteer. We need to make sure the service areas border one another so all areas are
covered.

Senator Wardner: Wouldn't it work to just have the hospital administrators coordinate care
rather than have a trauma director?

Senator Lee: Some of that is already going on. There may be additional healthcare facilities
that do this but MeritCare and now Sanford has volunteered and has done a tremendous
amount of training of physicians in other places. It is beyond the point where one can do that
anymore. | recognize your challenge in trying to figure out what is the priority here. There is an
important component to each of these. We have seen some health facilities that have trauma
doctors do training for other facilities.

Ken Tupa with the North Dakota EMS Association: introduced an EMT from Dickinson who
works in New England. Bethany Staiger will have information with respect to the challenges of
EMS in North Dakota.

Bethany Staiger, representing New England Ambulance testified in favor of HB 1044. My
position is funded by a rural staffing grant. | moved here almost three years ago. As far as the
positive things the grant has brought, we have revved up our training. | became a paramedic,
so we have an advanced level of care in our area. We have taught first responder classes to
try to get people to volunteer. In the end we are not getting the volunteers that we need. The
bad part of the staffing grant is I've been going on three years not knowing whether or not |
have a job. The ambulance needs that grant money. | make $12.32/hour. We have major
staffing issues going on. | have gone to meetings where 6 different ambulance services were
represented. Each one of them had the same problem we had — lack of funding, lack of
volunteers. The average age of the people who go on the ambulance calls rurally is over 60.
People are heavy. As much as some people want to volunteer, in the next few years they are
just not going to be able to. We are not’ hawng the younger generation able to step up because
their employers don’t want them to leave work, they are working out of town, or they have
family obligations. EMS has found itself at a crossroads. It is underdeveloped in the rural
areas, trauma and medically. The cost of maintaining the equipment or replacing equipment
cannot be covered by what we can generate. We lose money every time we transport a
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what we can generate. We lose money every time we transport a Medicare patient, which is
the bulk of our services. If we continue to lose money it will affect our training, our staffing, and
our equipment.

Senator Robinson: Thank you for your testimony and for the work you do. You are the only
paid professional. How many volunteers do you have? And are they up in age?

Bethany: There are about 19 people on our squad, but there tends to be only 5 who actually
do the majority of the work.

Senator Robinson: How old is your vehicle and is that provided through a local mill levy? And
how large is your geographical area in southwestern North Dakota? What is the longest haul
you might have to make as far as time and miles from a medical facility? '

Bethany: Our vehicle is a 1993 ambulance. It is not 4-wheel drive so we have gotten stuck on
calls. Our geographical area, we have just over 800 square miles in our service area. We are
in Stark County, Hettinger County, and Slope County. We have gone on calls where we spend
30+ minutes just driving to where the call is. We have had transport times in excess of one
hour. It is a lot harder to take care of a sick person for an hour than for 5 minutes. Our people
need to be well trained and have good equipment.

Senator Robinson: If you had to buy a replacement vehicle, what would it cost?

Bethany: $160,000 was what another ambulance service paid. That did not include the
cabinet configurations, the top-mounts, or the equipment to go in the back of the truck.

Senator Robinson: How much local support do you have? Mill levies, that type of thing.

Bethany: Our ambulance gets one mill. All of our other money is from our ambulance calls.

| don't know how much that brings in. We have gone to our city council members, we have put
an ad out in the paper, and we intend to visit the several counties in our service area. There
are 1500 to 1700 people in our service area.

Senator Robinson: $12 something/hour for rescue staff volunteers... do you have a benefit
package?

Bethany: | do have benefits. Bear in mind there is enormous responsibility for people’s lives.
Each of us take that seriously. When it pays this poorly, it is hard to attract people to this line of
work.

Chairman Holmberg closed the hearing on HB 1044. SB 2210 was a housing bill that was
strongly supported in the Senate and by this committee. It was defeated in the House. It was
redone and it came back and it barely passed.

Senator Wardner: | would like to have'a chance to visit some people in the housing finance. If
they are good with it, | would say we concur and let it go.
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Vice-Chair Grindberg: SCR 4003 came from the interim Workforce Committee supporting
the future of the northern tier network. The House amendments in essence had further
blessing from the private telcoes in the language. That is in essence what the House language
did. We came to a new chapter in Northern Tier which is all positive and | would say we
concur.

Chairman Holmberg: We will take them both up within the next few days and get them out of
here by the end of the week.
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Senator Kilzer: Called the subcommittee hearing to order on HB 1044. Subcommittee
members Senators Fischer and Robinson were present.

Senator Kilzer: Was Mr. Weber the only person to testify on our hearing? Senators Gary Lee
and Senator Uglem also testified and several paramedics.

Senator Kilzer: Who would like to answer questions about the budget?

Ken Tupa, APT, Inc., (Lobbyist # 043) EMS Association. | can try.

Senator Kilzer: Now the requested amount at this stage is $5.25 Million right?
Ken Tupa: Correct. Senator Kilzer: What is it for the present biennium?

Ken Tupa: The present biennium is $2.25 Million. That funding is for the existing Staff and
Grant program which funds | believe 39, and its services about 108 eligible. HB 1044
maintains the existing Staff and Grant program. It proposes to maintain the existing Staff and
Grant program for the first year of the next biennium and then transition to a funding area
program for the second year of the biennium and moving forward, so there is a little change in
the funding policy. $ 5.25 Million is the current amount as $4 Million in this bill, $1.25 Million in
the Department of Health budget. HB 1044 has a $1.25 Million dollar amount that is directed to
the Staff and Grants for the first year of the next biennium. Therefore the remaining amount
would be $4 Million for the second year of the biennium for funding areas.

Senator Kilzer: In 1044, this is more than doubling what it is in the current biennium. As you
heard in the previous bill, we've cut $523, 000 out of the oversight by the Health Department.

Ken Tupa: | am not sure about the cuts, but that is what it sounded like yes. | understand this
is an increase from the current biennium.
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Senator Kilzer: It's more than doubling with stand the $523,000 to restore a part of that for
administration within the Department of Health? Are you just so completely separated?

Ken Tupa: | don’t know that we have a position or that | could speak to a position on that.
However, | can say that it is important to the association that funding be restored in the
Department of Health budget for the EMS position and for those services. It is very important
for the EMS. If you're asking if some of the dollars in this bill could be used for that, | don't
know if | could give you an answer because ! haven't been directed one way or the other on
that. We could certainly | think try to help.

Senator Kilzer: In the testimony from Mr. Weber, at least | had the impression, maybe it's
wrong, that there didn’t seem to be a real strong demand to use the training grants. Is that a
wrong impression by me?

Ken Tupa: There are two kinds of grants. There is a $1.24 Million for training grant in the
Department of Health budget and that's money that is used for training and continuing
education, and things like that for EMS in North Dakota. And then there is the $1.25 Million that
is used in the Executive budget that is used for the staffing grants to help fund the ambulance
services to help with their staffing needs. So there are those two items in the Department of
Health budget. The $4 Million in 1044, is for more or less staffing grant and for funding area
staffing grants moving forward

Senator Kilzer: Now staffing, does that mean that you're going to pay some volunteers?

Ken Tupa: it can mean that. The individual that spoke before the appropriations committee the
other day, from New England, the paramedic, she works in New England and lives in
Dickinson and New England does receive staff and grant assistance from the Department of
Health through the Staff and Grant Program; that money is used to pay her so that they can
have that 24/7 coverage to cover that area in New England. So, yes some of that money can
be used to pay. Mr. Weber cited some rural ambulance examples in his testimony. There are
some rural ambulance services that receive Staff and Grants where they may pay any
predominately these rural services are staffed with volunteers. Overwhelmingly, the majority
tend to be volunteers. But these Staff and Grant sometimes do help pay $.50, $1.00 hour,
$2.00 hour, to help offset some of that time and some of that costs to those individuals.

Senator Robinson: Am | correct in saying that the young lady that testified from Southwest
North Dakota, she as getting partially paid by a Staffing and Grant and that particular staffing
fee. Ken Tupa: Yes that was correct.

Senator Kilzer: Mr. Jerry Jurena, do your ambulances share in any part of the $5.25 Million?

Jerry Jurena, ND Hospital Association, (Lobbyist # 028): We did supply EMT’s to a number
of communities for coverage on weekends and they paid us. Now, whether they got the grant
money to do that or it came from the communities, | am not sure how they came up with the
money. We would get calls in Rugby asking for help on a weekend and various communities
across the state when | was up there.
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Senator Kilzer: So that is one of the things that ambulances are doing are requesting help
from the hospitals?

Ken Tupa: | don’t know about that. Jerry Jurena: One of the communities that | know that we
help with is called Grenora. They would come up with once a the weekend, maybe once a
month when they had nobody in town to staff their ambulance. So they would call around and
we seemed to have enough people on staff that we could send somebody out to help them out
on a weekend. | don't know where they came up with the money but they did pay for that
service.

Senator Kilzer: Then | get on my little soapbox and talk about changing demographics.
Should | say that hospitals are being expected more frequently to provide ambulance
services? Is that a general trend that's happening?

Jerry Jurena: When | was in Rugby, | had Leeds, Dunseith and one other community came to
me and handed me the keys to their ambulances and said they could not longer afford to have
volunteers run their ambulances. If | would take those keys, | would be responsible. Qur
hospitals would then be responsible for helping us supply volunteers and ambulance service to
their communities. So the answer | think is yes, as we go forward there's going to be less
volunteers available in the rural areas.

Senator Kilzer: The people that you would use to work the ambulances, | assume they have
other jobs in the hospital most of the time? Jerry Jurena: Yes, they did. We had an ambulance
billing service when | was in Rugby a number of rural ambulances were running into problems
with billing procedures and so we created a billing process in Rugby and the EMT's that | used
worked most of the time with that billing service and also cover the ambulance services for
Rugby, and if we needed to supplement it than other communities we would use those people,
to supplement outlaying communities.

Senator Kilzer: Closed the hearing on HB 1044.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

This is a subcommittee hearing relating to Emergency Medical Services.

Minutes: You may make reference to “attached testimony.”

Senator Kilzer called the subcommittee committee hearing to order on HB 1044.
Subcommittee members Senator Fischer and Robinson were present.
Becky J. Keller - Legislative Council; Sheila Peterson — OMB.

Senator Fischer: Over the weekend, | had many calls about the bill and asked Arvy Smith to
identify the money that was proposed, the money that is available, and where this money
would go? You have $1.25M that was proposed for the budget and part of that is for ...we
need an explanation.

Senator Kilzer: We can get info from health department on EMS funding.

Arvy Smith, Deputy Health Officer, ND Dept. of Health: All EMS funding in budget.
Senator Robinson In HB 1004, with amendments approved last week

Arvy Smith: Do you want all the funds? Various pockets of funding. $1.240M for EMT
training grant and that is currently several funds. That is HB 1004; There is $1.250M that is

the EMS staffing grant....HB 1004 coming from the insurance tax distribution.

Senator Fischer: Insurance tax distribution funds? Isitin HB 1004 with the amendments we
approved last week? :

Arvy Smith: Yes, they were in Governor's Executive Budget and the House maintained
them. Amendments passed last week did not impact those items. Here are other pieces in
that EMS position. We have federal grants for EMS services for children $232,000 federal
funding EMS in HB 1004.....it has not been (interrupted)

Senator Kilzer: Is that threatened by Euts by the feds?
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Arvy Smith: Haven't heard that yet. We have $83,000 hospital preparedness funding, so the
EMS division works closely with our preparedness emergency being prepared for disaster.
That is federal and in the budget. DOT funding 402 & 408: hearing we were losing our
funding. The Governor restored it with general funds at $523,900 and House removed it. The
amendments passed last week d|d not restore that. Then remaining $678,000 of the general
fund.

Senator Kilzer: $523,000 and the House removed it? Gov replaced with general funds?
Any match?

Arvy Smith. No...not currently. Those pieces didn’t require match. Then $678,000 of
general funds, aside from grants we were about cut in %2 for our ambulance checks, doing the
registration, and training.

Senator Kilzer: The $678,000, this is what ybu’ve had every biennium and this is for general
administration?

Arvy Smith: That has to cover the ambulance checks, licensure of ambulances; we have to
go out to inspect, do visits, and manage ali the grants in the grants line too. This is all general.

Senator Robinson: $678,000 is in or out of the budget? Answer IN.

Senator Robinson: And all general funds. So is that everything? Where are we short‘? On
the $523,900. How does that shortfail relate to HB 1044?

Arvy Smith: If 1044 passes, there are additional duties we have to do. HB 1044 does not
provide for any administration. It's entirely grants to EMS operations and their related
administration costs. It doesn’t provide any administration to us.

Senator Kilzer: You said the last two were DOT. Is the $523,900.... is that the 402 and 4087
Arvy Smith: That's what current budget would have for general funds other than the EMS
training grant. We had the additional $532,900 from the 402-408 that helped us do some of
the registration and analysis.

Senator Kilzer: That $523 always was federal funds until this year.

Senator Fischer: We're looking at staffing grants that are direct payments to ambulance
service $5.25M? When HB1044 came to the Senate, was that $2M°?

Avry Smith: Came out of the House as $2M. Yes.
Senator Kilzer: Do we know what presgent biennium funding for 1044.

Arvy Smith: Not_hi_hg other than the $1:250M staffing grants.

Tom Nehring; Division of Emergency Medical Services, ND Dept. of Health
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Arvy Smith: In the current biennium, that was higher another million move in there. That was
removed because was considered a onetime funding. This just started last biennium. In
2007-2009 we got the $1,250M in the last biennium, the million was added, so $1M was pulled
out as well as the additional 500,000 was also removed.

Senator Fischer: That's the reasoning behind $2M that Senate HS put in?

Senator Kilzer; In old 07-09, there was $1.25M, and in present biennium there was added
$1M so a total of $2.25M and that is a staffing grant from the insurance tax distribution fund.
And what is in the bill now?

Arvy Smith: It has $1.4M from the general fund
Senator Kilzer: No, in HB 1004.

Arvy Smith: HB 1044 is $4M. through the General Fund.
Senator Kilzer: The $1.25M is in the staffing grant?
Arvy Smith: Right and the $1.4

Senator Kilzer: HB 1044 goes from $1.25M to $4M

Avry Smith. Next biennium we would be at $5.25M ..... in the current biennium, we have
$2.25M ..... going from current to next biennium.

Senator Kilzer; An increase of $3M?

Senator Fischer; (Ken Tupa- question) Reasoning behind increase because volunteers
being roll over to fulltime? Are you losing volunteers? Can you give explanation from the
ambulance or EMS? Why this increase and why we should support it?

Ken Tupa: APT, Inc., (Lobbyist # 043) — The current funding is $5.25M is for staffing to help
with the staffing problem primarily rural EMS which is volunteer EMT’s and that money is used
to help to staff their persons 24/7. (Volunteers are more difficult to find.) The staffing grants
help to staff that ambulance service. In HB 1044 — adds money that adds $12M and was
amount shown to fund all of the identified funding areas and makes policy change from staffing
grants (which are currently 108 county ambulance services) area would create 80 funding area
which 75 would be eligible. These areas could have more than one ambulance service and
looking at the efficiency long term. We have to maintain ambulance service coverage. Can
we afford to sustain/fund 108 ambulances or would it be better to locate areas defining areas
and funding to a degree with a match component of $10 per capita. Does it make more sense
to allow those services to work together? Years from now, when you have one or two service
that might not be around because of lack of volunteers to get the money. Money started at
$12M; House HS reduced that to $3M, House appropriation reduced it to $2M, HS in the
Senate increased it to $4M. It is used to help staff some of these services and needed. Who
is responsible when you have the next closest? Response time is only so many minutes.
Critical that we maintain the coverage we have and know we can do that is we know because
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over the interim with 80-90 areas. If we look at changing the policy to create funding area
grants as opposed to staffing grants, you don't have to fund 108 services; only 75 areas.

Senator Kilzer: Her testimony was she was only paid person.

Ken Tupa: Yes, they contract with Dickinson. Have 19 volunteers. She is there to staff it
during the day.

Senator Kilzer: She is the contracted one that receives the money.

KenTupa: Is she paid by Dickinson. Some of those staffing grants are used by New England,
the contract is with Dickinson.

Senator Kilzer: With the Dickinson hospital or the Dickinson ambulance unit?

Tom Nehring: With the ambulance service in Dickinson and it has no relationship with
hospital.

Senator Kilzer: So the Dickinson ambulance receives money to provide service to New
England?

Tom Nehring: Money to provide individual to staff during the week in New England. She has
one leader responsibilities and just one of the scenarios that are played out there. Some have
some ambulance services with difficulty covering on weekends, so we see a number of
ambulance services who use staffing grants to bolster their staff on weekends. Some places
as NE have difficulty during the week and during the day as people are working out of town
and it has been used in many ways to get the staffing covered. There are current 39 grants in
ND and there are a variety of ways they have been used.

Senator Fischer: Isn't it some of the issue, in the 70s and 80s, the federal government set up
all the ambulance services all over? Now we're trying to keep all of them going, less hospitais,
and the volunteers are starting to disappear. Now we're asking state to pay for entire
ambulances throughout the state.

Ken Tupa: HB 1044 does a number of things to answer question. It does continue staffing
grants to have funding area grants. Local and state aid because we recognize the 140+
ambulance services in ND, 10 to 20 years from now, we may not have them there for these
reasons you addressed. We need to make sure we have coverage. There may be 2-3
ambulance and let them decide what their efficiency would be. It requires local match to
component of the $10 per capita before you can qualify for any of these grants. The $5.25M is
what 1044 and 1004 have....When you:look at local match, local communities and counties
and ambulance services area are putting into it, through levy's, sales tax, or bake sales, and
on top of that the revenue that is made from calls the reimbursement, that's 10 of millions of
dollars, the state portion of that is a small fraction of the total cost of funding and maintaining
the services.
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Senator Robinson: There are 39 staffing grants right now. ....unmet demands. The proposal
is to increase to 75 or 80 just to cover the immediate need. The amount of the grant is directly
tied to the local per capita $10...... is that correct?

Ken Tupa: The amount of the grant will be determined based on development of the
department of budget. What is the minimal reasonable cost to operate ambulance service?
What can they generate in revenue and what is their local match component is. What would
they be available for? Some rural areas might be eligible for $50,000 and some less rural
areas may be eligible for a lesser amount. Same of existing staffs. There might 88 which
maybe 70-75 are available, so really taking advantage of efficiencies.

Senator Robinson: Listening to the paramedic expressing the need for equipment (vehicle
was a 1993) from New England. Are they dependent on revenue from local mill levy to replace
equipment or anything else out to help replace? They have to suffering from a financial
perspective. Reliability... purchase of equipment would have to be a local effort depending
upon mill levy, unreasoning and revenue from ambulance services?

Ken Tupa: Yes. Staffing grants are just staffing.

Senator Kilzer: What prevents competition for grants? Example... give grant to ambulance
unit. What is incentive for neighboring ambulance units to say we should apply?

Ken Tupa: That’'s answered with HB1044. This interim we went through this study process.
Can we sustain funding under the 108-140 services in ND and we say no. Create funding
areas where you have one who receives ambulance service acts which is 35-40 miles from
ambulance service..... why.....one receives a grant and the other doesn’t. Why would one
receive that and another not when they might all be eligible, but does it make sense to be
funding three services when you can create a funding area, funded at a level that would be
lower than funding them individually and ailow them to decide their efficiencies along with a
local match so not overspending resources that are limited. 1044 is looking out over 10 to 20
years.

Senator Kilzer: Is this money coming from state....has this been realistically doing what
grants have been doing to public school districts to combine and enlarge and to take care of
thinning of the populations?

Ken Tupa: HB 1044 addresses that. | don't think we're studying consolidation. It's
reasonable to say that of the 108 eligible services, will all 108 be around in 10 years or is there
more efficient ways of covering these areas and ND adequately? If you are going to do this,
make sure you cover ND adequately with most efficient use of local and state aid as other
resources they can generate. Look at working together not forcing that, but allowing them to
work thru grants by creating these funding areas. Consolidation may take place ....funding
area will allow these services to work together to do what is best to achieve that efficiency.

Senator Kilzer: 108 ambulances.

Ken Tupa: 141 Ground ambulances services ....of that, 108 are currently eligible for the
staffing grant.
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Senator Kilzer: Do we need 141 ground ambulances in ND?

Ken Tupa: Can we afford to fund 141 ambulances? HB 1044 addresses that we can’t, but we
can do something that is reasonable and maintain coverage ....that is the funding area concept
verses the individual staffing grant.

Senator Fischer: Are 140 ambulances or ambulances services.

Ken Tuba: 108 ambulance services; 144 ambulances services. That particular example of
an ambulance service is Bismarck /Fargo, Dickinson/Grand Forks. They wouldn’t qualify.
....there is not a need for this. It's more rural.

Senator Fischer. What is average grant?
Arvy Smith: | don’t have those numbers on hand.

Tom Nehring: The 39 exiting staffing grants range from $2,000 to $45,000. Average was
$24,000. One of things we need to recognize, volunteers are not going away, and we don't
want to put all ambulances in full time bases. If they were staffed full time, it would take $15M
per year.

Senator Robinson: The volunteer is so challenged. The volunteers are getting older and
some our working outside community. Some drive into Fargo during the day....they are really
struggling. One volunteer is 78. In time, it looks like they are going to partnering with Lisbon.
Their town evacuates to Forman to Gwinner to work Melroe. They have volunteers, but to
have them there.....many work out of town. We’'ll see that happen naturally with demographics
with the aging population in rural ND. Good people, just running out of them.

Senator Fischer; Begs for same thing as critical access hospitals.

Senator Kilzer: Same as fire departments. Fargo every medical calls there, call for the fire
truck. ......paramedics with the fire truck

Senator Fischer: Calls the Fire truck because it's the same volunteers. Ability to fund is
different. They're stressed. How do you efficiently keep all of them? How do you deliver
health care to rural ND in 15-20 years?

Senator Robinson: |t is the changing of demographics

Senator Kilzer: Academy started orange book in 89 and students had a lot of spontaneity.
Their only expense was their book. Then it became a coliege credit course. Offered to receive
some reimbursement and now they are requiring more hours. Enthusiasm and spontaneity
has drifted away as the formality has increased.

Senator Fischer: When you‘said this 'bill came out of committee with a fiscal note of $12M.
What was intent of the bill and who to fund?
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Ken Tupa: $12M now was put to this bill and policy through the interim actually $12.6M. The
EMS association went service by service trying to determine what their eligibility would be.
What they could generate through reimbursement for their call volume. What they could
generate through this $10 per capita local manage? $150,000 for base budget for ambulance
for 1 year. Match requirement and call volume...... subtract that from average cost of service
and that’s the amount for a grant. If we are looking at funding 88 funding areas are including
urban area are self sustained. Say 79-75 were number that qualified them to receive grants
were $12.6M. | can provide you with that information and show you how it breaks
down....spread sheet...

Senator Kilzer: We would like to see a summary of that.

Senator Robinson: Two years ago, ambulance in Gackle shut down and Napoleon had to
pick that up area. '

Tom Nehring: Gackle is still operating. Only one lost is Minnewauken. They may have had
a waiver to be out of service for awhile...we will give them a certain amount of time for them to
build back up to become 24 hour ambulance

Senator Robinson: If Gackel goes by the wayside, that's a large area.....
Senator Robinson: Get that information tomorrow.

_Ken Tupa: Get today

Becky J. Keller: Last page of the bill, the effective date 05000 of bill — page 3, section 66,
section 2 and does that become effective on June 30, 2012 and it's supposed to be section 3.

Ken Tupa: Section 23-40 is the current staffing grant and what it does it maintains the current
process at the appropriate amount of $1.25M the first biennium and the second year or the
next biennium is transition to the funding area grant program. Section 3 is repeal and would
be effective on June 30, 2012. You're done and we’re moving forward with the funding area.

Senator Kilzer: No matter level what we come out of this appropriations, Section 3 would
have to be changed.

Ken Tupa: Yes

Senator Kilzer: Closed on 1044. Meet tomorrow again on 1044
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/fesolution:

A subcommittee vote on HB 1044 — emergency medical services.

Minutes: See attached testimony - # 1.

Senator Kilzer called the subcommittee committee hearing to order on HB 1044.
Subcommittee members are Senator Fischer and Robinson.
Roxanne Woeste -~ Legislative Council,

Senator Robinson was present and Senator Fischer was double scheduled with
subcommittee hearings and is at the HB 1206 subcommittee.

Senator Kilzer asked Legislative Council to prepare amendments (11.0242.04002 — see
attached #1) that would put the funding in HB 1044 at the level that it was at as it came from
the House to the Senate.  Roxanne, | have a little difficulty with the amendments lining up
with the bill. Could you tell us what they do?

Roxanne Woeste: | did not draft these amendments so I'm not familiar with them. 1 do know
that with these amendments, the funding does stay at the level that was proposed in the
House version of the bill. The second engrossment version .04000 if you have any questions
on how the two mesh.

Senator Kilzer: Yes, please go ahead and do that.

Roxanne Woeste: | don't have a copy of the amendments adopted by the Senate Human
Services. | can walk through them. This amendment makes the changes adopted the Senate
Human Services however, the funding Ievel stays at the level of $2M.

Senator Kilzer: The request in the unltlal bill was $12M, the House took it down to $2M and
then the Senate policy committee approprlated it back up to $4M and this will take it back
down to $2M.  I've shown this to Senator Fischer and I've given a copy to Senator Robinson.
This is what Senator Fischer and myself would like, but I'd like to ask Senator Robinson for his
comments.
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Senator Robinson: | know on the related bill, HB 1004, we have to deal with that today and |
don't want to get ahead of myself, but there's also the funding for EMS in that bill that we need
to address when we pass that biil out of committee either later this morning or this afternoon.
So if we approved the bill, this would be at the House level and it would not go into conference
committee, correct?

Senator Kilzer: As far as | know, there is nothing changed about the advisory council, or did
the Senate Human Services put that on, would that require a conference committee?

Roxanne Woeste: The amendments that you are looking at here would be the Senate version

“of amendments to the bill. It would go back to the House and if they agree to these

amendments. It would be their decision.

Senator Kilzer: That's right, we're number 2 this time around. So it would go back to them
to see if they want to concur or not.

I’'m not sure how to do this since we are missing a member although | do know that he is in
agreement with these amendments as am |.

Senator Robinson: | think we just bring these amendments to the full committee. That will
probably happen today, right?

Senator Kilzer: Yes, | think so. OK we will bring these to the full appropriations committee
and we will adjourn the subcommittee. -
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOR A DO PASS AS AMENDED FOR AMBULANCE OPERATIONS
AREAS; EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES

Minutes: You may make reference to “attached testimony.”

Chairman Holmberg called the committee to order in reference to HB 1044. Lori
Laschkewitsch, OMB and Sheila M. Sandness, Legisiative Council were also present.

Senator Kilzer: One short item before | get into the substance and that is the effective date
should say section 3 of this act becomes effective on June 30, 2012. That's right at the end,
that's a typo or a change that needs to be made with this amendment. When | do move the
amendment | would ask that that would be included also.

Chairman Holmberg: It's on the bottom of first page of Kilzer amendments, where it says
June 30", it should say June 30", 20

Senator Kilzer: | was looking at the bill 05000 second engrossment with Senate amendments
and on page 3 the very last sentence, section 6, where it says section 2 of this act becomes
effective June 30", 2012; It should be section 3.

Chairman Holmberg: So thatis included in the amendment. He was told yes.

Sheila M. Sandness: Let me do some checking here, you are amending the bill as it came
over from the House. These amendments are in lieu of the amendments that were adopted by
the Senate Policy Committee. I'll double check, to make sure it is right you might have to look
a different version of the bill.

Chairman Holmberg: But you will get-it right? He was told yes. Let's go forward. Tell it what
it is, what it does, we'll vote on it and Sheila will make it right.

"
Senator Warner: Are you working on-the 400 not the 500 version of the bill?
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Sheila M. Sandness: That is correct. You would need to go back to the 4000 version because
these amendments are in lieu of the amendments that were placed by the policy committee.
So you are incorporating their amendments and then making changes.

Senator Kilzer: The history of funding of ambulances, and that's what this bill is about, is that
in 07-09 biennium the funding was $1.25M for the ambulance services, this is over and above
the funding in the health dept which includes $1.24M for EMT training grants and this is all
general funds in HB 1004, there is also another $1.25M staffing grants and that comes from
the Insurance Taxed Distribution Fund, and that's also in the Health Department budget.
There's also $332,000 for children in federal funds in the Health Department and $83,000 of
hospital emergency preparedness disaster federal funds in HB 1004. In DOT there is also
$523,000 of general funds that had been removed by the House, and there's also $678,000 of
general funds for ambulance training and licensure and that sort of thing. So those are in
addition to what this is here. | said in the 07-09 biennium there was $1.25M granted, in the
present biennium it was increased $1M up to $2.25M and the amendment that you have
before you would put that at ancther million so it would be in addition to the $1.25M it would be
the $2M. Now our policy committee had increased that to $4M and the original request was for
$12M. This would be an increase of $1M over the present biennium.

Chairman Holmberg: But it's less than what the policy committee recommended. They
recommended $4M, You reduced that increase but it's still an increase over the last biennium.

Senator Kilzer moved the amendment #11.0242.04002. Senator Fischer seconded.

Senator Robinson made comments regarding recent testimony on this bill concerning a dire
need for updated equipment, ambulance, partnering within small communities, the need for
younger people to serve as EMT's as the work is tough. The interim committee studied this
and recommended some $12M to try and get this thing back on track, This bill is a $1M over
the present biennium but just some comments

Senator O'Connell made comments that this was studied during the interim and the people
made a strong case for it. They are parinering in some small communities, you have one
central point that covers during the day, and when people come home from work, they
probably take over for that, this has been a good strong program.

A Roll call was taken on amendment #4002. Yea: 9; Nay: 4. Motion carried
Senator Kilzer moved a Do Pass as Amended. Seconded by Senator Fischer.
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON A DO PASS AS AMENDED ON HB 1044. YEA: 13;

NAY: 0; ABSENT: 0. Senator Fischer will carry the bill. The hearing was closed on HB
1044, ,

—_—— . =
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11.0242.04002 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title. Senator Kilzer
April 4, 201

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1044

In lieu of the amendments adopted by the Senate as printed on pages 855 and 856 of the
Senate Journal, Reengrossed House Bill No. 1044 is amended as follows:

Page 1, line 2, after the second comma insert "an emergency medical services advisory
council,”

Page 1, line 3, after the semicolon insert "to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section
23-27-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to emergency medical services
operations service areas;"

Page 1, after line 6, insert:

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 23-27-01 of the North
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

1. The state department of health shall license emergency medical services
operations-AfterJune-30-200+-the_and may designate their service
areas. The department shall limit the issuance of a license for any new
emergency medical services operation based on the needs of the service

area ; :
5. Alicense for

an emergency medical services operation is nontransferable.”

Page 1, after line 18, insert:

"Emergency medical services advisory council.

The state department of health shall establish an emergency medical services

advisory council. The council must include at least three representatives appointed by

the North Dakota emergency medical services association, one individual to represent
basic life support and one individual to represent advanced life support, both appointed

by the state health officer, and other members designated by the state health officer,

not to exceed a total of fourteen members. The department shall consider the
recommendations of the council on the plan for integrated emergency medical services

in the state, development of emergency medical services funding areas, development

of the emergency medical services funding areas application process and budget
criteria, and other issues relating to emergency medical services as determined by the

state health officer. Council members are entitled to reimbursement for expenses in the

manner provided in section 44-08-04. The department shall establish by policy the
length of terms and the method for rotation of membership.”
1

Page 2, line 18, replace "one-half" with;"one million two hundred fifty thousand dollars"
i
Page 2, line 22, replace "4" with "5"

Page 2, line 29, remove "The departm_ént may spend”
Page 2, remove lines 30 and 31

Page 3, line 1, replace "January 1" with "June 30"

Page No. 1 11.0242.04002



. Renumber accordingly

Page No. 2 11.0242.04002
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April 7, 2011 8:34am ' : Carrier: Fischer
Insert L.C: 11.0242.04003 Title: 08000

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
HB 1044, as reengrossed and amended: Appropriations Committee {Sen. Holmberg,
Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended,
recommends DO PASS (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0ABSENT AND NOT VOTING).
Reengrossed HB 1044, as amended, was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

In lieu of the amendments adopted by the Senate as printed on pages 855 and 856 of the
Senate Journal, Reengrossed House Bill No. 1044 is amended as follows:

Page 1, line 2, after the second comma insert "an emergency medical services advisory
councn "

Page 1, line 3, after the semicolon insert "to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section
23-27-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to emergency medical services
operations service areas;"

Page 1, after line 6, insert:

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 23-27-01 of the North
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

1. The state department of health shall license emergency medical services
operations—-AfterJune-30-2004+the and may designate their service
areas. The department shall limit the issuance of a license for any new

emergency medical services operation based on the needs of the service
area

A Incense for
an emergency medical services operation is nontransferable.”

Page 1, after line 18, insert;

'Emergency medical services advisory council.

The state department of heaith shall establish an emergency medical services
advisory council. The council must include at least three representatives appointed
by the North Dakota emergency medical services association, one individual {0
represent basic life support and one individual to represent advanced life suppert
both appeinted by the state health officer_and other members designated by the
state health officer_not to exceed a total of fourteen members. The department shall
consider the recommendations of the council on the plan for integrated emergency
medical services in the state, development of emergency medical services funding
areas, development of the emergency medical services funding areas application
process and budget criteria_and other issues relating to emergency medical services
as determined by the state health officer. Council members are entitled to
reimbursement for expenses in the manner provided in section 44-08-04. The
department shall establish by policy the length of terms and the method for rotation
of membership."

Page 2, line 18, replace "one-half" with "one million two hundred fifty thousand dollars”

Page 2, line 22, reptace "4" with "5"

Page 2, line 28, remove "The departn:lent may spend"
Page 2, remove lines 30 and 31

Page 3, line 1, replace "2" with "3"

Page 3, line 1, replace "January 1" with "June 30"

{1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_63_002
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Insert L.C: 11.0242.04003 Title: 06000

Renumber accordingly

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 2 s_stcornrep_63_002
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Minutes: You may make reference to “attached testimony.”

Rep. Weisz: Called the conference committee to order and roll call was taken and all
members were present.

Sen. Judy Lee: It was indicated that some improvements could be made in developing
comprehensive service in a cost effective way. The Senate policy committee sent it out
with $4 million and appropriations (looking at the 05000 version) recommended that we
drop that to $2 million and that amendment failed on the floor. So the Senate as a whole
sent back to you again with the $4 million dollars in it Sen. Uglem said there should be a
correction in Section 6 about effective dates. That should be Section 3 rather than Section
2. We need to make that correction.

Rep. Weisz: When the amendments were defeated on the floor it reverted back to the
5000 version and that should be the correct version instead of the 60007

Sen. Uglem: | believe 5000 is correct. That aiso included the advisory council that the
House did not have in there.

Rep. Weisz: Sen. Uglem did you want to expand on the advisory council some; what you
did put back in and why?

Sen. Uglem: We put in 3 representatives by the ND EMS Association because they do
represent 75% of the EMT's in the state. So, we felt they should have a strong
representation. We also included one individual to represent basic life support and one to
represent advanced life support to give the opportunity to anyone who was not a member
of the EMS Association to participate. And beyond that we left it up to the department to
select the rest of the members and not to exceed 14.

Rep. Pollert: You mentioned 75% are paying dues of the association and 25% that are
not. And you stated one for advanced and one for basic life support. Are all the non-
members who are part of the association not specialized in that group? Is there going to be
representation on this board of non-members?
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Sen. Uglem: The non-members aren't organized in any type of association. It might be
hard to come up with non-association members who want to participate. We left it open so
the department has the opportunity to pick somecne if they come forward.

Rep. Weisz: Considering that the vast majority will be appointed by department anyway;
would it be reasonable to allow the department to pick the broad spectrum of who they
thought would be best?

Sen. Uglem: ! know the EMS association would like to have their name in here, but don't
think there would be any heartburn if your side insisted on that.

Sen. Lee: We thought it was more important for the house on that than the department.

Rep. Weisz: | think that came out of the interim committee and went from there. The
policy committee in the house looked at changing the makeup and making sure there were
at least members of others and then it was completely taken out in appropriation. There
seems to be issues on who or who shouldn't be on.

Rep. Pollert: After the bill left the policy committee and it was $3 million, there was a
discussion of, could there not be a conflict of interest and that is why that group was pulled
out of the bill. That is why we said it would be up to the Dept. of Health on the
recommendations.

Sen. Lee: There would be stakeholders on any board. | wouldn’'t have suspicions about
the motives of those on the board. Could we have someone from the department or EMS
group if they ever thought about being specific?

Rep. Weisz: There was some concern on the House side. Could the association
determine where the funding goes to?

Sen. Bowman: Once a board is established people can come to the legislative process
and bring their case why they should be on the board and you can change the board.

Rep. Weisz: We are not uncomfortable putting the council back in.

Rep. Pollert: I'd like to bring up some wording in the bill that is of concern to me. There
are definitions of minimum reasonable costs on page 2 of 05000 and on page 3 there is
minimum annual funding necessary. When | read the bill, it aimost sounds like a mandate
because it talks about the $10 per capita and also talk about reimbursements and then they
give you the amount of money that is that is required from the state. Minimum reasonable
cost is not the same as minimum annual funding. | know the original bill was $12 million so
my concern is, could there be a mandate instead of being at $4 million that it really could be
$12 million. | know this bill does not-take effect until the second year of the biennial. | need
clarification because normally the legislature sets the funding. As an example, it would stay
at $2 million, so they would have gotten a prorated amount of money per district. | would
like a clarification from somebody if there is a wording conflict or do | need a comfort level
knowing it will be up to the legislature on what they want to appropriate.
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Rep. Weisz: We will get a clarification on that.

Sen. Uglem: The minimum reasonable cost points to the total cost to operate the system.
The minimum annual funding necessary would be less the income billed from runs. It has
been always my assumption if the funding wasn’t adequate to appropriate all that money.

Rep. Weisz: This seems to imply that once they determine the difference here they are
going to fund it.

Sen. Lee: We do have a definition on top of page 2 of what minimum reasonable cost is.
Maybe what we need is comparable definition of minimum funding.

Rep. Weisz: We will run this by council.

Sen. Bowman: The cost of operating this is it the same in all the areas or is there some
areas higher than others? If they all turned in their costs, would you take the average of all
of them and would that establish the minimum daily costs?

Rep. Weisz: There will be substantial difference between ambulance services on what
they would qualify for. It will take a look at the match and the revenue produced and the
gap is what they would quality for.

Rep. Holman: | see the problem on top of page 3 and on line 31 on page 2. That deals
with information provided and not funding.

Rep. Weisz: Only other issue is the $2 million out of the House and $4 million out of the
Senate. We will have to try and get an agreeable amount on both sides.

Sen. Lee: Those that are paid ambulance services, they are not in on that and this is for
the volunteers. '

Sen. Bowman: The ambulance service at Belfield only have 2 people and because of the
oil field they are having so many calls that they have to call on neighboring ambulance
services to help them out. We are better to look at this as a cost of doing business.

Rep. Weisz: Adjourned.
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Minutes: You may make reference to “attached testimony.”

Rep. Weisz: Opened the conference committee meeting on HB 1044. Roll call was taken
and all members were present. The first issue is on page 3, line 5, on the minimum annual
funding whether that could be considered a mandate. Legislative Council said there isn't
any problem with that language. It doesn't mandate or obligate that the department fund
that. It is strictly based on the appropriation. They are comfortable with the language. The
other issue has to do with the emergency medical services advisory council which is on
page 2. There was a suggestion that there should be a language change so it would
broader as far as who would be appointed.

Sen. Judy Lee: In general it would be accurate to say that we are not hung-up on saying it
is the emergency medical association, but rather if it was more generic and said
organization or something like that.

Rep. Weisz: The language that was suggested said, “The council must include at least
three representatives appointed by ND professional emergency medical services
organization. The other spots then would be appointed by the Health Dept.

Rep. Pollert: Would professional emergency medical services mean the EMS volunteers?

Rep. Weisz: Any EMS group. It has nothing to do whether they are paid or not. Somebody
from one of the three would need to be appointed from those types of organizations. |
would assume most of them are volunteers.

Rep. Pollert: | know they go through training and are actually professionals, but they are
volunteers. | want to make sure that is clear.

Rep. Weisz: We could just say emergency medical services arganization.

Ken Tuba: | think the word professional would reference a professional organization.
Maybe the question is what is organization? Does that mean the service like an ambulance
service versus like the realtor's organization? | think that is the reason for the word
professional to clarify that.
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Sen. J. Lee: We could ask Legislative Council to make sure we are using the right
language. | hope we are not limiting the people on the advisory council to not include
anybody from those professionally paid ones. | would like to not limit it to people who are
only members of the volunteer organization.

Rep. Weisz: The wording could be, "the council must include three representatives
appointed by ND Emergency Medical Services Professional Organization. We can ask the
Legislative Council to look at this.

Sen. Bowman: What was the reasoning for developing this council that is different than
what can all ready be done when you are dealing with emergency medical services?

Rep. Weisz: Many thought it was important that the Health Dept. should be receiving
advice on the staffing grants and the reasonable cost areas funding. The council has been
very useful and we wanted to continue with this. We were trying to structure language so
that everyone has a voice.

Sen. Bowman: With communications that we have today if you put out a memo to
everyone through a computer everyone would get the information and wouldn't need an
advisory council. I'm open to suggestions, but | want to see how it is an advantage to
emergency services if we do this.

Sen. J. Lee: The Health Dept. has had an advisory committee all along. That was larger
and now we are limited it to 14. This makes it smaller and puts it in statute.

Rep. Pollert: If there is a professional volunteer and is not a member of the EMS
association, | want to make sure they have a chance to serve on that council. Is there a
reason that the number is 14?7 |f there is a vote there could be a tie. Why not an odd
number?

Sen. Uglem: This is an advisory council and | don't know that a vote of the council means
anything.

Rep. Pollert: If the council takes a vote of something they want to come forward, is there
votes or not?

Rep. Weisz: Let's say the council has a tie, it tells the Health Dept. it is a non-agreeing
Issue.

Sen. J. Lee: My view is that it is a group who wants to gain consensus. Not troubled with
number. | would think they would be pretty close to being unanimous on issues.

Sen. Uglem: For the benefit of Sen. Bowman, the existing advisory committee includes a
Senator, two doctors, it will include more than EMT’s from the ambulance squads. It will
other professions involved in trauma and how to make our ambulance services better.

Rep. Weisz: I'll have L.C. look at this and maybe change the language to say, professional
emergency medical services organization. The only issue we have left is money. On the
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0 House side we still need some discussion. I'm not prepared to go into the money in this
meeting unless you have something to add.

Sen. Lee: If my colleagues are agreeable to the council language, | certainly would be and
we can start with that.

Rep. Weisz: Meeting adjourned.
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Minutes: - You may make reference to “attached testimony.”

Rep. Weisz: Called the conference committee meeting to order on HB 1044. Roil call was
taken and all members were present. The only issue left was the funding levels. There are
issues that have come up in the Health Dept.

Rep. Pollert: I'd liked to make a motion for the appropriation for Section 5 on amendment
5000 and it shows $4 million and | make a motion for $2.75 million.

Rep. Holman: Second

Rep. Pollert: | understand the $2 million that came from the House side and would
support that, but | don't think that will have grounds to move forward. When | look at the
health dept. budget, there is $1.25 million on staffing grants currently. So $2.75 million and
the $1.25 million will make $4 million. I'm also looking at the heath dept. budget as well.
I've talked to other people who say they aren't related, but yes they are related. One
example is STEMI. It seems to be a number for me that works.

Sen. Bowman: | commend Rep. Pollert for the attempt. | think a lot of the money depends
on where you come from in the state and how much your ambulance services used. Where
| come from it is unbelievable the number of calls they are getting now that the oil patch is
moving south. I'll give you an example. The Medecra group has told me they are helping
because Belfield has only two people left to run the ambulance. They have a huge influx of
need because of oil going at the north and south ends. They can't keep up because of the
oil field boom. There are many traumatic injuries that occur and usually very serious
injuries. | know this will help, but won’t solve the critical problem that we have. | appreciate
the offer.

Rep. Weisz: Yes this is a separate bill and unfortunately we do tie everything together.
There is some concern on the STEMI grants to make sure those happen and | hope they
happen. It takes $600,000 to do the match for that and that is a total of 4 million doliars.

Sen. Judy Lee: | wish this would have been brought up as a point for discussion rather
than a motion because we haven't had an opportunity to visit about it on our side of the
table. | also want to know whether or not we can we be assured that the $1.25 will be in
the health dept budget?
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Rep. Weisz: | share your concerns and the language under Section 4 probably needs to
include the number that is currently in the budget rather than saying, “the combined must
used in addition to the appropriation in1004. Obviously if the appropriation wouid go away
the intent language doesn’t mean anything.

Rep. Pollert: I'm not on that conference committee, but | chaired that section. | haven't
had any discussions with the leadership on our side about affected the $1.25. When |
mentioned the two figures that is where I'm coming from for the $4 million total. | talked to
the conference committee numerous times during the day and there has been no
discussion of reducing the $1.25 million.

Rep. Weisz: | think we would have that assurance if we did send it out. We can leave it
open for the next meeting. We can vote on this now.

Sen. Uglem: I'd ask that the proposed amendment be withdrawn and we can consider it.
I'd be more comfortable with $3.25.

Sen. Bowman: We are dealing with a life and death issue. This is to be able to have
services when they are needed and have people trained to take care of that need. We can
get along without funding for an awful lot of things. You can cut the budgets and still get
along pretty good. But, when you are talking about someone’s life; that is one of the
services we should really pride ourselves in. | take a little different view on this than other
budgets that we do because of what it stands for.

Rep. Pollert: | appreciate Sen. Bowman's comments. | myself am trying to figure out how
to fund STEMI. We you want to have something that is going to directly affect a life it is
going to be the STEMI. Both of these are correlated. I'll withdraw the motion.

Rep. Holman: Second.

Rep. Weisz: We will reschedule. Meeting adjourned.
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Minutes: You may make reference to "attached testimony.”

Rep. Weisz: Opened the conference committee meeting on HB 1044. Roll call was taken
and all members were present. We discussed the funding level yesterday and there was a
motion that was pulled. | assume the Senate side had some discussion.

Sen. Uglem: We are feeling that $2.75 million might be a little short. We are looking at the
$1.25 million that is in the Health Dept. budget to carry the staffing grants for the first year.
So the funding in this bill would be for the service areas for the second half of the biennium.
The minimum we can go for is $3.25 million to get the new system started. | make a
motion for $3.25 million.

Sen. Bowman: Second.

Sen. Bowman: The way | understand this bill is that when it came in they asked the $12
million to coordinate this. The groups that do this studied how to make our services better
for everyone, especially in the rural areas, so we aren't duplicating and crossing over asked
for $12 million to get started. If this is all coordinated, it benefits everyone in the state and
we can't lose. We will have the best service.

Sen. Uglem: The goal of this new system is to be more efficient. It will be to encourage the
ambulance services to work together.

Rep. Pollert: My question has never been whether the services are essential and change
needs to come about. I've been voting that way as well. I'm just looking at the other items
we are trying fund in other budgets. That's why | will resist the $3.25. There are other
items that we are trying work on and fund them because they are important and related to
the Health Dept. or the ambulance services as well. It is a different are, but it is still related.

Sen. Judy Lee: We all want to do the right thing. The urban areas whom there will be no
financial benefit from them support this. We are going to make sure every inch of the state
is covered. We were told of somebody taking the ambuiance to the hospital one Friday
afternoon and saying, it is all yours because we don’t have enough people to staff it. We
have to make a coordinated effort. Legislative Council is working on putting together the
other changes we talked about with the professional organization. We thought it would be
helpful to have something on paper to work from.
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Sen. Bowman: | respect offer made yesterday it just doesn't quite meet the needs of the
basis there is for this. That is what we are trying to cover.

Sen. Uglem: | would like to point out they are really having trouble finding volunteers and
those volunteers are stressed out. If we get a good program set up and get someone in
there to manage the operation, say a paramedic that is there all the time, it will be easier to
find volunteers. When working with only volunteers it is tough put the load on somebody to
manage the system. We need managers in each system.

VOTE: 4y 2n 0 absent
Motion Failed

(Sen. Lee asked for a recess to discuss this issue with her colleagues.)

Sen. Bowman: After going to the woodshed we want to get this settled in this conference
committee. | understand the budgeting part very well. | know if you don’t budget enough
money, you might as well not budget at all. If we can get $3 million with that other money
maybe they can make it work. Then it puts the responsibility on them to try and coordinate
this and come back in the next session and tell us where they are at. If you need time to
think about that we will give you the time.

Rep. Pollert: | appreciate the chance to mull this over.

Rep. Weisz: We will adjourn until late this afternoon.

pE N
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Minutes: See Attachment #1

Rep. Weisz: Called the conference committee on HB 1044 to order. Roll call was taken
and all members were present. There are some suggested amendments here. (Proposed
amendments passed out. See attachment #1)

Sen. Judy Lee: The amendment should be 04006. This is the same that | had shared with
everybody a couple of days ago. We were looking at designated service and there is
nothing new there. The advisory council we changed to the emergency medical services
organization and the $2 million went to $3 million. And then the $2.5 million was included
that is already in HB 1004 which will be for the staffing for year one. Then the date was
moved to June 30.

Rep. Weisz: Looks good to me.

Sen. Bowman: | move amendments 11.0242.04006. (At the end of the recording Rep.
Weisz asks Sen. Bowman if he wants the Senate to recede from its amendments and he
says yes.)

Sen. Uglem: Second.

Sen. Lee: We recognize the need to balance all of this and we talked with leadership on
both sides and figured ways to balance this out. We are making sure the ambulance
services will be able to move forward with the service areas and planning they need to do.
VOTE: 5y 1 n 0 absent

Motion Carried

Bill Carriers: Rep. Weisz and Sen. J. Lee
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11.0242.04006 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 1[
Title.07000 Senator J. Lee NIEY
Fiscal No. 1 April 20, 2011 115>

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1044

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1509 and 1510 of the House
Journal and pages 855 and 856 of the Senate Journal and that Reengrossed House Bill
No. 1044 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 2, after the second comma insert "an emergency medical services advisory
council,"

Page 1, line 3, after the semicolon insert "to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section
23-27-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to emergency medical services
operations service areas;"

Page 1, after line 6, insert:

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 23-27-01 of the North
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

1. The state department of health shall license emergency medical services
operations—-AfterJune-36—2004the and may designate their service
areas. The department shall limit the issuance of a license for any new
emergency medlcal services operation based on the needs of the service
area

and-was-subsegquentlyrelicensed-undersection 2327045 Ahcense for
an emergency medical services operation is nontransferable.”

Page 1, after line 18, insert:

Emergency medical services advisory council.

The state department of health shall establish an emergency medical services
advisory council. The council must include at least three representatives appointed by
an emergency medical services organization, one individual to represent basic life
support and one individual to represent advanced life support, both appointed by the
state health officer, and other members designated by the state health officer, not to
exceed a total of fourteen members. The department shall consider the
recommendations of the council on the plan for integrated emergency medical services
in the state. development of emergency medical services funding areas, development
of the emergency medical services funding areas application process and budget
criteria, and other issues relating to emergency medical services as determined by the
state health officer. Council members are entitled to reimbursement for expenses in the
manner provided in section 44-08-04. The department shall establish by policy the
length of terms and the method for rotation of membership."

Page 2, line 18, replace "one-half" with "one million two hundred fifty thousand dollars"
Page 2, line 21, repiace "$2,000,000" with "$3,000,000"
Page 2, line 22, repiace "4" with "5"

Page 2, line 22, after "the" insert "$1,250,000"

Page No. 1 11.0242.04006
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Page 2, line 26, replace "$2,000,000" with "$3,000,000"
Page 2, line 29, remove "The department may spend"
Page 2, remove lines 30 and 31
Page 3, line 1, replace "2" with "3"
Page 3, iine 1, repiace "January 1" with "June 30"
Renumber accordingly
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House Bill No. 1044 - State Department of Health - Conference Committee Action

Conference Conferance
Executive House Committes Committee Senate Comparison
Budget Version Changes Version Version to Senate
Emergency medical services $2,000,000 $1,000,000 $3,000,000 $4,000,000 ($1,000,000)
grants
Total all funds $0 $2,000,000 $1,000,000 $3.000,000 $4,000,000 {$1,000,000)
Less estimated income 0 . I} 0 0 0 0
General fund 30 $2,000,000 $1,000,000 $3,000,000 $4,000,000 ($1,000,000)
FTE 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.00

Department No. 301 - State Department of Health - Detail of Conference Committee Changes

Total
Conference
Adds Funding Committee
for EMS Grants' Changes
Emergency medical services $1,000,000 $1,000,000
grants

Total all funds $1,000,000 §1,000,000
Less estimated income 0 0
General fund $1,000,000 $1,000,000
FTE 0.00 0.00

' The conference committee increased funding for emergency medical services assistance grants from
$2,000,000 provided by the House to $3,000,000. The Senate provided $4,000,000.

The conference committee included changes made by the Senate to create an emergency medical
services advisory council, provide that the State Department of Health designate emergency medical
services service areas, and limit the state financial assistance for emergency medical services in the first
year of the biennium to $1.25 miliion. In addition, the conference committee provided that three
representatives of the emergency medical services advisory council be appointed by an emergency
medical services organization, this is changed from the North Dakota EMS Association.

Page No. 2 11.0242.04006
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Com Conference Committee Report Module ID: h_cfcomrep_74_004
April 27, 2011 8:20am
Insert LC: 11.0242.04006

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE
HB 1044, as reengrossed: Your conference committee {Sens. J. Lee, Uglem, Bowman and
Reps. Weisz, Pollert, Holman) recommends that the SENATE RECEDE from the
Senate amendments as printed on HJ pages 1509-1510, adopt amendments as
follows, and place HB 1044 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1509 and 1510 of the
House Journal and pages 855 and 856 of the Senate Journal and that Reengrossed House
Bill No. 1044 be amended as follows;

Page 1, line 2, after the second comma insert “an emergency medical services advisory
council,"

Page 1, line 3, after the semicolon insert "to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section
23-27-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to emergency medical services
operations service areas;"

Page 1, after line 6, insert:

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 23-27-01 of the North
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

1. The state depariment of health shall license emergency medical services
operations—AfterJune-30,2004+the_and may designate their service
areas. The department shall limit the issuance of a license for any new
emergency medical services operation based on the needs of the service
area

5. Alicense for
an emergency medical services operation is nontransferable."

Page 1, after line 18, insert:

"Emergency medical services advisory council.

The state department of health shall establish an emergency medical
services advisory council. The council must include at least three representatives
appointed by an emergency medical services organization, one_individual to
represent basic life support and one individual to represent advanced life support,
both appointed by the state health officer, and other members designated by the
state heaith officer, not to exceed a total of fourteen members. The department shat!
consider the recommendations.of the council on the plan for integrated emergency
medical services in the state, development of emergency medical_services funding
areas, development of the emergency medical services funding areas application
process and budget criteria, and gther issues relating to emergency medical services
as determined by the state health officer. Council members are entitled to
reimbursement for expenses in the manner provided in section 44-08-04. The
department shall establish by policy the lenath of terms and the method for rotation
of membership.”

Page 2, line 18, replace "one-half" with "one millign_twe hundred fifty thousand dollars”
Page 2, line 21, replace "$2,000,000" with "$3,000,000"

Page 2, line 22, replace "4" with "5"

Page 2, line 22, after "the" insert "$1,250,000"

Page 2, line 26, replace "$2,000,000" with "$3,000,000"

{1) DESK (2) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_cfcomrep_74_004



Com Conference Committee Report Module ID: h_cfcomrep_74_004
April 27 2011 8:20am ;
Insert L.C: 11.0242.04006

Page 2, line 28, remove "The department may spend"”
Page 2, remove lines 30 and 31

Page 3, line 1, replace "2" with "3"

Page 3, line 1, replace "January 1" with "June 30"
Renumber accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House Bill No. 1044 - State Department of Health - Conference Committee Action

Conference Conference
Executive House Committee Committee Senate Comparison
Budget Version Changes Version Version to Senate
Emergancy madical services $2,000,000 $1,000,000 $3,000,000 $4,000.000 ($1,000,000)
grants
Total all funds $0 $2.000,000 $1,000.000 $3,000,000 $4.000.000 {$1,000,000}
Less estimated income 0 ] 0 0 0 o
General fund $0 $2,000,000 $1,000,000 $3,000,000 $4,000,000 {$1,000,000}
FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.00

Department No. 301 - State Department of Health - Detail of Conference Committee
Changes

Total
Conference
Adds Funding Committee
for EMS Grants' Changes
Emergency medical servicas $1,000,0C0 $1,000,000
grants
Total alf funds $1,000,000 $1,000,000
Less estimated income 1] 0
General fund $1,000,000 $1.000,000
FTE 0.00 0.09 |

' The conference committee increased funding for emergency medical services assistance
grants from $2,000,000 provided by the House to $3,000,000. The Senate provided
$4,000,000.

The conference committee included changes made by the Senate to create an emergency
medical services advisory council, provide that the State Department of Health designate
emergency medical services service areas, and limit the state financial assistance for
emergency medical services in the first year of the biennium to $1.25 million. In addition, the
conference committee provided that three representatives of the emergency medical
services advisory council be appointed by an emergency medical services organization, this
is changed from the North Dakota EMS Association.

Reengrossed HB 1044 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

(1) DESK (2) COMMITTEE Page 2 h_cfcomrep_74_004
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act relating to ambulance operations areas, emergency medical services
funding areas, and state financial assistance for emergency medical services; relating to
emergency medical services allocations; to provide a statement of legislative intent; to
provide an appropriation; and to provide an effective date.

Minutes: You may make reference to “attached testimony.”

Chairman Delzer: Opened discussion on HB 1044 and the title was read.

Representative Robin Weisz, District 14: 1044 is an EMS funding bill. It originally had
$12 million in it. The committee sent it out with $3 million of new funding. There's $1.25
million currently in the budget, this would be on top of that. Because we are changing
when we ask for their budgets and when we fund them, there’s also an ‘interim’
appropriation of $562,000 to carry them over from that period to starting on our biennium
date. Then we would start with the new program. That's the appropriation part. We'll be
making a shift from training grants to funding service areas and looking at minimal
reasonable cost to operate an ambulance and funding them accordingly, that's where the
dollars come from.

Chairman Delzer. And that's within your appropriation.
Representative Weisz: That's my understanding.

Representative Nelson: The $2 million would maintain the same level of service that is
currently taking place, but wasn't there a number of ambulance services that weren't able
to get the training grants?

Representative Weisz: That is partially correct. Many didn't get training grants because
they didn't apply, even though they qualified. There were some that wanted to receive
funding that did apply, and didn't:get it. That's why the appropriation came out of
committee. This bill does change h@w;thga'y look-at it. It will in some cases make it easier
for ambulances to qualify. ' ‘
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Representative Nelson: The $3 million that you had in the bill, how would that have been
utilized? Would that have fully funded what you anticipated would be the requests? It
wasn'’t just out of the blue, I'm assuming. Explain where you got it.

Representative Weisz: Based on the current staffing grants, the way they've been going
out, this would have covered those. Could there be a greater demand? Probably, and |
think in the future you will see that, as this gears up. The committee felt that would be
adequate at the current level in demand. The current bill made an assumption that
everybody would be in for funding.

Chairman Delzer: There are some amendments that have been talked about for this bill.
Did you want to go over those?

Representative Weisz: | could address the changes in policy.

Representative Pollert: You have amendment .03003. Policy-wise, it takes away the
advisory committee on 03000 of 1044. |t leaves the decision up to the Department of
Health division to work with the grants as far as how it goes out to the local EMS branches
or ambulances. The amendment also takes the $3 million down to $2 miltion.

Chairman Delzer: And then there’s $1.25 million in the Department of Health?
Representative Pollert. In the Department of Health, there was $2.25 million last
biennium. The $1 million was taken out, and the governor's budget had $1.25 million
through there, through the insurance tax distribution fund. It would be general funds that
are reduced to $2 million.

Chairman Delzer: Comparing this to last time, we go from $2.25 million to $3.25 million.
Representative Pollert. Correct.

Chairman Delzer: Discussion by the committee?

Representative Pollert: | would move amendment .03003.

Representative Kreidt. Second.

Chairman Delzer: Discussion? Voice vote carries. The amended bill is before us.
Representative Skarphol: Can you explain the shortfall or distribution from last time,
because it was a sliding scale mechanism as | understand it. Are there more of these
entities getting in trouble that we need the other million?

Representative Weisz: The current system employed what are called staffing grants.
They -set up a protocol for the department to determine who received them. We're now
changing to what we call minimum reasonable cost. The reality there is they'll look at an

ambulance service and make up the shortfall between what it costs to provide the service
and what they bring in in revenues. The bill requires a minimum of $10 per person
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matching for any dollars that would be expended. So within that service area, if there are
5000 people, for example, they have to put in $50,000. If that's not there, they don't
qualify. It doesn't say where it has to come from. We're shifting how we look at the
funding. It was estimated that if everybody took advantage of the minimum reasonable
cost area, it could expend up to $12 million, which was in the original bill. The way we look
at it, that isn't going to happen overnight, and based on the demand for the staffing grants
and the numbers that weren't fulfilled, that $3 million will probably suffice.

Representative Nelson: | move Do Pass as Amended on HB 1044,
Representative Pollert. Second.

Chairman Delzer: We have a motion and a second, discussion. We'll call the roll for Do
Pass as Amended. Motion carries 16-3-2. Representative Pollert will be the carrier.



11.0242.03003

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title.04000

Representative Pollert
February 15, 2011

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1044
Page 1, remove lines 19 through 24
Page 2, remove lines 1 through 13
Page 3, line 11, replace "$3,000,000" with "$2,000,000"
Page 3, line 12, replace "3" with "4"
Page 3, line 16, replace "$3,000,000" with "$2,000,000"
Renumber accordingly

Page No. 1 11.0242.03003

=

Qlﬂ’



Date: ’f/// 7

Roll Cali Vote #: !

2011 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. __ /oYY

House Appropriations Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number .0 %0075

Action Taken: [_] Do Pass [ ] Do Not Pass [ ] Amended [X Adopt Amendment

[] Rerefer to Appropriations [ ] Reconsider

Motion Made By uQm (O![M(‘ Seconded By ﬁsw MV‘C{A&
of {
Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No
Chairman Delzer Representative Nelson
Vice Chairman Kempenich Representative Wieland

Representative Pollert

Representative Skarphol

Representative Thoreson Representative Glassheim
Representative Bellew Representative Kaldor
Representative Brandenburg : Representative Kroeber
Representative Dahl Representative Metcalf -
Representative Dosch Representative Williams

Representative Hawken

Representative Klein

Representative Kreidt

Representative Martinson

Representative Monson

Total (Yes) No

Absent

Floor Assignment

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:

oMo ves &&U;S()f\’ &Mm;tt{i
tales 33 million M/m(mb‘oﬂ down & 82 millioy

\Jord Vol Qurries
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Roll Call Vote # 7

2011 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES

BILL/RESOLUTION NO.

House Appropriations

o4y

Committee

Legisiative Council Amendment Number

Action Taken:

. 03003

[A Do Pass [] Do Not Pass X| Amended

] Rerefer to Appropriations

] Reconsider

[] Adopt Amendment
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Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No
Chairman Delzer X | Representative Nelson \/
Vice Chairman Kempenich ) Representative Wieland X
Representative Pollert X
Representative Skarphol B Y
Representative Thoreson X B Representaiive Glassheim
Representative Bellew ) X | Representative Kaldor X
Representative Brandenburg Y Representative Kroeber X
Representative Dahl X Representative Metcalf X
Representative Dosch Y Representative Williams X
Representative Hawken X
Representative Kiein X
Representative Kreidt X
Representative Martinson X
Representative Monson X
Total (Yes) / (\p No Z
Absent T
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If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:



Com Standing Committee Report Module ID: h_stcomrep_33_010
February 18, 2011 9:02am Carrier: Pollert

Insert LC: 11.0242.03003 Title: 04000

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1044, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Rep.Delzer, Chairman)
recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends
DO PASS (16 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed HB 1044
was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, remove lines 19 through 24

Page 2, remove lines 1 through 13

Page 3, line 11, replace "$3,000,000" with "$2,000,000"

Page 3, line 12, replace "3" with "4"

Page 3, line 186, replace "$3,000,000" with "$2,000,000"

Renumber accordingly

{1) DESK {3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stecomrep_33_010
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STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FOR EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES -

.1

SUMMARY OF HB1044

Mr. Chairman, members of the committee for the record, my name is Sara Chamberiin and | am a Fiscal

Analyst for the Legislative Council. | am here to present information on:House Bill 1044 relating to state financial
assistance for emergency medical services or EMS providers. [ appear neither for nor against the bill, but just to
provide information and answer any questions you may have.

This bill was recormmended by the interim Public Safety and Transportation Committee and subsequently
Legislative Management. Additional background information can be found in the Report of Legislative
Management book on page 325,

Looking at the hill... Section 1 of House Bill 1044 directs funding from the insurance tax distribution fund to be
allocated per Section 2 of this bill.

Section 2 creates a new chapter to titie 23 of NDCC, including definitions of:

a. Ambulance Operations Area

b. EMS funding Area

¢. Minimum Reasonable Cost

d. Required Local Ma"[ching Funds

Under section 2 there are four major provisions:

1.

@ .

o

The first provision requires the state department of health fo establish an EMS advisory commitiee, for the
purposes of providing advice to the state department of health on issues that affect the EMS industry.

Committee membership must include representation from the EMS industry and at least one consumer
representative.

The second provision provides that the State Department of Health maintain a plan for integrated EMS in
the state. The plan must:

a. ldentify ambulance operations areas based on criteria adopted by the health council and published in
the ND Administrative Code.

b. Identify EMS funding areas that require state financial assistance to operate a minimally reasonabie
level of EMS services

c. Establish minimum reasonable cost for an EMS operation.

. The third provision provides that EMS operations requesting financial assistance from the state must

provide requested fiscal information fo the state department of health for use in financial assistance
determinations. Provided information is to be confidential.

The State Department of Health is charged with annually determining the allocation of state financial
assistance for each EMS funding area based on the department's determination of;

a. The minimal annual funding necessary to operate the EMS operation or service designated {o operate
in the funding area

b. Required local matching funds, at least $10 per capita within the EMS funding area

¢. Minimal annual funding necessary is to be based on the financial needs unique to each EMS funding
area.

The fourth provision provides a distribution limit, that not more than one-half may be distributed during the
1* year of the biennium.

Section 3 of HB1044 is an amendment to Section 23-27-01 of NDCC relating to the licensing of EMS
operations:



1. The bili provides that the state department of health ensure that aft areas of the state are covered by
reasonable ground ambulance response, by establishing ambulance operations areas.

a. Initially Ambulance operations areas will confer upon existing EMS operations that historically provided
services to the area.

b. Ambulance Operations Areas are limited to one transporting ambulance service that must meet
performance standards adopted by the health council and published in ND administrative code.

(1) Failure of EMS operation to meet minimum performance standards, state department of health
may decrease or eliminate state financial assistance as part of EMS funding area plan AND

designate another EMS operation to provide ground ambulance services in the ambulance
operations area.

c. New applicants for ambulance licensure must prove that an existing EMS operation is providing
substandard service to the ambulance operations area or have written consent from the existing
operation in order to operate in its ambulance operations area.

Section 4 creates a new subsection to section 23-27-02 of NDCC, providing the definition of an Ambulance
operations area. '

Section 5 limits the amount deposited into the insurance tax distribution fund, taking into consideration the
funding provided for in Section 2 of this bill.
* NDBCC Section 26.1-03-17 requires the insurance Commissioner to collect a premium tax on the gross
amount of insurance premiums sold within the state at a rate of 2 percent for life insurance policies and
1.75 percent for other types of insurance.

Section 6 repeals chapter 23-40 of NDCC, which is currently how funding assistance is distributed for EMS

providers.

The 2009 Legislative Assembly appropriated $2.25 million from the insurance tax distribution fund for grants to

MS operations. Under chapter 23-40 the State Health Department is required to develop a strategic plan for an
integrated EMS program in ND which includes a comprehensive statewide EMS system. The department is
charged with determining eligibility for grant awards, level of matching funds and distribution amounts.

+ Eligibility considered the transportation distance to hospitals, size of the ambulance service area , the
number of ambulance runs, and contributing factors that may affect the number of patient care providers
on the ambulance service such as age, population, service's location, size of the service area, and other
personal commitments.

* Matching amounts are limited to at least 10% but no more than 90%, and were determined using a sliding
percent formula, based on the department's strategic plan and how the applicant fit into the strategic plan,
considering the needs of EMS operations in the applicants neighboring service areas.

» Grant awards were not allowed for capital expenses such as emergency vehicles and EMS equipment.

» Of the 147 EMS operations licensed with the State Department of Health, the department determined that
107 met eligibility requirements, and out of the 107 the department received 41 applications.

Section 7 provides an appropriation form the insurance tax distribution fund in the amount of $12 million.

» The executive budget recommends $1.25 million for grants under 23-40 of NDCC in the State Health
Departments budget bill HB1004.
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HB 1044 January 19, 2011

Testimony — Human Services Committee
North Dakota EMS Association
Mark Weber, NDEMSA Past President
Good Morning Chairman Weisz and members of the Human Services and Human

Resources committees. My name is Mark Weber, and 1 am representing the North Dakota

Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Association. 1 thank you for the opportunity to testify in
support of HB 1044.

First, on behalf of the North Dakota EMS Association, we wish to acknowledge the
efforts and work product of the Public Safety and Transportation Interim Committee; the interim
study resulted in the legislation before you that we believe builds on the work of the EMS

community and the Legislature over the past couple of biennia.

The 2007 Legislature allocated $1.25M to assist ambulance services with our staffing
problem with the implementation and funding of the current staffing grant program. In 2009 the
Legislature approved an additional $1M for the staffing grant program as well as $500,000 for a
grant to implement four key EMS projects and directed an interim study into the feasibility of

transitioning to a state-wide funding formula for EMS.

The goal of the grants was to identify the most needy ambulance services and help them
sustain until a permanent funding solution could be found. A formula was developed by the ND
Department of Health with input from the EMS community. This formula, used criteria that was
specific to the 2(%07 legislation; number of providers on a roster, the age of the providers,

distance from the closest hospital etc. Each of the criteria was given a value (points) and when



everything was put into a spreadsheet, the ambulance service with the most points should be the
most critical. This formula was how the local match was determined, from 10% to 90% of the
ambulance services project. In 2007 only 108 of the 143 ambulance services were eligible for the
grants. Twenty-nine ambulance services applied for and received staffing grants, the awards
ranged from a few thousand dollars up to $45,000. We found many of the services we felt
needed the assistance did not apply for the grant. Some squad leaders told us they didn’t want to
start a program if it was not going to be sustained. Some services didn’t want to pay some people
and not others, a few services said they could not afford the matching amount they would have to

pay or they thought the paperwork was too exhaustive.

[n 2009, with the addition of $1M for a total of $2.25M available for staffing grants 41 of
the 108 services eligible for the grant applied. The 41 applications requested approximately
$2.8M in funding. Not all applicants could receive the amount they requested, so rather than not
give a grant to a few services a decision was made to just cut all funding requests down (by a %)
until the $2.25M mark was met. 39 ambulance services are receiving grants today. Many of you
have received letters from grant recipients telling you how much the assistance has helped and

there are a few here today.

As with all projects if there are not lessons learned, someone is not paying aitention. The
EMS staffing grants are no different, however we were paying attention. in 2009 we worked
with legislators and developed four projects that would enhance the funding available to
ambulance services.

1. EMS Leadership development classes: Most ambulance service squad leaders

have no formal training to be a manager of an ambulance service. Many leaders
just don’t know what to do or where to find the resources to do the job. If we were
going to give state funding to these ambulance services they would need to know
how to complete a budget, deal with paid staff members (human resources) and
find the resources to do the job right. This training gives them the basic skills and
knowledge to do the job.

2. Develop a state wide quality review program: Legislators told us if they were

going to help ND EMS they wanted to make sure the funding was improving the



care provided and systems that receive the funding. A quality review program will
help us measure that.

3. Develop an assessment process: Helping North Dakota ambulance services
improve their systems is the goal of this project. By helping them assess
themselves, comparing what they do to what others do, each ambulance service
can identify arcas where they can improve their system. Each time they apply for
state assistance, they should identify a one or two areas they will focus on to
improve their system. This will lead to efficiencies and better operations.

4. Develop a state wide recruitment program: North Dakota EMS will always rely

on volunteers. As the years go by, there just won’t be as many. This project will

help ambulance service managers with the recruitment of new providers.

These projects are well on their way and we have had very positive feedback on how well
they are going. We believe we are on the right track, everyone working together developing

solutions to our problems.

We have an opportunity to permanently solve the problems facing North Dakota EMS.
North Dakota is in the right economic condition to make a commitment to the sustainability of
the North Dakota EMS System. As you know, the problems facing North Dakota EMS are very

complex as no two services have the same set of problems.

HB 1044 builds on the success of the staffing grant program while recognizing key
directives. 1) Ensure “Reasonable EMS and staffing” coverage for ND — communities and
corridors. 2) Address the sustainability of funding — can “reasonable EMS and staffing” be
achieved with an efficient and sustainable source of funding at the local and state levels. 3)
Require a reasonable level of local money to match state aid. 4) Provide for local flexibility and
encourage coordination between services. We believe HB 1044 takes all of this into
consideration and will provide long term stability, ensuring reasonable EMS in ND well into the

future.



0 HB 1044 addresses four main areas: The four components of this bill are:

The development of an advisory committee:

This committee will be made up of representatives from the emergency medical services
industry and at least one consumer member. This committee will be selected by the state
department of health and be responsible to provide input to the state department of health on
issues that affect the EMS industry. This committee will help develop the rules for this improved

program.

The development of operations areas:

The intent of this section was twofold; 1) to sustain the current resources available to
rural ambulance services, intercepts and disaster preparedness. 2) Prevent an influx of new
ambulance services for the sole purpose of receiving state assistance. Tim Meyer will provide

additional testimony on this section.

” The development of funding areas:

HB 1044 would repeal the current staffing grant program and replace it with funding

areas. Funding areas would be developed based on the definition of reasonable EMS for ND. In
2007 the North Dakota legislature asked the department of health to define reasonable EMS for
North Dakota. They did and that definition is what we have been using to define reasonable

EMS on North Dakota ever since. That is the basis for how funding areas would be determined.

The development of funding areas would assure long term stability for the North Dakota
EMS system. By helping to financially sustain at least one ambulance service in each area.
Facilitating efficiencies within each area, allow collaboration amongst ambulance services
serving within an area and by offering solutions to services struggling to provide the required

24/7 coverage.

Funding would be available to areas that could show a need for assistance. Ambulance
services within a funding area would submit one proposal to the department of health requesting

‘ assistance. Funding proposal templates Would be developed by the department and provided to



o all ambulance services. These would include a template for an overall plan (narrative) to provide
EMS coverage to all citizens of the area, how the local share was being provided and a budget
and budget narrative.
e Areas with multiple ambulance services in a funding area.
e Budgets to include reasonable costs. (up to a maximum percentage)
e Local match based on a $10 per capita.

e Formula, cost vs. expense

Appropriations:
We are requesting a $12M appropriation. This $12M appropriation would replace the
current $2.25M that has been available.

Chairman Weisz, thank you for this opportunity to testify and I would be happy to

answer questions the committee may have.




Definition of Reasonable EMS for North Dakota

The Division of Emergency Medical Services makes the following recommendations to improve access to
EMS process:
¢ Require through administrative rules that EMS agencies be dispatched directly by a public
safety answering point (PSAP) by radio or pager.
¢ Require through administrative rules that EMS agencies have scheduled personnel on call at
all times.

The Division of Emergency Medical Services makes the following recommendations to improve EMD:
o Ambulance services currently may respond with a fragmented crew.

PSAPs musr automatically disparch local EMS that normally serves that area.
Major rrauma requiring transport ro a designated trauma center.
Cardiac chest pain or acute myocardial infarction.

Cardiac arrest,

Severe respiratory distress or respiratory arrest,

If the incident occurs more than 20 miles from a helicopter air ambulance base of operations but not more
than 100 miles, a helicopter air ambulance must be disparched under the following conditions:

=  Prolonged extrication time.

s Mulriple vicrims.

= Ejection from vehicle.

= Pedestrian/bicycle struck by a vehicle traveling more than 20 mph.

®  Burns covering more than 10 percent of the victim's baody.

=  Stroke symptoms.

Cities with a hospital must have an ambulance service,

Ciries with & population of at least 1,000 that are more than 15 miles from another city of 1,000 must have
an ambulance;

Ciries with a population of 500 to 999 and that are fewer than 25 miles from an ambulance must have an
EMS agency

Utban ambubance services must have a response time standard of arriving on scene in fewer than nine
minutes 90 percent of the time.
Rural and rransportation corridor ambulance services must have an enroure time of 10 minutes or less 90

percent of the time and an overall response time of less than 20 minutes 90 percent of the time

Frontier ambulance services must have an enroute time of 10 minutes or less 90 percent of the rime and an
overall response time of less than 30 minurtes 90 percent of the time.
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3%
0%
0%
0%
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1%
2%

ND_RURAL AMBULANCE SERVICE

200 calls at $530

Tax prep/Audits/Misc
90 calls at $200 per intercept

Heat, repairs, electricity, etc.

Use hospital garage

Use hospital office and classroom

6200 hrs nights-wkends 2 staff + 2600 hrs da'
Save for ambulance purchase

Health Insurance, PTO
10 person roster
1 EMT class and conferences

Auto, liability, workers comp, life/disability
State, CLIA, INC.
40 hrs per week-$3500 per month

15 hrs per week- $12 hr
FICA, Medicare, Unemployment

Meals at squad meetings
Oil changes/tires/Repairs/Misc.

Shirts, Pants, Boots for squad

Calls $ 106,000.00
Mill Levy $ 24,000.00
Training Grant $ 2,000.00
[Total Income |'$ 132,000.00 |
Expenses:

Accounting fees $ 1,200.00
ALS $ 18,000.00
Billing/Data Entry $ 3,250.00
Building Maintenance $ 2,000.00
Building Rent $ -
Office/Classroom space [ $ . -
Call Time Wages $2.50 [ $ 37,500.00
Captital Purchase Exp $ 7,500.00
Cell Phone $ 650.00
Employee Benefits $ 7,500.00
EMT Expense $ 375.00
EMT Training b 6,250.00
Equipment $ 3,500.00
Fuel $ 2,800.00
Insurance $ 5,750.00
License $ 50.00
Manager Salary $ 42,000.00
Misc. b 1,000.00
Office Supplies $ 1,200.00
Pagers $ 1,000.00
Part Time Employee $ 10,000.00
Payroll Expense $ 4,500.00
Phonefinternet 3 450.00
Postage $ 42.00
Promo/Ads $ 350.00
Refreshments 3 540.00
Repairs/Main.-Amb 3 1,000.00
Repairs-Equip 3 250.00
Suppplies-Amb $ 1,800.00
Uniforms $ 2,500.00
Total Expenses $ 162,957.00

Income/shortfall $ (30,957.00)
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North Dakota Volunteer Ambuiance Services

Local Match

Company City Local Match

1 Divide County Ambulance Service Crosby 10%
2 Grenora Ambulance Service Grenora 10%
3 Westhope Ambulance Service Westhope 10%
4 Medina Ambulance Service Medina 10%
5 New England Ambulance Service New England 10%
6 Community Ambulance Service Inc. Beach 10%
7 Killdeer Area Ambulance Service Inc Killdeer 10%
8 Kindred Area Ambulance Service Kindred 20%
9 Mckenzie County Ambulance Service Watford City 20%
10 Wing Rural Ambulance Wing 20%
11 Maddock Ambulance Service Maddock 20%
12 New Leipzig Ambulance Service New Leipzig 20%
13 Sargent County Amb Service - Forman Forman 20%
14 Turtie Lake Ambulance Service Turtle Lake 20%
15 Edgeley Ambulance Service Edgeley 20%
16 Lidgerwood Community Amb Service Lidgerwood 20%
17 Portal Ambulance Service Portal 20%
18 Lakota Ambulance Service Lakota 20%
19 Gackle Ambulance Service Gackle 30%
20 Napoleon Ambulance Service Napoleon 30%
21 Towner County Ambulance Service Inc. - Cande  Cando 30%
22 Kidder County Ambulance Service Steele 30%
23 Flasher Ambulance Service Flasher 30%
24 Wilton Rural Ambulance Service Wilton 30%
25 Hebron Ambulance Service Hebran 30%
26 New Salem Ambulance Service New Salem 30%
27 Meville Community Ambulance Service McViile 30%
28 Richardton-Taylor Ambuiance Service Richardton 30%
29 Kenmare Ambulance Service Kenmare 30%
30 Carpic Ambulance Service Carpio 30%
31 Upham Ambulance Service Upham 30%
32 Ellendale Community Ambulance Service Ellendale 30%
33 Walhalla Ambulance Service Walhalla 30%
34 Belfield Ambutance Service Inc. Belfield 40%
35 Edmore Volunteer Ambulance Service Edmore 40%
36 Marmmarth Ambulance Service Marrnarth 40%
37 Bowdon Ambulance Service Bowdon 40%
38 Ashley Ambulance Service Ashley 40%
39 Page Ambulance Service Page 40%
40 Velva Ambulance Service Velva 40%
41 Mcoclusky Rural Ambulance District McClusky 40%
42 Qliver County Ambulance Service Center 40%
43 Mohall Ambulance Service Maohall 40%
44 Leeds Ambulance Service Leeds 40%
45 Sargent County Ambulance Service Milner 40%
46 Wishek Ambulance Service Wishek 40%
47 Sherwood Ambulance Service Sherwood 40%
48 Ray Community Arbulance District Ray 50%
49 Ryder-Makoti Ambulance Service Makoti 50%
50 Stanley Ambulance Service Stanley 50%
51 Mchenry Ambulance Service Binford 50%
52 Pembina Ambuiance Service Pembina 50%
53 Mott Ambulance Service Mott 50%
54 Wyndmere-Barney Rural Amb Dist Wyndmere 50%
55 Halliday Ambulance Service Halliday 50%
56 Hunter Ambulance Service Hunter 50%
57 Towner Fire/Ambulance/Resc Serv, Inc Towner 50%
58 Bowman Ambulance Squad inc Bowman 50%
59 Rock Lake Ambulance Service Rack Lake 50%
60 Tioga Ambulance Service Tioga 50%
61 Almont Ambulance Service Almont 50%
62 Goodrich Ambulance Service Goodrich 50%
63 Drayton Volunteer Ambulance Association Inc. Drayton . 50%
64 Hankinson Vol Ambulance Service Hankinson 50%
65 Munich Rural Ambulanca Munich 50%
66 Community Volunteer EMS Service of LaMoure Lamowre 50%

Draft



North Dakota Volunteer Ambutance Services

Local Match
67 Kulm Ambulance Corps, Inc. Kulm 60%
68 Underwood Ambulance Service Underwood 60%
69 Billings County Ambulance Service Medora 60%
70 Lansford Ambulance Service Lansford 60%
71 Regent Ambulance Service Regent 60%
72 Riverdale Ambulance Department Riverdale 60%
73 Northwood Ambulance Service Northwood 60%
74 West River Ambulance Service Hetlinger 60%
75 Esmond Community Ambulance Service Esmond 60%
76 Minnewaukan Ambulance Service Minnewaukan 60%
77 Aneta Ambulance Service Aneta 60%
78 Powers Lake Ambulance Association Powers Lake 60%
79 Rolette Ambulance Service, Inc Rolette 60%
80 Finley Ambulance Service Finley 60%
81 Bottineau Ambulance Service Bottineau 60%
82 Glen Ullin Area Ambulance Service Glen Ullin 60%
83 Emmons County Ambulance Service Linton 60%
84 Larimore Ambulance Service Inc. Larimare 60%
85 Glenburn Area Ambulance Service Inc Glenburn 60%
86 Plaza Ambulance Service Plaza 60%
87 Parshall Rural Amhulance Service Inc. Parshall 60%
88 Casselton Ambulance Service, Inc. Casselton 70%
89 Hillsboro Ambulance Service Hillsboro 70%
90 Berthold Ambulance Service Inc. Berthold 70%
91 Michigan Area Ambulance Service Inc. Michigan 70%
82 Carson Ambulance Service Carson 70%
93 Washbumn Volunteer Ambulance Serv Washbum 70%
94 West Traill Ambulance Service Mayville 70%
95 Bowbells Ambulance Service Bowbells 70%
96 Hope Ambulance Service Hope T0%
97 Park River Volunteer Ambulance Service Park River 0%
98 Carington Health Center Ambulance Carrington 70%
99 Fessenden Ambulance Service Fessenden 70%
100 Gotden Heart EMS Rugby 80%
101 Langdon Ambulance Service Langdon 80%
102 Qakes Volunteer Ambulance Service Qakes 80%
103 Cooperstown Ambulance Service Cooperstown BO%
104 Harvey Ambulance Service, Inc. Harvey B80%
105 Rugby Emergency Ambulance Service Rugby 80%
106 Community Ambulance Service of New Rockford  New Rockford B0%
107 Mercer County Ambulance Service Inc. -- Beulah  Beulah 90%
108 Mercer Co Amb Service Inc — Hazen Hazen 90%

Craft



dCOUNTY
ADAMS

McHENRY
cINTOSH
cKENZIE

WARD
ELLS
ILLIAMS

Value 1- Mili

2008 Budgets

$ 7,695.26
BARNES $ 38,849.38
BENSCON $ 14,084.86
BILLINGS $ 5,478.29
BOTTINEAU $ 26,347.06
BOWMAN $ 12,158.62
BURKE $ 8,815.73
BURLEIGH $ 219,344 87
CASS $ 428 417.21
CAVALIER $ 21,750.50
DICKEY $ 18,105.13
DIVIDE $ 9,682.52
DUNN $ 12,791.70
EDDY $ 6,603.87
EMMONS $ 14,599.07
FOSTER $ 13,049.56
GOLDEN VALLEY [ 5,850.24
GRAND FORKS $ 171,922.13
GRANT $ 9,153.97
GRIGGS $ 956277
HETTINGER $ 10,018 42
KIDDER $ 10,651.26
LaMOURE $ 18,883.35
LOGAN $ 7,431.15

$ 22,625.94

$ 10,432.78

$ 17,671.63
McLEAN $ 29,870.18
MERCER $ 19,492 .40
MORTON $ 66,780.60
MOUNTRAIL $ 16,572.19
NELSON $ 11,322.64
OLIVER $ 6,800.54
PEMBINA $ 31,312.81
PIERCE $ 14,325.27
RAMSEY $ 27,891.10
RANSOM $ 17,421.95
RENVILLE $ 10,399.80
RICHLAND $ 53,422.40
ROLETTE $ 10,111.57
SARGENT $ 16,202.31
SHERIDAN $ 6,717.50
SIOUX $ 2,1486.50
SLOPE $ 5,362.09
STARK $ 48,763.69
STEELE $ 11,332.70
STUTSMAN $ 55,005.51
TOWNER $ 11,837.00
TRAILL $ 27,625.46
WALSH $ 33,175.75

$ 137 623.82

$ 19,270.39

$ 45,625.01
[COUNTY TOTAL  [$  1,888,388.39

7695
38849
14084

5478
26347
12158

8815

219344
428417
21750
18105

9682
12791

6603
14599
13049

5850

171922

9153

9562
10018
10651
18883

7431
22625
10432
17671
29870
19492
66780
16571
11322

68060
31312
14325
27891
17421
10399
03422
10111
16202

6717

2146

5362
48763
11322
55005
11837
27625
33175

137623
19270
45625

County

Population
2332
10955
6997
829
6650
2991
1947
75385
132525
4099
5398
20092
3443
2502
3645
3583
1691
65435
2588
2456
2564
2453
4262
1999
5429
2956
5700
8543
8234
25754
6442
3289
1808
7906
4221
11264
5695
2425
16888
13503
4198
1408
4282
713
22167
1943
20761
2417
8178
11362
55270
4432
19456
635865
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3.30
3.55
2,01
6.61
3.96
4.06
4.53
291
323
531
3.35
4.63
372
2.64
4.01
3.64
3.46
2.63
3.54
31.89
391
4,34
4.43
372
4.17
3.53
3.10
3.50
2.37
2.59
2.57
3.44
3.76
3.96
3.39
248
3.06
4.29
3.16
0.73
3.86
4.77
0.50
7.52
2.20
5.83
2.65
4.90
3.38
292
2.49
435
2.35
3.57 ND Average mill per person in the county

ND Average mill per person in the county
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Testimony
House Bill 1044
House Human Services Committee
Wednesday, January 19, 2011
F-M Ambulance Service

v
: [
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Good morning, Chairman Weise and members of the Commitiee. My name is Tim Meyer. and |
am the Director of Administration at F-M Ambulance Service which provides advanced life
support {ALS) ambulance services to Fargo and West Fargo and provides support to the rural
ambulances of Cass County. I am here in support of HB 1044 to provide funding for rural
emergency medical services.

We also support the operations area concepl contained within the bill. Our primary concern is
that if the state offers grants to certain ambulance services to operate they may become direct
competitors with our service. It doesn’t seem fair to have the State subsidizing an ambulance to
compete with our company which does not receive public funding.

Our ambulance service has been in continuous operation for more than 52 years. We serve a
large portion of Cass County either by providing advanced life support intercepts to the rural
ambulance services or by being the primary ambulance to respond in Horace, Harwood,
Argusville, and sometimes Grandin. In 2010 we intercepted with rural Cass County ambulances
165 times, and responded to 102 emergencies in our own rural primary response area.

We have also made substantial capital investments to enhance the response capabilities for our
communities and the state of North Dakota. In 2009 we were the first non-local EMS responder
to the tornado in Northwood. We responded with our mobile communications tower. a mobile
incident command post, a major inciden! response unit that carries supplies and equipment to
treat up to 120 patients, and three ambulances. We did all that without compensation. I we
have competition it will limit our ability to support that infrastructure and we’ll not be able to
invest in or take on enterprises that do not provide reimbursement for our expenses.

We believe that the public must have a remedy if they feel the local ambulance service is not up
to par. The language contained in the bill gives authority to the Health Department to make
financial sanctions or to find another ambulance service operator to serve an area 1l they deem 1t
necessary. The bill also establishes an advisory commitiee to the Health Department 1o assist
them in making policy decisions.

Thank you for allowing me to testify today. 1'd be happy to answer any questions vou may have.
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Testimony — Human Services Committee/Appropriations Commiittee
Maddock Ambulance Service

Patrick Tracy. EMT Basic at Maddock Ambulance Service and NDEMSA Member

Good Moming Chairman Weisz, Chairman Delzer and members of the committees. My name is
Patrick Tracy; | am an EMT Basic with Maddock Ambulance Service (MAS) and a Member of
the North Dakota Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Association. 1 thank you for the

opportunity to testify in support of HB 1044,

I would like to share pertinent information regarding Maddock Ambulance Service EMS

staffing, training, stability, and facilities/equipment needs.

Stafting:
There are approximately 8760 howrs in a year. MAS provides a driver for every single hour of
the 8760 hours in a year. The driver is certified in CPR and has successfully completed an
Emergency Vehicle Operations Course. MAS also provides two EMS personnel in support of
a patient care for each of these hours with minimum requivements being that one provider at
minimum be a First Responder and the other be an EMT. This equals a minimum of 26,280
hours per calendar year that need coverage by MAS. The MAS service volunteer squad covers
approximately 23,180 of that total. Staffing grants have been used to cover the balance of the
hours that cannot be covered by volunteers. Grants have also provided for a MAS

Manager/Coordinator.

Training:

All EMS personal are required to complete continuing education and refresher courses to
maintain that persons particular EMS license in good standing. MAS uses grant funds to offset
the costs of conducting continuing education seminars. MAS needs to continue to recruit and
train people to be EMS Drivers, First Responders, EMT-Basics Intermediates and Paramedics
ensuring that we continue to be a strong viable entity yeérs into the future. Furthermore, we need
continual training enabling our service to provide the best care possible in the pre-hospital

setting.
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Facilities/Equipment:

MAS currently uses a bay at the Maddock Fire Hall 1o house our ambulance. The fire
department has moved equipment outside the fire hall to accommodate our service. Should the
Maddock Fire Department buy any more equipment for future needs it could potentially present
a real problem for our service. MAS rents our class room, office space, and overnight
accommodations for contract staff. Our ambulance is sixteen years old with mileage and
dependability issues not far down the road. All of the above may not be issucs today but could be
important issues in the future. Funding assistance would play a large part in the resolution of

some of these issues.

Stability:

Staffing. Management, and Facilities/Equipment funding is vital to the Maddock Ambulance
Service, It is estimated that our reserve funds would be depleted in approximately two vears
without yearly funding assistance. MAS personnel that volunteer thousands of hours each vear to
this service would like to know that we are not doing this in vain. We would like to know that
five, ten, or even twenty years into our future we have the resources necessary to maintain a

viable service for our community.

Yesterday alone rural EMS volunteers across the state donated somewhere between 4200 and
4800 hours of time to ensure that our rural areas in North Dakota have the absolute best possible
pre-hospital care available. We are doing our part for rural EMS long term viability, We cannot
do it alone. We need to partnec with the great state of North Dakota. Passing HB 1044 is a major

stride in reaching long term viability for rural EMS.

Chairman Weisz, Chairman Delzer, thank you for this opportunity to testify and 1 would be

happy to answer questions the committee may have.

Page [ of 2
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Testimony — Human Services Committee/Appropriations Committee

Bowdon Ambulance Service
Cheryl Flick, EMT-Intermediate at Bowdon Ambulance Service and NDEMSA Member

Good Morning Chairman Weisz, Chairman Delzer and members of the committees. My name is Cheryl
Flick; 1 am an EMT Intermediate with Bowdon Ambulance Service (BAS) and a Member of the North
Dakota Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Association. | thank you for the opportunity to testify in
support of HB 1044,

| would like to share with you information regarding the Bowdon Ambulance Service and the experience
we had with the staffing grant.

The Bowdon Ambulance Service covers 360 square miles and serves the towns of Bowdon, Hurdsfield,
Chaseley and Heaton. We have a roster of 16 volunteer members. We have people trained at the levels
of CPR Drivers, EMT Basics and EMT Intermediates. We provide coverage 7 days a week, 365 days of
the year. We meet or exceed all the standards set forth by the North Dakota Department of Health and
take great pride in running a wonderful service.

The Bowdon Ambulance was fortunate to receive the staffing grant when it was first awarded. We were
able to put everyone on a call schedule and pay them to be on call. We had no trouble getting the shifts
filled while being able to pay our members. However the Bowdon Ambulance Service match was 40% of
the grant monies which was too much for us to afford. By the time the payroll taxes were paid and the
payroll taxes were matched out of our funds it was closer to a 50% match. This amount became
prohibitive for the service to afford. We would have totally depleted our reserve funds in less than two
years.

Two years ago we made the decision not to apply for the grant. We simply could not afford to do so.
When the grant money ran out we still had every one on call shifts but were not abie to pay them. We lost
two members due to thern not being able to be paid to be on call.

The formulas for the staffing grants need to be looked at when one of the smallest services in the state
has trouble qualifying for it at a reasonabie level. A new policy needs to be developed so services know
how much they are eligible to receive when they are developing their proposals and budget.



. Passing HB 1044 is a major step in providing the funding needed to maintain our level of service in rural
North Dakota.

Chairman Weisz, Chairman Delzer, thank you for this opportunity to testify and | will be happy to answer

any questions the committee may have.
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To whom it may concern.
0 This statement is in regard to the proposed EMS Funding Bill.

My name is Tom Zahn. | am an EMT Basic at New England Ambulance in New England ND and have been
president of this organization since 1995. | would like to have the following comments read as | am not
able to be there to do it.

Rural EMS in the state is in serious trouble. | know that it is in the south west part of the state where |
am from but in talking to other EMS people from the rest of the state their issues are the same. Qur
squads are getting older and recruitment of younger EMT’s has not been successful and continues to be
that way. Increased training demands, the effort and time commitment of becoming an EMT and the
nature of the ambulance business alone turn most people away usually shaking their head saying “no |
cannot do that it’s not for me.” Our population is aging and the energy business is moving in fast. In New
England our call volume was up in 2010 by 30%. In an aging town with cil on the horizon it's only going
to increase. Qur squad is like most, we have a roster full of people with big hearts and good intentions
but as most are involved with production agriculture a very high percentage of runs is made by the same
few people that can go when all the others are busy on the farm or ranch. In our squad the average age
of the core volunteers who make most of the runs is 57. If we get a new EMT today it will stil! take at
least three years of mentoring to get them comfortable enough to make a run on their own.

What do we do?

” Our ambulance squad has been fortunate enough to participate in the staffing grant. This has been huge

success. We were able to hire a full time EMT for 40 hours a week to provide daytime coverage to help
out when people are at their jobs or farming. Since we hired her she has become a Paramedic. Qur
community is very fortunate to have a paramedic on staff for 5 days a week. Unfortunately the staffing
grant has had 1 million dollars taken away from it. If we were to lose our paid position it would be a
serious blow to our squad. This program needs to be moved into permanent funding for EMS and |
support the addition of the 12 million dollars as requested by the ND EMS Association. The experience
of having a paid person on staff has convinced me that this is where we are going to have to go with
rural EMS. If the rural ambulance squads had some paid staff to complement the volunteers | think it
would go a long way in shoring up their staff. If possible dollars to help replace aging ambulances and
equipment would be huge.

As we move forward to what appears to be a long term expansion of the energy business now is the
time to be proactive. If the small town squads are allowed to fail, it will be almost impossible to bring
them back. | know | for one would not be interested in starting over. After 15 years of being a squad
leader | am ready to let someone else be on call on nights and weekends and | can have a life fike all the
people that are not in EMS.

The time is now.

Thank you for hearing my statement.

“ Tom Zahn New England Ambulance
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| want to begin by thanking you for the opportunity to speak with you this morning.

My name is Diane Witteman and | am the President of the Mohall Ambulance Service
with our substations, the Tolley and Lansford Ambulance Services. | am speaking in favor of HB
1044.

The Mohall Ambulance Service is a rural volunteer service which serves central Renville
and western Bottineau Counties in north central North Dakota. Our response area is
highlighted in yellow on the attached map. On average we respond to approximately 145 runs
per year.

In 1997, the service trained personnel as EMT’s in Tolley and an ambulance was placed
in the community of Tolley. The Mohall and Tolley operation was operated similar to the
current substation option. In 2008, Tolley Ambulance became an official substation of Mohall.
Tolley responds to about 20 runs per year.

After the 2007 Legislative session, the Mohall Ambulance Service was privileged to have
the opportunity to apply for and did receive a State Staffing Grant. Although we seem to have a
sufficient number of patient care providers or EMT’s on our roster, the fact was at specific
times of the day we had EMT shortages. Monday through Friday, 6:00 am to 6:00 pm was the
time we lacked EMT’s. During those hours the remaining EMT’s had jobs outside of Mohalt or
jobs that did not allow them to cover call while at work. We have used the Staffing Grant to
hire three (3) part-time employees to cover the 6:00 am to 6:00 pm Monday through Friday
hours. We also use the grant to pay our volunteers for the three {3) hours when we are
transporting patients. With the grant, we have also hired one (1) EMT to work an 8 hour shift,
one (1) day per week at the Tolley Substation. In 2010, our financial support from the staffing
grant was $29,000.00 an amount of which the Mohall Ambulance Service matched.

in April 2010, the Mohall Ambulance Service acquired the Lansford Ambulance Service
as a substation. Lansford too had been struggling with the lack of volunteer staff to maintain
staff to cover the 24 hours a day / 365 days per year requirement for an ambulance license.
Lansford responds to about 15 calls per year. We will be paying one (1) EMT to work in
Lansford as we do in Tolley.

There are advantages of a substation arrangement:

e It allows the services like Tolley and Lansford to keep the ambulance within their
community. :



* The substation services do not have to meet the 24 hour per day / 365 days per year
coverage requirement,

o The business of running the ambulance is done by the host service allowing the
EMT’s at the substation to be “just EMT’s.”

e All services, the host service and the substations, are dispatched at the same time,
alerting personnel in the other communities if additional help is needed in one of
the communities.

But there is a disadvantage to a substation arrangement for the host service, i.e. Mohall.
The Mohall Service has to respond to ALL calls within their own response and the substation
response areas. Only after the substation service has a sufficient number of responders for the
call, then the substation sends Mohall home. We prefer a substation arrangement over a
“Quick Response Unit” because for a quick response unit, the Mohall Service would have to
respond to and transport all the patients. But our volunteers have now been required to
support another community ambulance service as well as their own.

Without our current staffing grant financial support, the Mohall Ambulance Service
would be struggling to survive. For now, the grant has assured us and the community that an
EMT will be available during the time of day when we struggle for help, but what about the
near future? With our total call volume of approximately 175 runs per year, we do not have the
ability to generate the funds to pay for staffing for an extended period of time should the grant
or other financial support not be available. With more and more rural services seeing a decline
in the numbers of volunteers, for whatever reason, many services will be forced to close or hire
full-time staff. With the lack of funding “to close” will be the option for many, but that only
adds additional response responsibilities unto the next closest ambulance service — possibly
another struggling, volunteer service.

I know the State of North Dakota cannot afford financially to hire all paid staff for all the
ambulance services throughout North Dakota, but | believe this bill will encourage neighboring
ambulance services to work together to work out an emergency pre-hospital healthcare system
that will work best for their area that may include both paid staff and paid volunteers. in my
own situation, | have seen the benefits to the service and to the community for having paid
staff, including the paid volunteers, but without the financial support for staffing, the Mohall
Ambulance Service with its substations would struggle to survive.

Again, | appreciate the opportunity to talk to you today. Do you have any questions of
me?

Diane K. Witteman
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TESTIMONY REENGROSSED HB1044

STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FOR EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES
. 3/15/11 - SENATE HUMAN SERVICES

Madam Chair, members of the committee for the record, my name is Sara Chamberlin and 1 am a Fiscal
Analyst for the Legislative Council. 1 am here to present information on Reengrossed House Bill 1044 relating to
state financial assistance for emergency medical services or EMS providers. | appear neither for nor against the
bill, but just to provide information and answer any questions you may have.

This bill was initially drafted and recommended by the interim Public Safety and Transportation Committee and
subsequently Legislative Management. Additional background information can be found in the Report of
Legislative Management book on page 325.

The House made a number of changes to the bill. | will first go over how the bill currently reads and at the end
of my testimony { will highlight the significant changes made by the House.

Section 1 creates a new chapter to title 23 of NDCC, including the definition of:

a. An EMS funding Area
b. Minimum Reasonable Cost

¢. Required Local Matching Funds

Under section 1 there are 3 major provisions;

1. The first provision provides that the State Department of Health maintain a plan for integrated EMS in the
state. The plan must;

a: ldentify ambulance operations areas based on criteria adopted by the health council and publlshed in

the ND Administrative Code.
0 b. Identify EMS funding areas that require state financial assistance to operate a minimally reasonable
level of EMS services

c. Establish minimum reasonable cost for an EMS operation.

2. The second provision provides that EMS operations requesting financial assistance from the state must
provide requested fiscal information to the state department of health for use in financial assistance
determinations. Provided information is to be confidential.

The State Department of Health is charged with annually determining the allocation of state financial
assistance for each EMS funding area based on the department's determination of:

a. The minimal annual funding necessary to operate the EMS operation or service designated to operate
in the funding area. In determining the minimal annual funding necessary, it is to be based on the
financial needs unigque to each EMS funding area.

b. Required iocal matching funds, at least $10 per capita within the EMS funding area

3. The third provision provides a distribution limit, that not more than one-half of the funding may be
distributed during the 1* year of the biennium.

Section 2 repeals chapter 23-40 of NDCC, relating to funding assistance distributions to EMS providers.
Section 5 provides that the repeal be effective on January 1, 2012, | believe the 6 month lag was included to
allow time for the Health Department to plan for the new distribution process.

u Section 3, was added by the House, it prowdes a statement of legislative intent that the $2 million

ppropriation in Section 4 is to be in addition to' the appropriation in 2011 House Bill No. 1004 (State Dept of
Health Budget Bill). The combined appropriations are to be used as the base level for the purpose of budgeting
for the 2013-15 executive budget.

+ The State Health Departments budget bill, HB1004, provides $1.25 million for grants from the insurance
tax distribution fund.
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o Madam Chair, at this point, | should note that HB1004 and Reengrossed HB1044 are silent as to
how the $1.25 million included in the State Health Department's budget bill is to be distributed.

Section 4 provides an appropriation from the general fund in the amount of $2 miliion to the Department of

Health for the purpose of providing state assistance grants to EMS operations -and related administrative
costs for the 2011-13 biennium. $562,500 may be distributed under chapter 23-40 and any remaining
funds for grants in accordance with section 1 of the bill. (The reasoning behind this amount is that it

equates to ¥ of the amount provided for grants in the 2009-11 biennium under chapter 23-40, $2.25
million} -

To recap major changes by the House, the House:

Changed the funding source from the insurance tax distribution fund to the general fund, and reduced the
appropriation from $12 million to $2 million,

Removed the definition of "Ambulance Operation Area", which was included as a component in the
revised grant distribution process

o This change included removing a secticn of the bill relating to EMS Operations licensing

The House also removed a provision that required the state department of health to establish an EMS

advisory committee, for the purposes of providing advice to the state department of health on issues that
affect the EMS industry.

This concludes my presentation, Madam chair at this time I'd be happy to answer any questions the committee
may have.
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HB 1044 March 15, 2011
Testimony — Human Services Committee
North Dakota EMS Association
Mark Weber, NDEMSA Past President

Good Morning Chairman Lee and members of the Human Services committee. My name
is Mark Weber, and I am representing the North Dakota Emergency Medical Services (EMS)
Association. I thank you for the opportunity to testify in support of HB 1044,

First, on behalf of the North Dakota EMS Association, we wish to acknowledge the
efforts and work product of the Public Safety and Transportation Interim Committee; the interim
study resulted in the legislation before you that we believe builds on the work of the EMS

community and the Legislature over the past couple of biennia.

The 2007 Legislature allocated $1.25M to assist ambulance services with our staffing
problem with the implementation and funding of the current staffing grant program. In 2009 the
Legislature approved an additional $1M for the staffing grant program as well as $500,000 for a
grant to implement four key EMS projects and directed an interim study into the feasibility of

transitioning to a state-wide funding formula for EMS.

The goal of the grants was to identify the most needy ambulance services and help them
sustain until a permanent funding solution could be found. A formula was developed by the ND
Department of Health with input from the EMS community. This formula, used criteria that was
specific to the 2007 legislation; number of providers on a roster, the age of the providers,
distance from the closest hospital etc. Each of the criteria was given a value (points) and when
everything was put into a spreadsheet, the ambulance service with the most points should be the
most critical. This formula was how the local match was determined, from 10% to 90% of the
émbulance services project. In 2007 only 108 of the 143 ambulance services were eligible for the
grants. Twenty-nine ambulance: services applied for and received staffing grants, the awards
ranged from a few thousand dollars up tc;_é$45,000. We found many of the services we felt

needed the assistance did not apply for the grant. Some squad leaders told us they didn’t want to



start a program if it was not going to be sustained. Some services didn’t want to pay some people
and not others, a few services said they could not afford the matching amount they would have to

pay or they thought the paperwork was too exhaustive.

In 2009, with the addition of $1M for a total of $2.25M available for staffing grants 41 of
the 108 services eligible for the grant app]ied. The 41 applications requested approximately
$2.8M in funding. Not all applicants could receive the amount they requested, so rather than not
give a grant to a few services a decision was made to just cut all funding requests down (by a %)
until the $2.25M mark was met. 39 ambulance services are receiving grants today. Many of you

have received letters from grant recipients telling you how much the assistance has helped.

As with all projects if there are not lessons learned, someone is not paying attention. The
EMS staffing grants are no different, however we were paying attention. In 2009 we worked
with legislators and developed four projects that would enhance the funding available to
ambulance services.

1. EMS Leadership development ¢lasses: Most ambulance service squad leaders

have no formal training to be a manager of an ambulance service. Many leaders
just don’t know what to do or where to find the resources to do the job. If we were
going to give state funding to these ambulance services they would need to know
how to complete a budget, deal with paid staff members (human resources) and
find the resources to do the job right. This training gives them the basic skills and
knowledge to do the job.

2. Develop a state wide quality review program: Legislators told us if they were

going to help ND EMS tﬁey wanted to make sure the funding was improving the
care provided and systems that receive the funding. A quality review program will
help us measure that.

3. Develop an assessment process: Helping North Dakota ambulance services

improve their systems is the goal of this project. By helping them assess
themselves, comparing what they do to what others do; each ambulance service

can identify areas where they can improve their system. Each time they apply for



state assistance, they should identify a one or two areas they will focus on to
improve their system. This will lead to efficiencies and better operations.

4. Develop a state wide recruitment program: North Dakota EMS will always rely

on volunteers. As the years go by, there juét won’t be as many. This project will

help ambulance service managers with the recruitment of new providers.

These projects are well on their way and we have had very positive feedback on how well
they are going. We believe we are on the right track, everyone working together developing

solutions to our problems.

We have an opportunity to permanently solve the problems facing North Dakota EMS.
North Dakota is in the right economic condition to make a commitment to the sustainability of
the North Dakota EMS System. As you know, the problems facing North Dakota EMS are very

complex as no two services have the same set of problems.

HB 1044 can build on the success of the staffing grant program while recognizing key
directives. 1) Ensure “Reasonable EMS and staffing” coverage for ND — communities and
corridors. 2) Address the sustainability of funding - can “reasonable EMS and staffing” be
achieved with an efficient and sustainable source of funding at the local and state levels. 3)
Require a reasonable level of local money to match state aid. 4) Provide for local flexibility and
encourage coordination between services. We believe HB 1044 takes all of this into
consideration and will provide long term stability, ensuring reasonable EMS in ND well into the

future.
HB 1044 addressed four main areas: The four components of this bill were:

The development of an advisory committee: This was removed in the house and we are

asking to have it amended back into the bill.
This committee would have been' made up of representatives from the emergency medical
services industry and at least one consumer member. This committee would be selected by the

state department of health and be responsible to provide input to the state department of health



on issues that affect the EMS industry. This committee will help develop the rules for the

permanent funding program.

The development of operatior_xs-'areas:

The intent of this section was twofold; 1) to sustain the current resources available to
rural ambulance services, intercepts and disaster preparedness. 2) Preventan influx of new
ambulance services for the sole purpose of receiving state assistance. Tim Meyer will provide

additional testimony on this section.

The development of funding areas:

HB 1044 would repeal the current staffing grant program and replace‘ it with funding
areas. Funding areas would be developed based on the definition of reasonable EMS for ND. In
2007 the .'I\:IbftH‘Dakot'é legisiature asked the departxﬁ'ént of health to define reasonable EMS for
North Dakota. They did and that definition is what we have been using to define reasonable

EMS on North Dakota ever since. That is the basis for how funding areas would be determined.

The development of funding areas would assure long term stability for the North Dakota
EMS system, By helping to financially sustain at least one ambulance service in each area.
Facilitating efficiencies within each area, allow collabqrafion amongst ambulance services
serving within an area and by offering solutions to services struggling to provide the required

24/7 coverage.

Funding would be available to areas that could show a need for assistance. Ambulance
services within a funding area would submit one proposal to the department of health requesting
assistance. Funding proposal templates would be developed by the department and provided to
all ambulance services. These would include a template for an overall plan (narrative) to provide
EMS coverage to all citizens of the area, how the local share was being provided and a budget
and budget narrative.

e Areas with multiple ambulanqé services in a_fgndirgg area.
o Budgets to include reasonable costs. (up to a maximum percentage)

e Local match based on a $10 per capita.



e Formula, cost vs. expense

Appropriations:
We initially requested a $12M appropriation which is the total amount we believe will be

needed to sustain ND EMS; this was reduced to $2M in the house.

We understand that we would probably not use the entire $12M in this biennium and
believe it will take a few years for all EMS agencies to get fully staffed and prepared for this
policy change.

We are asking for $4M this legislative session and if we add the current $1.25M to that
figure we believe the $5.25M will be enough to help a majority (50 to 60 of the possible 90
funding areas) of the funding areas that will request assistance. Without the entire $12M, criteria

will need to be developed to prioritize who needs the finding and at what level.

We would like to remove the word “grant” on page 2, line 28 so that sentence would

read:

There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise
appropriated, the sum of $2,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the state
department of health, for the purpose of providing state assistance grasts-to emergency medical
services operations and related administrative costs, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2011,

and ending June 30, 2013.
At the end of that sentence we would like to see the rest of section 4 removed.

We would also like to change the language in section 5. The date in which section 2

would become effective to July 1 2012.

Chairman Lee, thank you for th1s opportumty to testify and 1 would be happy to answer

questions the committee may have. i



Testimony
House Bill 1044
Senate Human Services Committee
Tuesday, March 15, 2011
F-M Ambulance Service

Good morning, Chairman Lee and members of the Committee. My name is Tim Meyer, and | am
the Director of Administration at F-M Ambulance Service which provides advanced life support
(ALS) ambulance services to Fargo and West Fargo and provides support to the rural
ambulances of Cass County. 1 am here in support of HB 1044 to provide funding for rural
emergency medical services and ask that you increase the amount 1o $4 million.

We also support the operations area concept contained in the original version of the bill. It is our
opinion that you must obligate the ambulance services to cover a specific geographic area,
particularly if they are being subsidized by the State. Additionalty we are concerned that if the
state offers grants to ambulance services to operate, some operators may become direct
competitors with our service. [t doesn’t seem fair to have the State subsidizing an ambulance 10
compete with our company which does not receive public funding.

It is true that the company that I work for would benefit from having exclustve rights to operate
where we do. However if we do have a competitor in our community, it would not result in
better service or lower costs for the consumer. It would dilute the market and require a higher
fee structure or a lower level of preparedness to support multiple operators.

If you factor in the level of staffing that we need to meet our performance goals, the support we
provide to our rural partners by way of ALS intercepts, the poor reimbursement rates for indigent
patients and the number of 9-1-1 calls that do not result in a transport, at best we only break even
on 9-1-1 emergencies. Inter-facility transfers financially support the emergency ambulance

calls. F-M Ambulance has been in continual operation for 52 vears and we take any and all calls.

We hope we never have to have to make the distinction between which calls we can support
financially because competition was injected into our public safety svstem.

As a final point, we believe that the public must have a remedy if they feel the local ambulance
service is not up to par. The language contained in the original version of the bill gives authority
to the Health Department to make financial sanctions or to find another ambulance service
operator 10 serve an arga when performance standards are not met.

Thank you for allowing me to testify today. 1'd be happy 1o answer any questions you may have.

# 5
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Subject: HB 1044
I encourage you to give HB 1044 a “DO PASS”.

Many Emergency Medical Services in North Dakota are in grave danger of closing.
While the economy in North Dakota remains strong, rural EMS is the extreme
opposite due to a lack of funding and volunteers. I currently serve on a service
that has several hundred calls a year. It is getting harder to find people
willing to and who have the time along with the financial ability to take calls.
We currently offer our volunteer staff only fifty (.50) cents per hour for up to
3 member(s) to take call in 12-hour shifts in order to staff 24/7 as mandated.
Many services in the state pay nothing.

If North Dakota continues on it’s current path we will suffer closures of EMS
services; which could have a domino effect placing pressure on other struggling
services and increasing response times to an emergency. If you have ever had to
call for an ambulance 5 minutes seems like an eternity when you are with someone
in need of help. In rural North Dakota this wait now can be 28 minutes or
greater due to response distance. Please help keep as many services golng as we
can and help others grain strength.

One area of concern in this bill is the "Advisory Committee” wording. There is a
movement to have some of the members of this board selected by various member pay
or service pay associations, one of which represents a very small percentage of
North Dakota Services. This advisory board should be made up of designates by
the DOH (Department of Health) and DEMST (Division of Emergency Medical Services
& Trauma) with an emphasis on EMS providers as members and not those selected
from paid associations. We need to place full control and operation of any
appropriated monies under DEMST/DOH including the establishment of the Advisory
Committee to ensure proper accountability and fairness to all services.

Please help continue to make our state a great and safe place to live by passing
this bill and, if possible, providing additional funding than previously amended.

Thank you for your time and service to our great state.

Jeremy Mattison, EMT
Cavalier, ND



NDLA, S HMS

Lee, Judy E. '
Tuesday, March 15, 2011 8:10 AM
NDLA, S HMS

FW. HB1044

Please print for our books.

Senator Judy Lee

1822 Brentwood Court
West Fargo, ND 58078
home phone: 701-282-6512

e-mail: jlee@nd.gov

From: June & Kari Enget [mailto:ihparts@nccray.com]
Sent: Monday, March 14, 2011 8:22 PM

To; Lee, Judy E.; Uglem, Gerald P.; Berry, Spencer D.; ddeaver@nd.gov; Mathern, Tim
Subject: HB1044

My name is Kari Enget and | am the co-squad leader of the Powers Lake Ambulance.

t am encouraging you to give a “do pass” on HB1044.

e are a volunteer service in the middle of oil country. Our call volume is going up. Often times, it takes many
ne calls to make sure we have people to take call. Many of our neighboring services are struggling to cover

it they close it will put a big strain on our squad. Many of our calls are 30-45 minutes from the nearest
hospital. Please help keep as many services going as we can and strengthen others.

One area of concern to me is the Advisory Committee wording. As emergency medical providers, we need this
board to be designated by the DOH {Department of Health)

and the DEMST (Division of Emergency Medical Services & Trauma). The Committee should have a majority of
EMS (volunteer and paid) providers as members. We need to place full control and operation of any
appropriated .

monies under the DEMST/DOH including the establishment of the Advisory Committee to ensure proper
accountability and fairness to ALL services.

' ‘



From: Cindy Voeller [mailto:cvoeller@hamc.com)
Sent;: Friday, March 11, 2011 4:53 PM

To: Lee, Judy E.

Subject: RE: 1044

Honorable Senator Lee,

| am writing this email in support of HB1044 the EMS Funding bill. This bili is so important to
EMS in ND! In working for a company that provides biiling for ambulance services throughout
the state of ND, | am always hearing about the staffing struggles of ambulance services
throughout the state. North Dakota being the rural state that it is, needs it's ambulance services
to remain viable and be available to help the citizens of this state. This bill will enable
ambulance services to continue to provide the services they have. Ambulance services provide
rapid access to health care in emergencies and at times may be the only access to health care
especially in rural areas. If rural ambulance’s start to struggle, it may lead to greater stress on
the urban ambulance services, but by helping to maintain rural ambulance services in ND, with
this EMS funding bill that can be avoided.

| have also seen how the current funding has enabled ambulance services to keep 24/7
ambulance coverage in their home towns and the benefit it has provided. 1t has helped with
coverage and helped reduce some of the provider burnout that occurs when one or two people
are on call 24/7 for months at a time. Your support of this bill means so much to EMS in ND.

The original bill had provisions for ambulance operations areas, emergency medical services
funding areas, and an Emergency medical services advisory committee, as well as a funding

level that provides a long term solution to help EMS in ND, all these points remain important to
the bill.

Cindy Voeller
Rugby Ambulance Service
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o HB 1044 — Amendments /jj

_ Page 3, line 1, replace “January 17 with “June 307 ’\

N Tafﬂ—/

Page 1, after line 6 insert:

SECTION 1. Amendment. Section 23-27-01 (1) is amended and reenacted as follows:
23-27-01. License required - Licensing of emergency medical services operations - Exception
- Waiver.

1. The state department of health shall license emergency medical sefvices opeérations and may

designate their service areas. AfterJune 30,2001 the The department shall limit the issuance of a

license for any new emergency medical services operation based on the needs of the service area

relicensed-under-section23-27-04-5. A license for an emergency medical services operation is

nontransferable.

Page 1, after line 18, insert:
Emergency Medical Services Advisory Council

The state department of health shall establish an emergency medical services advisory council. The
council shall be comprised of representatives from the EMS provider community, consumers, and state
government. The council shall include at leas epresentatives appointed by the North Dakota
emergency medical services association, ene memberappeinted-by-the-North-Daketa-ambulance-service

~advocates; and one member of the legislative assembly appointed by legislative management. The
department shall consider the recommendations of the council on the plan for integrated emergency
medical services in the state, development of emergency medical services funding areas, development of
the emergency medical services funding areas application process and budget criteria, and other issues
relating to emergency medical services as determined by the state health officer. Council members are
entitled to reimbursement for expenses in the manner provided in section 44-08-04.

Page 2, line 21, replace *$2,000,000” with “$4,000,000”
Page 2, line 26, replace “$2,000,000” with *$4,000,000™

Page 2, line 29, strike “The department may spend” .Auj(

Page 2, strike lines 30-31 g/w O
r 5P
<



HB 1044 - Information Request % Lo
North Dakota Department of Health
March 18, 2011

To: Chairwoman Judy Lee
North Dakota Senate Human Services Committee

Dear Senator Lee,

The North Dakota Department of Health was recently asked to respond to two issues from the
Senate Human Services Committee regarding HB 1044,

- First Request:

The department was asked to suggest the makeup and policies of the North Dakota Department
of Health Emergency Advisory Committee. Beyond the suggested membership of the committee
below, we would also propose term limits of a minimum of two years with no maximum number
of terms.

Suggested Membership — All of whom must work in North Dakota.

1. State trauma committee representative — A voting member of the North Dakota state
trauma committee.

2. Current North Dakota EMS Association (NDEMSA) President.

3. EMS Association Advanced Life Support Representative — A North Dakota certified and
licensed Paramedic recommended by the NDEMSA currently working for a North
Dakota licensed advanced life support ambulance service. (Designated by the
NDEMSA)

4. EMS Association Basic Life Support Representative — A North Dakota certified or
licensed Emergency Medical Technician, or its equivalent, recommended by the
NDEMSA currently working for a North Dakota licensed basic life support ambulance
service. (Designated by the NDEMSA)

5. Advanced Life Support Representative — A North Dakota certified and licensed
Paramedic currently working for a North Dakota licensed advanced life support
ambulance service. (Designated by the Department of Health)

6. Basic Life Support Representative — A North Dakota certified or licensed Emergency
Medical Technician, or its equivalent, currently working for a North Dakota licensed
basic life support ambulance service. (Designated by the Department of Health)

7. Legislative Representative — A current North Dakota State Senator or State
Representative.



10.

11

12.

13.

14.

. Medical Director Representative — A North Dakota licensed physician member of the

NDEMSA Medical Director’s Society currently serving as a medical director for a North
Dakota licensed ambulance service.

Air Ambulance Representative — A representative from a North Dakota licensed air
ambulance service. (Designated by the Department of Health)

Communications Specialist Representative — A communications specialist recommended
by the North Dakota 9-1-1 Association currently working for a public safety dispatching
entity.

Hospital Association Representative — A member of the North Dakota Hospital
Association representing North Dakota licensed hospitals.

Highway Patrol Representative.
Department of Transportation (DOT) Traffic Safety Representative.

Fire Service Representative.

Second Request:

Given a certain level of funding from HB 1044, in what manner would the Department of Health
determine as an appropriate method of ut1hzat10n of these funds? Our response includes the

following points.

1.

Restoration of the DOT 402 and 408 funds in the amount of $523,900 per biennium that
is being lost by the Division of Emergency Medical Services and Trauma would greatly
affect the division’s ability to carry out the current mission.

During the 2007 Legislative Session, there was an appropriation of $1,250,000 for
staffing grants for ambulance services that were encountering difficulty in fully staffing a
24 hour a day, 365 day a year crew schedule. During the 2009 Legislative Session, an
additional $1,000,000 was allocated for these staffing grants. During our current
budgeting process for the 2011-2013 biennium there was a determination made that the
2009 addition of $1,000,000 was one-time funding only for theat current biennium. We
included a request in our optional package 1o restore this fundings- hewever-it was not
included in the Governor’s recommended budget.

We would request that we defer our opinion regarding any additional funds-remaining
after restorationof #1-and#2-spending until the North Dakota Rural Emergency Medical
Services Project is completed. Completion of this project will occur by June 30, 2011,
and a final report will be available at that time.



Attachment A

North Dakota Department of Health
Division of Emergency Medical Services and Trauma
North Dakota Emergency Medical Services Advisory Committee

The North Dakota EMS Advisory Committee (EMSAC) is a public / private collaboration
established to foster communication between the EMS provider community, state agencies
and the consumers. The committee will focus on a range of topics affecting EMS in North
Dakota. When applicable, knowledgeable guests will be invited to speak to the commiitee on
their areas of expertise.

The purpose of this committee is to:

Protect the public’s interest in Emergency Medical Services in North Dakota
Provide an opportunity for members of the provider community to meet and discuss
issues of mutual concern with state agencies and others

Provide input for the long range solutions for maintaining a robust EMS system for
North Dakota

Present a process to communicate the issues and concerns from the committee to the
public, the media, state legislators, EMS providers, consumers, and other
organizations that may be interested as determined by the committee

Membership

The Committee consists of the following members, all of whom must work in North Dakota,
except for the public member:

1.

State trauma committee representative. A voting member of the North Dakota state
trauma committee.

EMS Association Advanced Life Support Representative. A North Dakota certified
and licensed Paramedic recommended by the North Dakota EMS Association
(NDEMSA) currently working for a North Dakota licensed advanced life support
ambulance service.

EMS Association Basic Life Support Representative. A North Dakota certified or
licensed Emergency Medical Technician, or its equivalent, recommended by the
NDEMSA currently working for a North Dakota licensed basic life support
ambulance service. '

EMS for Children (EMSC) representative. A current member of the EMSC advisory
committee. A

5
Critical Incident Stress Manag“ément‘(CISM) team representative. An active CISM
team member administered by DEMST.



Attachment A

6.

10.

1L

12.
13.
14.
15.
16.

17.
18.

19.

NDEMSA Instructor Coordinator Society Representative. A North Dakota state
certified Instructor Coordinator recommended by the North Dakota EMS Association
Instructor Coordinator Society.

Legislative Representative. A current North Dakota State Senator or State
Representative as recommended by the NDEMSA.

Injury Prevention Representative. A representative of the Office of Injury Prevention
at the North Dakota Department of Health.

Medical Director Representative. A North Dakota licensed physician member of the
NDEMSA Medical Director’s Society currently serving as a medical director for a
North Dakota licensed ambulance service.

Air Ambulance Representative. A representative from a North Dakota licensed air
ambulance service.

Communications Specialist Representative. A communications specialist
recommended by the North Dakota 9-1-1 Association currently working for a public
safety dispatching entity. '

Rescue Society Representative. A North Dakota certified rescue squad member
recommended by the NDEMSA Rescue Society.

Quick Response Unit (QRU) Representative. A current member of a certified North
Dakota QRU, recommended by the NDEMSA.

Medical Association Representative. A physician member of designee of the North
Dakota Medical Association.

Healthcare Association Representative. A member of designee of the North Dakota
Healthcare Association representing North Dakota licensed hospitals.

Indian Health Service (IHS) Representative. A representative employee of the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, Indian Health Services.

EMS Consumer.
North Dakota Department of Health Administrative Service Representative.

1 . .
North Dakota Department of Health — Emergency Preparedness Response Section
Chief. ) ‘



Attachment A

20. North Dakota Department of Health — Director of the Division of Emergency Medical
Services and Trauma (DEMST).

Member Responsibilities
Each committee member 15 expected to:

1. Attend a minimum of 50% of normal meetings per year.

2. Actively participate in the functioning of the committee.

3. Be available for individual consultation to the Chair, Vice Chair, or DEMST
Division Director.

Terms of Office

An advisory committee member may serve indefinitely. A committee member may be asked
to resign due to non participation as voted on by the committee. The offices of Chair and
Vice Chair are for 2-year terms with unlimited re-election.

e Clerical Support
e DEMST shall provide secretarial support for the committee.
e Public notice of meetings will be given

» Meeting minutes will be posted on the North Dakota Department of Health website

Travel

o Per Diem and mileage are reimbursable at the state rate

* Reimbursement policy may change as funding sources change

Voting

e The presence of a majority of the voting Committee members (one over half)
constitutes a quorum at Committee meetings. No official business may be acted on
without a quorum. E

2t
et
)

s A member may proxy his / her vote to another member or designee.



BECREYS
i

EMS Advisory Committee
North Dakota Department of Health
1/19/2011

Air Ambulance

Daniel Ehlen, BS, NREMT-P, CMTE

MeritCare LifeFlight
720 4" St. North
Fargo, ND 58022
701.234.6054

danielehlen@meritcare.com

Critical Incident Stress Management

Lee Gale

716 Griggs

Grafton ND 58237
701.352.2644
T1220@hotmail.com

Communication Specialist
Rosalie Doerr

637 Burchwood Dr
Bismarck ND 58504
701.328.9921
rdoerr{@nd.gov

Emergency Medical Services for
Children

Rafael Ocejo, MD

Quain and Ramstad Clinic

PO BOX 5505

Bismarck, ND 58506-5505
701.323.6000

rocejof@mohs.org

NDEMSA Instructor Coordinator
Society

Sherm Syverson

409 41% Ave S

Moorhead MN 56560
701.364.1750
sherm(@fmambulance.com

Injury Prevenetion

Diana Read

Division of Injury Prevention and
Control

600 E Boulevard Ave — Dept 301
Bismarck ND 58505-0200
701.328.4537

dread@nd.gov

North Dakota Trauma Committee
Steve Hamar, MD

Mid Dakota Clinic

PO BOX 5538

Bismarck, ND 58501-5538
701-530-6039 or 530-5588

shamar(@primcare.org

NDEMSA Basic Life Support
Ambulance Representative
Lynn Hartman

927 12" Ave E |
Dickinson, ND 58601
701.225.1500

tropdak(@ndsupernet.com

NDEMSA Advanced Life Support
Ambulance Representative

Neil Frame, NREMT-P

730 North 24" St.

Bismarck, ND 58501

701.255.0812

nframe@maas-nd.com

North Dakota Healthcare Association

Mark Weber, NREMT-P
6820 14™ Ave NW
Minot, ND 58703
701.776.5261
mwemtp(@yahoo.com

NDEMSA Rescue Society
Steve Fuglestad

506 Steele Ave

Hope ND 58046
701.668.2973
smfug@excite.com

NDEMSA Medical Director’s Society

Ben Roller, MD

St. Alexius Medical Center ETC
PO Box 5510

Bismarck, ND 58506-5510
701.530.7001
broller(@primecare.org




EMS Advisory Committee
North Dakota Department of Health

Indian Health Services
Consumer

Legislative Representative
Senator Jerry Klein

P.O. Box 265

Fessenden, ND 58438-0265
701.547.3251

jklein@state.nd.us

ND Department of Health -
Administrative Services
Craig Lambrecht, MD

Med Center One

PO BOX 5525

Bismarck, ND 58502-5525
701.323.6150
clamb19@bis.midco.net

ND Department of Health —
Division of EMS & Trauma
Tom Nehring, Director
Division of EMS & Trauma
600 E. Blvd Ave — Dept 301
Bismarck, ND 58505-0200
701.328.4728
trnehring(@nd. gov

NDEMSA Certified QRU Rep
Debbie Weber

4 Slopers Bay Road

Bottineau, ND 58318

(701) 263-3393
dweb827@ndak.net

NDMA Representative

Timothy J. Luithle, MD

315 East Caledonia Ave, PO Box 639,
Hillsboro 58045-0639

701.436.5311
timluithle@meritcare.com

ND Department of Health —
Emergency Preparedness and
Response Section

1/16/2011

Tim Wiedrich, Section Chief
918 E Divide Ave

Bismarck, ND 58501
701.328.2270
twiedricf@nd.gov

North Dakota EMS Association
Curt Halmrast, President

1622 E Interstate Ave

Bismarck, ND 58503
701.742.3244

curt.halmrast@ndemsa.org

F-M Ambulance

Tim Meyer, Quality Resource Manager
2215 18th St S

Fargo, ND 58103

701.364.1712
tim.meyer@fmambulance.com

Doug Anderson
PO Box 589
Crosby ND 58730

701.339.2768
dougswede@yahoo.com
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0 Proposed Amendment to Engrossed House Bill No. 1044

Page 1, after line 6 insert:

“SECTION 1. Amendment. Subsection 1 of Section 23-27-01 is amended and reenacted as
follows:

23-27-01. License required — Licensing of emergency medical services operations — Exception — Waiver.

1. The state department of health shall license emergency medical services operations and
may designate their services areas. Aftertune 30,2001 the The department shall limit the
issuance of a license for any new emergency medical services operation based on the needs
of the service area ifFthe-applicantforthe newlicense-was licensed before-uly 12001 and
was-subsequentlyrelicensed-undersection23-27-84-5. A license for an emergency medical
services operation is nontransferable.”

Page 1, after line 18 insert:
“Emergency Medical Services Advisory Council

The state department of health shall establish an emergency medical services advisory council. The
council shall include at least three representatives appointed by the North Dakota Emergency Medica!

o Services Association, one individual to represent basic life support and one individual to represent
advanced life support, both appointed by the department of health, and other members designated by
the department of health not to exceed a total of fourteen members. The department shall consider the
recommendations of the council on the plan for integrated emergency medical services in the state,
development of emergency medical services funding areas, development of the emergency medical
services funding areas application process and budget criteria, and other issues relating to emergency
medical services as determined by the state health officer. Council members are entitied to
reimbursement for expenses in the manner provided in section 44-08-04 and the department shall
establish by policy the length of terms and the method for rotation of membership.”

Page 2, line 18, replace “one-half” with “$1,250,000”
Page 2, line 21, replace “$2,000,000" with “$4,000,000"
Page 2, line 26, replace “$2,000,000” with “$4,000,000"
Page 2, line 29, strike “The department my spend”
Page 2, remove lines 30-31

Page 3, line 1, replace “January 1” with “lune 30"

L3
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HB 1044 | March 30, 2011

Testimony — Senate Appropriations Committee
North Dakota EMS Association
Mark Weber, NDEMSA Past President
Good Morning Chairman Holmberg and members of the Human Services committee.

My name is Mark Weber, and | am representing the North Dakota Emergency Medical Services

(EMS) Association. [ thank you for the opportunity to testify in support of HB 1044,

The 2007 Legislature allocated $1.25M to assist ambulance services with our staffing
problem with the implementation and funding of the current staffing grant program. In 2009 the
Legislature approved an additional $1M for the staffing grant program as well as $500,000 for a
grant to implement four key EMS projects and directed an interim study into the feasibility of

transitioning to a state-wide funding formula for EMS.

The goal of the grants was to identify the most needy ambulance services and help them
sustain until a permanent funding solution could be found. A formula was developed by the ND
Department of Health with input from the EMS community. In 2007, 108 of the 143 ambulance
services were eligible for the grants. Twenty-nine ambulance services applied for and received
staffing grants, the awards ranged from a few thousand dollars up to $45,000. We found many of
the services we felt needed the assistance did not apply for the grant. Some squad leaders told us
they didn’t want to start a program if it was not going to be sustained. Some services didn’t want
to pay some people and not others, a few services said they could not afford the matching

amount they would have to pay or they thought the paperwork was too exhaustive.

In 2009, with the addition of $1M for a total of $2.25M available for staffing grants 41 of
the 108 services eligible for the grant applied. The 41 applications requested approximately
$2.8M in funding. Not all applicants could receive the amount they requested, so rather than not
give a grant to a few services a decision was made to just cut all funding requests down (by a %)

until the $2.25M mark was met. 39 ambulance services are receiving grants today.
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HB 1044 can build on the success of the staffing grant program while recognizing key
directives. 1) Ensure “Reasonable EMS and staffing” coverage for ND — communities and
corridors. 2) Address the sustainability of funding ~ can “reasonable EMS and staffing” be
achieved with an efficient and sustainable source of funding at the local and state levels. 3)
Require a reasonable level of local money to match state aid. 4) Provide for local flexibility and
encourage coordination between services. We believe HB 1044 takes all of this into
consideration and will provide long term stability, ensuring reasonable EMS in ND well into the
future.

HB 1044 maintains the current staffing grant program with funding of $1.25 miltion for
the first year of the next biennium, then transitioning to a “funding area” model moving forward

with the remaining $4 million ($2.75 million in HB 1044 and $1.25 million in HB 1004),

Funding would be available to areas that could show a need for assistance. Ambulance
services within a funding area would submit one proposal to the department of health requesting
assistance. Funding proposal templates would be developed by the department and provided to
all ambulance services.‘ These would include a template for an overall plan (narrative) to provide
EMS coverage to all citizens of the area, how the local share was being provided and a budget
and budget narrative.

* Areas with multiple ambulance services in a funding area.

e Budgets to include reasonable costs. (up to a maximum percentage)

¢ Local match based on a $10 per capita.

¢ Formula, cost vs. expense

* Funding Efficiencies/Sustainability — funding approx. 75 areas rather than 108

individual services

Appropriations:

We initially requested a $12M appropriation which is the total amount we believe will be
needed to sustain ND EMS; this was calcu}ated based on the current definition of reasonable
EMS and the calculations of cost (reasonable budget) vs. revenue (local share & billable

revenue) for each of the estimated 88 funding areas. Some North Dakota Ambulance Services




can only generate $30-$40,000 annually (billable revenue and a local share of $10/capita). We
used a base budget of $150,000 annually, calculating for some paid staff, full time manager and
other paid staff — keep in mind ambulance services will always rely on volunteers. We used the
base budget for many services until they reached a point where their actual cost exceeded the

$150,000 based on total call volume and the average cost to provide the service.

We understand that we would probably not use the entire $12M in this biennium and
believe it will take a few years for all EMS agencies to get fully staffed and prepared for this
policy change.

We are asking for $4M in HB 1044 in addition to the $1.25M funded in the Executive
Budget in HB 1004. We believe the $5.25M will be enough to help a majority (50 to 60 of the
possible 90 funding areas) of the funding areas that will request assistance. Without the entire

$12M, criteria will need to be developed to prioritize who needs the finding and at what level.

Chairman Hoiberg, thank you for this opportunity to testify and I would be happy to

answer questions the committee may have.



Reagan’s life was in doctors’ hands

By Meredith Cohn
McClatchy Newspapers

ALTIMORE - En route to
emergency . room at
orge Washington Universi-

ty Hospitai, Dr. Paul Colom-
banl noticed a black limou-
sine emblazoned with the Brady, Ronald Reagan’s press
presidential seal in the drive- secretary shot in the head. In
way. Gens’ bay was the 40th presi-
He told fellow surgical resi- dent of the United States, shot
dent Dr. David Gens to look, in the chest after just two
put thg significance didn’t months on the job.
immediately register as they  Brady's death was erro-

after the shooting at the Wash-
ington Hilton, but the public
was reassured that Reagan's
injuries were not so severe. In
reality, Reagan was bleeding
to death, and it would take
some skill, and luck, to save
the man — and his presidency

But doctors were treating
him like any other patient on
March 30, 1981.

“When you take their
clothes off, they're all the
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trauma patients. ‘
In Colombani’s bay was Jim

headed toward the waiting

neously reported in the hours

REAGAN: Page A8

REAGAN: Lost nearly half his blood”

From Page Al

same,” said Gens, now an
associate professor of sur-
gery at the University of
Maryland Schoo! of Medi-
cine and an attending
physician at Maryland
Shock Trauma. “They’re
just people.”

Gens and Colombani, now
chief of pediatric surgery at
Johns Hopkins Children's
Center, were 31 and 29,
pectively, at the time and
the fifth year of their sur-
cal residencies, the first
jobs outside medical school.
. They were part of a team
that worked on Reagan,
Brady and Tim McCarthy, a
Secret Service agent who
threw himself in the line of
fire. ’

The pair said they don't
regularly think about the
shooting and told their full
story publicly for the first
time in a newly published
book called “Rawhide
Down” - Rawhide was Rea-
gan's Secret Service name.
The two men met recently
in Colombani’s office, one of
about a half-dozen ftimes
they'd seen each other since
they left George Washing-
ton at the end of that year
for the hospitals in Balti-
More.

Reagan had just given a
speech when John Hinckley
Jr, in an attempt to
impress actress Jodie Fos-
ter, got off six shots from

is revolver before he was
ubdued.
‘ Jerry Parr, the agent in

charge of Reagan's security
detail, immediately pushed
the president into his car
Reagan was shaken and had
blood on his lips, and Parr,
unaware of the gunshot
wound, worried he'd
cracked a rib. The source of

Associated Pross

Presideﬁt Ronald Reagan is ;ﬁushed into his limousine
by Secret Service agents, including Jerry Parr, right, after
shots were fired outside the Washington Hilton in 1981.

the attack wasn’t complete-
ly clear to Parr, but he
decided to forgo the securi-
ty of the White House for
medical care at George
Washington, according to
the book, written by Del
Quentin Wilber, a Washing-
ton Post reporter who for-
merly worked for The Balti-
more Sun. .

A half-hour after the
shooting, Gens and Colom-
bani were in the emergency
room, Reagan’s suit had
been cut off, and doctors
could see the bullet hole.
Reagan, likely in shock,
said he was having trouble
breathing. ‘

“When someone says he
can’'t breathe after being

shot, he's in trouble,” said

Gens. Then, he and Colom-
bani hoth concluded, “If
they had taken him to the
White House, he would have
died.” o

The bullet, officials now
believe, had hit the limou-
sine, flattened like a dime
and ricocheted into Reagan.
The .22-caliber shell pene-
trated and partially shred-
ded Reagan’s left lung. The

doctors now say if it had
been fired by a higher-pow-
ered rifle or was a larger
bullet, it could have traveled
farther and done more dam-
age or even Kkilled Reagan
on the spot.

Ag it was, the bullet hit a
vessel, causing internal
bleeding. On a more stable
patient, doctors would have
ordered X-rays to look for
fluid, but the troubled
breathing was a telltale sign
that blood .was filling Rea-
gan’s lung — and fast.

It had become clear that
Reagan’s bleeding was not
going to stop on its owm.
The doctors believed he’d
lost close to half his own
blood, and a half-hour after
arriving he was headed to
the operating room.

Reagan, the doctors con-
firmed, quipped: “1 hope
you are all Republicans.”

Aside from suffering a
fever, Reagan made a
remarkable recovery for a
man of his age, said the doc-
tors, who saw the president
at the White House about a
month later and again in a
year. '

Officers tackle shooter John Hinkley



